
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Regular Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
FEBRUARY 21, 2005 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 



TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on 
course with these goals. 
 
Goals 
 
1. Minimize cost and increase efficiency of City government. 
2. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment. 
3. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally. 
4. Creatively maintain and improve public infrastructure. 
5. Protect life and property. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
 
 



 
      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

February 21, 2005 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Hindu High Priest Ramachandra Bhat – 
Bharatyia Temple 1 

ROLL CALL: 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations:  No Presentations 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 No Public Hearings Requested 1 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 1 

D-1 Postponed Item (From January 24, 2005) – Rezoning Application – West Side of 
Rochester Road, South of Trinway, Section 10 – R-1C to R-1T (Z 699) 1 

CONSENT AGENDA: 2 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 2 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 2 



E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 2 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation: 2 

(a) George D. Goodman – Retirement from the Michigan Municipal League ............ 2 

E-4  Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easements and Warranty Deed from 
Brentwood Land Development, LLC – Wattles Ridge Site Condominiums – Sidwell 
#88-20-23-100-003, 004, 041, 046, 063 and 071 2 

E-5  Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing 
Agreements – Fleet Vehicles 3 

E-6  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Bid Award – Sole Bidder – Troy Daze 
Amusement Rides 3 

E-7  Private Agreement for Oakwood Sanitary Extension – Project No. 04.404.3 3 

E-8  Private Agreement for 2597 E. Big Beaver – Sanitary Extension – Project No. 
04.405.3 4 

E-9  Request for Approval of Conditioned Purchase Agreement for Right-of-Way: 
Sidewalk Gap Project, Sidwell #88-20-01-101-022, 1094 E. South Boulevard, John 
D. Anderson and Judith A. Anderson 4 

E-10  Public, Education, Government (PEG) Fees Distribution 4 

E-11  Preliminary Site Plan Review and Amended Consent Order and Judgment (SP 
883-C) – Heartland Health Care, Southeast Corner of South Boulevard and 
Livernois, Section 3 – O-1 and R-1B 4 

E-12  Interagency Agreement with Wayne County for the Local Sanitary Sewer 
Improvements to Reduce Sanitary Sewer Overflows (SSOs) in the Evergreen 
Farmington System Project 5 

E-13  Education and Training Budget for City Council 5 

E-14  Sole Source – Nuisance Goose Control Services for Sanctuary Lake and Sylvan 
Glen Golf Courses 6 



PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 7 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 7 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Downtown 
Development Authority; b) City Council Appointments: Cable Advisory Committee; 
Municipal Building Authority 7 

F-2 Load Restrictions 10 

F-3 Request for a Study Session for the Purpose of Discussing an Ethics Policy 10 

F-4 Rules of Procedure – Proposed Amendments 10 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 11 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 11 

a) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment for Section 03.21, Procedure (ZOTA 210) 
– February 28, 2005 ........................................................................................... 11 

b) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment for Section 04.20 Definitions, Section 
22.30 Uses Permitted Subject to Special Use Approval – B-3 District, Section 
28.25 Conditional Uses Permitted – M-1 District (ZOTA 209) – February 28, 
2005 ................................................................................................................... 11 

G-2 Green Memorandums: 11 

a) Snow Emergency Ordinance.............................................................................. 11 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 11 

H-1  Mayor Louise Schilling Requested to Discuss Modification of the April 19, 2004 
Resolution Regarding Campaign Finance Statements on Web Page 11 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 15 

I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 15 

REPORTS: 15 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 15 



a) Downtown Development Authority/Final – September 15, 2004......................... 15 
b) Troy Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – October 5, 2004 .............................. 15 
c) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – December 1, 2004..... 15 
d) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – December 1, 2004..... 15 
e) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – December 2, 2004 ................... 15 
f) Library Board/Final – December 9, 2004............................................................ 15 
g) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – December 13, 2004 .................................... 15 
h) Troy Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – January 4, 2005 .............................. 15 
i) Library Board/Draft – January 13, 2005.............................................................. 15 
j) Troy CAC Advisory Committee/Draft – January 19, 2005 .................................. 15 
k) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – January 25, 2005.......................... 15 
l) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – January 25, 2005.................................. 15 
m) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – February 2, 2005................................. 15 
n) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – February 3, 2005 ..................... 15 
o) Library Board/Draft – February 4, 2005 .............................................................. 15 
p) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – February 14, 2005....................................... 15 
q) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – February 16, 2005....................................... 15 

J-2 Department Reports: 15 

a) Building and Zoning – Permits Issued During the Month of January, 2005 ........ 15 
b) City Council Expense Report – December, 2004 ............................................... 15 
c) Monthly Financial Report – January, 2005 ......................................................... 15 
d) Council Member Beltramini’s Report from the National League of Cities 

Congress of Cities and Exposition, November 30 – December 4, 2004, 
Indianapolis, IN................................................................................................... 15 

e) Mayor Louise Schilling Requested That The High Performance Governing 
Body Report Be Resubmitted to Council on the February 21, 2005 Agenda...... 15 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 16 

a) Letter to Tim Richnak from Mr. Tom Strat, Thanking Janet Kidd and Dominic 
Mauro for Their Efforts to Resolve a Water Leak in His Office Building on 
Crooks ................................................................................................................ 16 

b) Letter to Chief Craft from Lieutenant Colonel L. E. Reynolds, United States 
Marine Corps, Thanking the Troy Police Department for Assistance During a 
Funeral Procession............................................................................................. 16 

c) Letter to Jeanette Bennett from Jean Farris, Michigan Public Purchasing 
Officers Association, Thanking Her for Her Help with the 2005 Regional 
Conference......................................................................................................... 16 

d) Letter to Chief Nelson from Randy and Linda Cunningham, Thanking 
Lieutenant Riesterer, Assistant Chief Allen, Captain Godlewski, Lieutenant C. 
Roberts, Staff Lieutenant Matlick, and Firefighters R. Bittner, J. Haney, G. 
Lanctot, M. Leavitt, S. Murphy, K. St. Cyr, P. White and T. Wren for the 
“Dining with the Fire Department” Evening at Station 3...................................... 16 

e) Letter to Chief Craft from Christina Barney, Health Education Department – 
Boulan Park Middle School, Thanking Officer Kaptur for Her Presentation 
About Drugs........................................................................................................ 16 

f) Letter to Carla Vaughan from Representative Robert Gosselin, Commending 
Her for the City of Troy Senior Citizens Program................................................ 16 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 16 



J-5  Calendar 16 

J-6  MDOT Response to Correspondence from David Krall of White Chapel Cemetery 16 

J-7  Community Media Network (CMN) Draft Contract 16 

J-8  Preliminary Planned Unit Development Review (Public Input Meeting) – PUD-004 
(“The Monarch”) – North Side of Big Beaver Road, East of Alpine and West of 
McClure, Section 20 16 

STUDY ITEMS: 16 

K-1  No Study Items Submitted 16 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 16 

CLOSED SESSION: 16 

L-1 Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested 16 

RECESSED 17 

RECONVENED 17 

ADJOURNMENT 17 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 17 

Monday, February 28, 2005 Regular City Council................................................. 17 
Monday, March 07, 2005 Regular City Council ..................................................... 17 
Monday, March 21, 2005 Regular City Council ..................................................... 17 
Monday, March 28, 2005 Regular City Council ..................................................... 17 
Monday, April 04, 2005 Regular City Council........................................................ 17 
Monday, April 18, 2005 Regular City Council........................................................ 17 
Monday, April 25, 2005 Regular City Council........................................................ 17 
Monday, May 9, 2005 Regular City Council .......................................................... 17 
Monday, May 16, 2005 Regular City Council ........................................................ 17 
Monday, May 23, 2005 Regular City Council ........................................................ 17 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 21, 2005 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Hindu High Priest Ramachandra Bhat 
– Bharatyia Temple 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  No Presentations 
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 No Public Hearings Requested 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1 Postponed Item (From January 24, 2005) – Rezoning Application – West Side of 
Rochester Road, South of Trinway, Section 10 – R-1C to R-1T (Z 699) 

 
Resolution #2005-02- 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That the R-1C to R-1T rezoning request, located on the west side of Rochester 
Road, south of Trinway, Section 10, being 2.74 acres in size, is hereby GRANTED, as 
recommended by Planning Commission and City Management. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 21, 2005 
 

- 2 - 

CONSENT AGENDA:  
 
Public comment is limited to not more than twice nor longer than five (5) minutes on any 
item, unless so permitted by the Chair, in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the 
City Council, Article 15, as amended May 3, 2004. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which shall be considered after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-02-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of February 7, 2005 at 7:30 PM be 
APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation:  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That the following City of Troy Proclamation be APPROVED: 
 
(a) George D. Goodman – Retirement from the Michigan Municipal League 
 
E-4  Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easements and Warranty Deed from 

Brentwood Land Development, LLC – Wattles Ridge Site Condominiums – Sidwell 
#88-20-23-100-003, 004, 041, 046, 063 and 071 

 
Suggested Resolution 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 21, 2005 
 

- 3 - 

Resolution #2005-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Warranty Deed for the proposed Burns Drive right-of-way and Permanent 
Easements for Sanitary Sewer and Storm Sewer from Brentwood Land Development, LLC, 
having Sidwell #88-20-23-100-003, 004, 041, 046, 063 & 071, are hereby ACCEPTED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record said 
documents with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-5  Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing 

Agreements – Fleet Vehicles 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-02-. 
 
RESOLVED, That contracts to provide fleet vehicles from Buff Whelan Chevrolet, Red Holman 
Pontiac GMC and Slingerland Dodge are hereby APPROVED through Oakland County 
Cooperative Purchasing Agreements at an estimated total cost of  $86,680.00. 
 
E-6  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Bid Award – Sole Bidder – Troy Daze 

Amusement Rides 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-02-. 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to provide three (3) year requirements of Amusement Rides for 
the Troy Daze/Magic of Fall Festival is hereby AWARDED to the sole bidder, Arnold 
Amusements, Inc. of Traverse City, MI, at a 40% rate of return on gross ride receipts and in 
accordance with the bid proposal opened February 2, 2005, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is contingent upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all 
other specified requirements. 
 
E-7  Private Agreement for Oakwood Sanitary Extension – Project No. 04.404.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Akram Kthar, is hereby APPROVED for the 
installation of sanitary sewer and soil erosion on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and 
the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, a copy of which shall 
be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 21, 2005 
 

- 4 - 

E-8  Private Agreement for 2597 E. Big Beaver – Sanitary Extension – Project No. 
04.405.3 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Villas Construction, is hereby APPROVED for the 
installation of sanitary sewer and soil erosion on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and 
the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, a copy of which shall 
be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-9  Request for Approval of Conditioned Purchase Agreement for Right-of-Way: 

Sidewalk Gap Project, Sidwell #88-20-01-101-022, 1094 E. South Boulevard, John 
D. Anderson and Judith A. Anderson 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agreement to Purchase between John D. Anderson and Judith A. 
Anderson, owner of the property having Sidwell # 88-20-01-101-022, and the City of Troy, for 
the acquisition of right-of-way for a Sidewalk Gap Completion Project is APPROVED in the 
amount of $23,400.00, plus closing costs. 
 
E-10  Public, Education, Government (PEG) Fees Distribution 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That the City of Troy hereby ALLOCATES one-half of the approximate $139,600 
proceeds from cable television providers allotted to Public Access to Community Media 
Network (CMN) for operation of a public access facility, with the remaining one-half to be used 
for the government access channel  (WTRY).   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy’s funding allocation will be contingent upon a contract 
being renewed by the ICCA and CMN which has a term ending December 31, 2007. 
 
E-11  Preliminary Site Plan Review and Amended Consent Order and Judgment (SP 883-

C) – Heartland Health Care, Southeast Corner of South Boulevard and Livernois, 
Section 3 – O-1 and R-1B 

 
 
a) Proposed Preliminary Approval of First Amended Consent Order and Judgment 

(SP 883-C) – Heartland Health Care, Southeast Corner of South Boulevard and 
Livernois Road, Section 3 – O-1 and R-1B 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-02- 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 21, 2005 
 

- 5 - 

 
RESOLVED, That the attached proposed First Amended Consent Order and Judgment for the 
property located at the southeast corner of South Boulevard and Livernois Road, is hereby 
APPROVED, contingent upon the approval of the preliminary site plan that is attached and 
incorporated by reference, and that the Mayor, City Clerk and Assistant City Attorney are 
AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, which are to be held in escrow and not recorded until 
after the closing on the Property that is the subject of the First Amended Consent Order and 
Judgment, which is intended to be purchased by Heathcare and Retirement Corporation of 
America. 
 
b) Proposed Preliminary Site Plan Review (SP 883-C) – Heartland Health Care, 

Southeast Corner of South Boulevard and Livernois, Section 3 – O-1 and R-1B 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-02- 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval for a proposed 120-bed nursing home, 
located on the southeast corner of South Boulevard and Livernois Road within Section 3, in the 
O-1 and R-1B Zoning Districts, being approximately 3.78 acres in size, is hereby APPROVED, 
as recommended by the Planning Commission and City Management. 
 
E-12  Interagency Agreement with Wayne County for the Local Sanitary Sewer 

Improvements to Reduce Sanitary Sewer Overflows (SSOs) in the Evergreen 
Farmington System Project 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-02- 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy applied for and received a Certificate of Coverage from the 
Michigan Department of Environmental Quality for the Watershed Based Storm Water Permit; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, The goal of identifying and eliminating sanitary sewer overflows (SSO) in the 
Evergreen Farmington Sewer District was listed as part of the efforts to restore the Rouge River 
in the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Initiative of the Watershed Based Storm Water Permit 
and; 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy obtained grant funding for the local sanitary sewer improvements 
to reduce SSOs in the Evergreen Farmington System from the Rouge River National Wet 
Weather Demonstration Project and Wayne County; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the agreement between Wayne County and the 
City of Troy for the Rouge SSO Grant is hereby APPROVED with the City share being 
$315,000 of the total $525,000 project cost.  The City of Troy’s share would be funded by the 
Capital Sewer account and the Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby AUTHORIZED to execute 
the Interagency Agreement documents. 
 
E-13  Education and Training Budget for City Council 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 21, 2005 
 

- 6 - 

a)  Travel Authorization and Approval to Expend Funds for Troy City Council Member 
Lambert's Travel Expenses - National League of Cities Congress of Cities 
Conference and National League of Cities Leadership Summit 

  
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution # 2005-02- 
  
RESOLVED, That Council Member Lambert is AUTHORIZED to attend the National League of 
Cities 2005 Congress of Cities Conference in Charlotte, NC from December 6-10, 2005 and the 
National League of Cities Leadership Summit in Cambridge, MA from August 25-27, 2005 in 
accordance with accounting procedures of the City of Troy. 
  
  
b) Travel Authorization and Approval to Expend Funds for Troy City Council Member 

Beltramini's Travel Expenses - National League of Cities Congress of Cities 
Conference and the May Meeting of the FAIR Committee 

  
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution # 2005-02- 
  
RESOLVED, That Council Member Beltramini is AUTHORIZED to attend the National League 
of Cities 2005 Congress of Cities Conference in Charlotte, NC from December 6-10, 2005, the 
Power of Democratic Governance Leadership Training Seminar from April 21-23, 2005 in New 
Orleans, LA and a summer meeting of the NLC Democratic Governance Transition Panel (on a 
date and at a location to be determined) in accordance with accounting procedures of the City 
of Troy. 
 
E-14  Sole Source – Nuisance Goose Control Services for Sanctuary Lake and Sylvan 

Glen Golf Courses 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-02- 
 
WHEREAS, Gooseworks Humane Goose Control is the sole known provider of complete 
nuisance goose control services for Southeastern Michigan; and  
 
WHEREAS, Gooseworks Humane Goose Control has been under contract the past three years 
providing nuisance goose control services at Sylvan Glen Golf Course and provided services at 
Sanctuary Lake for 2004; and 
 
WHEREAS, Gooseworks Humane Goose Control has successfully completed the required 
training and obtained the goose egg and nest destruction, roundup (capture) and transportation 
permits from the Michigan Department of Natural Resources (DNR.) 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That comprehensive nuisance goose control services 
for a period of nine (9) months at Sanctuary Lake and Sylvan Glen Golf Courses be provided by 
Gooseworks Humane Goose Control, the sole known provider, at an estimated total cost of 
$12,600.00; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 21, 2005 
 

- 7 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is contingent upon contractor submission of 
properly executed contract documents, including insurance certificates, and any other contract 
requirements. 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment is limited to not more than twice nor longer than five (5) minutes on any 
item, unless so permitted by the Chair, in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the 
City Council, Article 15, as amended May 3, 2004. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair during the Public Comment section under item 12.“F” of the agenda. Other 
than asking questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall 
not interrupt or debate with members of the public during their comments. For those 
addressing City Council, petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time 
that may be extended with the majority consent of Council and all other interested 
people, their time may be limited to not more than twice nor longer than five (5) minutes 
on any item, unless so permitted by the Chair, in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 15, as amended May 3, 2004. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Downtown 
Development Authority; b) City Council Appointments: Cable Advisory Committee; 
Municipal Building Authority 

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council.  Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceed the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing).  Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 21, 2005 
 

- 8 - 

 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR with 
COUNCIL APPROVAL to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
(a) Mayoral Appointments 
 
Downtown Development Authority 
Mayor, Council Approval (13) – 4 years 
 
 Term expires 07-01-2005 (Student) 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Culpepper, Michael W 09/30/08 
Frankel, Stuart 09/30/07 
Hay, David R 09/30/07 
Hodges, Michele 09/30/05 
Kennis, William 09/30/06 
Kiriluk, Alan M 09/30/08 
MacLeish, Daniel 09/30/05 
Price, Carol A 09/30/07 
Reschke, Ernest C 09/30/06 
Schilling, Louise E 09/30/08 
Schroeder, Douglas J 09/30/06 
Weiss, Harvey 09/30/05 
Wong, Fred (Student) 07/01/04 
York, G Thomas 09/30/08 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
None on File 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
(b) City Council Appointments 
 
Cable Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 years 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 21, 2005 
 

- 9 - 

 Term expires 02-28-2008 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Bixby, Jerry L 02-28-06 
Butt, Shazad 11-30-05 
Hughes, Richard 02-28-06 
Marinos, Penny 02-28-07 
Manzon, Alan 09-30-06 
Lin, Fan (Student) 07-01-05 
Voigt, W Kent 02-28-07 
Wehrung, Bryan H 02-28-05 
  
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Godlewski, W S 12/28/01-07/01/03- 

07/2005 
01/07/02- 
07/07/03 

Kuschinsky, Dick 10/11/01-06/19/03 
06/2005 

11/05/01 

Payne, Timothy P 02/25/04-02/2006 03/08/04 
Powers, Brian M 10/15/02-10/2004 10/21/02 
Pritzloff, Mark 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Shier, Frank 02/18/03-02/2005 03/03/03 
Solomon, Mark R 01/21/05 02/07/05 
Victor, Robert 06/03/03-06/2005 02/02/04 
Wattles, Brian J 07/10/01 07/23/01 
Weisgerber, William 07/14/03-07/2005 07/21/03 
Wheeler, Nancy 03/08/04-03/2006 04/12/04 
 
Municipal Building Authority 
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 years 
 
 Term expires 01-31-2008 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Almassian, Carolyn 01/31/06 
Freliga, Victor P 01/31/08 
Krokosky, Robert J 01/31/05 
Lamerato, John M 01/31/06 
Miesiak, Conrad E 01/31/06 
 
INTERESTED  APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Bluhm, Kenneth 11/24/00 12/04/00 
Courtney, Kenneth 03/12/04-03/2006 03/15/04 
Pritzloff, Mark 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 21, 2005 
 

- 10 - 

Schultz, Robert M 01/15/01 01/22/01 
Shah, Jayshree 01/12/04-04/23/04-

04/2006 
02/02/04- 
05/03/04 

Shier, Frank 02/18/03-02/2005 03/03/03 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-2 Load Restrictions 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That axle load limits of 6,000 pounds per axle and 8,500 pounds per tandem 
assembly are hereby ESTABLISHED AND IMPOSED upon vehicles traveling upon streets and 
roads of the City of Troy, during periods prescribed in Chapter 94, Axle Load Ordinance, of the 
Code of the City of Troy for “frost law” limitations, which streets are listed in Attachment “A” of a 
report from the Public Works Director dated January 25, 2005 and a copy of said report and 
attachments shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-3 Request for a Study Session for the Purpose of Discussing an Ethics Policy 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That a study session is scheduled, for the purpose of discussing an ethics policy, 
in the Council Board Room of Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on   
  , 2005. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-4 Rules of Procedure – Proposed Amendments 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-02- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That City Council’s Rules and Procedures are hereby AMENDED as presented. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 21, 2005 
 

- 11 - 

Yes: 
No: 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   
a) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment for Section 03.21, Procedure (ZOTA 210) – 

February 28, 2005  
b) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment for Section 04.20 Definitions, Section 22.30 Uses 

Permitted Subject to Special Use Approval – B-3 District, Section 28.25 Conditional Uses 
Permitted – M-1 District (ZOTA 209) – February 28, 2005 

 
G-2 Green Memorandums:   
a) Snow Emergency Ordinance 
  
 
COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 
 
H-1  Mayor Louise Schilling Requested to Discuss Modification of the April 19, 2004 

Resolution Regarding Campaign Finance Statements on Web Page  
 the Text of Which is Delineated Below 
 
 
Regular City Council Meeting – April 19, 2004 
 
G-8  Memorandum – Re: Campaign Finance Statements on Web Page 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Howrylak   
Seconded by Lambert  
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council has recently discussed the need for more ethical behavior 
from members of the City Council. 
 
WHEREAS, The State of Michigan currently posts on their web site the candidate committee 
campaign finance reports for all candidates that run for State office. 
 
WHEREAS, All local election Campaign Finance Act required campaign statements are 
available for viewing by the public at the Oakland County Clerk’s Office. 
 
WHEREAS, This Council wishes to maintain an open and honest relationship with all residents 
and businesses in Troy. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the office of the City Clerk for the City of Troy shall keep and have 
available for public inspection a hard copy of all required Candidate Campaign Finance Act 
statements filed with the Oakland County Clerk’s office by all candidate committees involved in 
the election of candidates for the City of Troy offices; Mayor and Council Member; and 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 21, 2005 
 

- 12 - 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That all candidate committees whose Campaign Finance Act 
statements will be made available in the Office of the Clerk for the City of Troy will be contacted 
for their voluntary approval to have their campaign finance reports posted on the City’s web 
site; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City of Troy will post on its web site, the campaign 
finance reports from all candidate committees that voluntarily authorize the posting of their 
reports for a time of no less than 6 (six) years; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That any committee that does not provide the authorization will 
have listed next to their committee the statement that “Authorization to post the committee’s 
campaign finance reports were denied by the committee.”  
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That when the County of Oakland electronically posts candidate 
campaign committee finance forms on its web site, that the City of Troy provides a link to that 
location from its web site. 
 
Proposed 1st  Amendment to Resolution 
 
Resolution 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution regarding “Campaign Finance Statements on the Web Page” 
be AMENDED by INSERTING, “independent committees and Political Action Committees 
(PAC) who have spent money fostering a candidacy for a local office. “ BEFORE “that 
voluntarily authorize the posting of their reports. . ..” 
 
Proposed 2nd  Amendment to Resolution  
 
Resolution 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Eisenbacher    
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution regarding “Campaign Finance Statements on the Web Page” 
be AMENDED by INSERTING, “BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That pre- and post-election 
statements be updated at seven (7) days after the initial filing and all statements be updated by 
the City Clerk on the last business day of the month as necessary, until appropriate internet 
links can be made.” BEFORE “BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED”. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Postpone 
 
Resolution #2004-04-211 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Schilling 
 
RESOLVED, That agenda item “Campaign Finance Statements on the Web Page” be 
POSTPONED until the next Regular City Council meeting scheduled for Monday, May 3, 2004. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 21, 2005 
 

- 13 - 

 
Yes: Stine, Schilling, 
No: Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Lambert  
MOTION FAILED 
 
Vote on Proposed 2nd Amendment to Resolution  
 
Resolution #2004-04-212 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Eisenbacher    
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution regarding “Campaign Finance Statements on the Web Page” 
be AMENDED by INSERTING, “BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That pre- and post-election 
statements be updated seven (7) days after the initial filing and all statements, until links can be 
made, be updated by the City Clerk on the last business day of the month as necessary.” 
BEFORE “BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED”. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Lambert  
No: Stine Schilling 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Proposed 1st  Amendment to Resolution 
 
Resolution #2004-04-213 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution regarding “Campaign Finance Statements on the Web Page” 
be AMENDED by INSERTING, “independent committees and Political Action Committees 
(PAC) who have spent money fostering a candidacy for a local office. “ BEFORE “that 
voluntarily authorize the posting of their reports. . ..” 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Lambert 
No: Schilling Stine 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
Vote on Amended Resolution 
 
Resolution #2004-04-214 
Moved by Howrylak   
Seconded by Lambert 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council has recently discussed the need for more ethical behavior 
from members of the City Council. 
 
WHEREAS, The State of Michigan currently posts on their web site the candidate committee 
campaign finance reports for all candidates that run for State office. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 21, 2005 
 

- 14 - 

WHEREAS, All local election Campaign Finance Act required campaign statements are 
available for viewing by the public at the Oakland County Clerk’s Office. 
WHEREAS, This Council wishes to maintain an open and honest relationship with all residents 
and businesses in Troy. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the office of the City Clerk for the City of Troy SHALL KEEP AND 
HAVE AVAILABLE for public inspection a hard copy of all required Candidate Campaign 
Finance Act statements filed with the Oakland County Clerk’s office by all candidate committees 
involved in the election of candidates for the City of Troy offices; Mayor and Council Member; 
and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That all candidate committees whose Campaign Finance Act 
statements will be made AVAILABLE in the Office of the Clerk for the City of Troy will be 
CONTACTED for their voluntary approval to have their campaign finance reports posted on the 
City’s web site; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City of Troy WILL POST on its web site, the campaign 
finance reports from all candidate committees, independent committees and Political Action 
Committees (PAC) who have spent money fostering a candidacy for a local office that 
voluntarily authorize the posting of their reports for a time of no less than 6 (six) years; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That any committee that does not provide the authorization will 
HAVE LISTED next to their committee the statement that “Authorization to post the committee’s 
campaign finance reports were denied by the committee.”  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That pre- and post-election statements be UPDATED seven (7)  
days after the initial filing and all statements, until links can be made, by the City Clerk on the 
last business day of the month as necessary; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That when the County of Oakland electronically posts candidate 
campaign committee finance forms on its web site, that the City of Troy PROVIDE a link to that 
location from its web site. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak Lambert  
No: Stine, Schilling 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 21, 2005 
 

- 15 - 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Downtown Development Authority/Final – September 15, 2004 
b) Troy Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – October 5, 2004  
c) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – December 1, 2004  
d) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – December 1, 2004  
e) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – December 2, 2004 
f) Library Board/Final – December 9, 2004  
g) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – December 13, 2004 
h) Troy Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – January 4, 2005 
i) Library Board/Draft – January 13, 2005  
j) Troy CAC Advisory Committee/Draft – January 19, 2005  
k) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – January 25, 2005  
l) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – January 25, 2005  
m) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – February 2, 2005 
n) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – February 3, 2005 
o) Library Board/Draft – February 4, 2005  
p) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – February 14, 2005  
q) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – February 16, 2005 
 

J-2 Department Reports:   
a) Building and Zoning – Permits Issued During the Month of January, 2005  
b) City Council Expense Report – December, 2004  
c) Monthly Financial Report – January, 2005  
d) Council Member Beltramini’s Report from the National League of Cities Congress of 

Cities and Exposition, November 30 – December 4, 2004, Indianapolis, IN  
e) Mayor Louise Schilling Requested That The High Performance Governing Body Report 

Be Resubmitted to Council on the February 21, 2005 Agenda 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 21, 2005 
 

- 16 - 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter to Tim Richnak from Mr. Tom Strat, Thanking Janet Kidd and Dominic Mauro for 

Their Efforts to Resolve a Water Leak in His Office Building on Crooks  
b) Letter to Chief Craft from Lieutenant Colonel L. E. Reynolds, United States Marine 

Corps, Thanking the Troy Police Department for Assistance During a Funeral Procession  
c) Letter to Jeanette Bennett from Jean Farris, Michigan Public Purchasing Officers 

Association, Thanking Her for Her Help with the 2005 Regional Conference  
d) Letter to Chief Nelson from Randy and Linda Cunningham, Thanking Lieutenant 

Riesterer, Assistant Chief Allen, Captain Godlewski, Lieutenant C. Roberts, Staff 
Lieutenant Matlick, and Firefighters R. Bittner, J. Haney, G. Lanctot, M. Leavitt, S. 
Murphy, K. St. Cyr, P. White and T. Wren for the “Dining with the Fire Department” 
Evening at Station 3  

e) Letter to Chief Craft from Christina Barney, Health Education Department – Boulan Park 
Middle School, Thanking Officer Kaptur for Her Presentation About Drugs  

f) Letter to Carla Vaughan from Representative Robert Gosselin, Commending Her for the 
City of Troy Senior Citizens Program 

 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 
J-5  Calendar 
 
J-6  MDOT Response to Correspondence from David Krall of White Chapel Cemetery 
 
J-7  Community Media Network (CMN) Draft Contract 
 
J-8  Preliminary Planned Unit Development Review (Public Input Meeting) – PUD-004 

(“The Monarch”) – North Side of Big Beaver Road, East of Alpine and West of 
McClure, Section 20 

 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1  No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Public comment is limited to not more than twice nor longer than five (5) minutes on any 
item, unless so permitted by the Chair, in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the 
City Council, Article 15, as amended May 3, 2004. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA February 21, 2005 
 

- 17 - 

 
RECESSED 
 
RECONVENED 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, February 28, 2005 ...................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, March 07, 2005........................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, March 21, 2005........................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, March 28, 2005........................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, April 04, 2005 ............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, April 18, 2005 ............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, April 25, 2005 ............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, May 9, 2005................................................................ Regular City Council 
Monday, May 16, 2005.............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, May 23, 2005.............................................................. Regular City Council 

 



 1

February 11, 2005 
 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
  
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – POSTPONED ITEM (FROM JANUARY 24, 2005) – 

REZONING APPLICATION – West side of Rochester Road, South of 
Trinway, Section 10 – R-1C to R-1T (Z 699) 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
At the December 14, 2004 Regular Meeting, the Planning Commission determined that 
the rezoning application is consistent with the depth of the Medium Density Residential 
classification shown on the Future Land Use Plan, and recommended approval of the 
rezoning request.  City Council considered this item on January 24, 2005, and 
postponed the item to February 21, 2005, “to provide the petitioner, the Planning 
Department and the Planning Commission with the opportunity to review alternate 
development options of the property to address concerns brought forward by City 
Council”.  Specifically, the major concerns were depth and compatibility.   
 
The Planning Commission reviewed the item at the February 1 Special/Study Meeting 
and the February 8, 2005 Regular Meeting.  At the February 8 meeting the Planning 
Commission passed the following resolution: 
 

Resolution # PC-2005-02-023 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1C to R-1T rezoning request, located on the west side of 
Rochester Road and south of Trinway, within Section 10, being approximately 
2.74 acres in size, be granted, for the following reasons:  
 

1. The rezoning application is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan. 
 

2. The rezoning application is compatible with adjacent land uses and zoning 
districts. 

 
3. The depth of the parcel (570 feet) is less than the depth of other parcels 

fronting on Rochester Road that were recently rezoned to R-1T.  Specifically, 
these parcels include Maya’s Meadows in Section 14 (617-foot depth).  The 
Fairways in Section 11 (1221-foot depth) and the undeveloped parcel on the 
north side of Lamb Road in Section 14 (670-foot depth).  

bittnera
Text Box
D-01



 2

4. Retaining a portion of the property as R-1C would result in a small parcel that 
would be difficult to develop under R-1T provisions.  Furthermore, it is not 
desirable for a site condominium development and a traditional condominium 
development to share a street.  

 
Yes:  All present (9) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
The frontage of the parcel is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan.  The proposed 
depth of the R-1T zone is similar to the depth of the B-2 Community Business District 
zone to the south.  The R-1T Zoning District is an appropriate buffer between a major 
thoroughfare and a single-family residential district.  The application is compatible with 
abutting uses and zoning districts.  City Management concurs with the Planning 
Commission recommendation and recommends approval of the rezoning application. 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner is Robert S. Binder Building.  The applicant is Fred Binder.  
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the west side of Rochester Road, south of Trinway, in 
Section 10. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 2.74 acres in area. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
A single family home presently sits on the property. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
R-1C One Family Residential District. 
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
R-1T One Family Attached District. 
 
Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The applicant proposes to construct a condominium development on the property. 
 
Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Single family residential. 
 
South: Single family residential. 



 3

East: Single family residential. 
 
West: Single family residential.  
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
South: R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
East: R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
West: R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in the Proposed R-1T Zoning District and Potential Build-out 
Scenario:  
 
 PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 
 All principal uses permitted and as regulated in the nearest R-1A through R-1E One 

Family Residential Districts. 
 
 Two family dwellings developed in accordance with the provisions of the 

Condominium Act, MCL 559.1, et seq. 
 
 One family attached dwellings as defined in sub-Section 04.20.44 developed in 

accordance with the provisions of the Condominium Act, MCL 559.1, et seq. 
 

  Accessory buildings and uses customarily incidental to the above principal uses. 
 
 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL: 
 
 Churches and other facilities normally incidental thereto. 
 
 Schools. 
 
 Child care centers. 
 
 Utility and public service buildings and uses. 
 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
The parcel fronts on Rochester Road. 
 
Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The applicant will be required to provide on-site storm water detention.  



 4

Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are no significant natural features located on 
the property.  A site visit indicated there is an open drain on the western half of the 
property.  It will need to be determined during the site plan review process whether 
there are any wetlands on the property.  There are also  woodlands on the property.  
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The Future Land Use Plan classifies the Rochester Road frontage in this area as 
Medium Density Residential.  The Medium Density Residential classification correlates 
with the R-1T Zoning District in the Plan.  On the surface, the rezoning application is 
consistent with the Future Land Use Plan.  However, the depth of the subject parcel is 
570 feet.  The exact depth of the Medium Density Residential classification cannot be 
determined from the Future Land Use Plan because it is conceptual in nature.  If the 
City Council agrees with the Planning Commission and determines that the depth of the 
parcel is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan, the application would be considered 
to be consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan. 
 
Compliance with Location Standards: 
 
Article 12.40.01 states that the R-1T (One-family Attached Residential) District may be 
applied to property when one or more of the following conditions prevail: 
 
 (A) When the application of such a classification is consistent with the intent of the 

Master Land Use Plan, and therefore involves areas indicated as medium density 
or high density residential. 

 
 (B) When the application of such a classification would be an integral part of a 

planned residential development approach, such as a planned neighborhood 
development (34.50.00), wherein the overall density is consistent with the intent of 
the Master Land Use Plan. 

 
The Planning Commission determined that the depth of the parcel is consistent with the 
depth of the area classified on the Future Land Use Plan as Medium Density 
Residential.  If the City Council has the same finding of fact, the application would meet 
the standard of (A) above and therefore meet the Location Standards of the R-1T 
District. 
 
Research shows that other R-1T parcels located on Rochester Road within the Medium 
Density Residential classification exceed 570 feet in depth (see attached table).   
 
 



 5

Attachments: 
1. Maps. 
2. Table:  R-1T Parcel Sizes and Depths. 
3. Minutes from December 14, 2004 Planning Commission Regular Meeting. 
4. Minutes from January 24, 2005 City Council Meeting. 
5. Minutes from February 1, 2005 Planning Commission Regular Meeting. 
6. Minutes from February 8, 2005 Planning Commission Regular Meeting. 
7. Letter from petitioner, dated November 10, 2004. 
8. Two (2) letters of opposition, both dated December 14, 2004. 
9. Synopsis of Comments From January 24, 2005 Troy City Council Meeting. 

 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM/PPB 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File (Z 699) 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z 699 BRIGGS CROSSING SEC 10\CC Postponed Item 02 21 05.doc 





brattopp
Polygon



brattopp
Polygon







R-1T ZONING DISTRICTS 
PARCEL SIZES AND DEPTHS 

 
Development/Units Location File # Parcel 

Size 
Parcel Depth  
(from ROW) 

Enclave of Troy 
36 units 

Northwest corner of Wattles & John R 
Section13 

SP-92 6.6 ac. 600’ from Wattles 
563’ from John R 

Maya’s Meadows 
28 units 

East side of Rochester Road, north of Wattles, 
Section 14 

SP-857 5.3 ac. 617’ from Rochester 

Charleston Club Condominiums 
12 units 

North side of Long Lake Road, west of 
Livernois, Section 9 

SP-844 0.6 ac. 333’ from Long Lake 

Harrington Park Condominium 
34 units 

North side of Long Lake Road, west of 
Livernois, Section 9 

SP-861 5.9 ac. 333’ from Long Lake 

Fountain Park Condominium 
14 units 

West side of Rochester Road, north of Wattles, 
Section 14 

SP-871 2.7 ac. 336’ from Rochester 

Sandalwood North of Troy 
54 units 

South side of South Boulevard, west of 
Rochester Rd., Section 3 

SP-854 10.1 ac. 1037’ from South 

Sandalwood South of Troy 
54 units 

West side of Rochester Road, south of South 
Blvd., Section 3 

SP-853 9.45 ac. 1255’ from Rochester  

Undeveloped 
 

East side of Rochester Road, north of Wattles 
Road, Section 14 

 14.11 
ac. 

670’ from Rochester 

The Fairways 
100 units 

East side of Rochester Road, south side of 
Square Lake Road, Section 11 

SP-702 19.9 ac. 1221’ from Rochester 
772’ from Square Lake 

Wattles Creek Townhouses 
210 units 

South side of Wattles, west of I-75, Section 21. SP-180 28.9 ac. 2741’ from Wattles 

Undeveloped South side of Long Lake, west of Rochester, 
Section 15. 

 14.5 ac. 924’ from Wattles 

 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z 699 BRIGGS CROSSING SEC 10\R-1T Parcels 12 14 04.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 14, 2004 

7. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 699) – Proposed Briggs Crossing 
Condominium, West side of Rochester Road, South of Trinway, Section 10 – From R-1C 
(One Family Residential) to R-1T (One Family Attached) 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
rezoning.  Mr. Savidant referenced three handouts relating to the proposed rezoning 
request.  They are:  (1) an amended page 2 of the Planning Department report with 
respect to natural features; (2) a table identifying R-1T zoning districts parcel sizes and 
depths; and (3) a letter of opposition received today.   
 
Mr. Savidant cited the sizes and depths of specific parcels located within the R-1T 
zoning district from former rezoning requests.  Mr. Savidant reported that Article 
12.40.01 states that the R-1T zoning district may be applied to property when the 
application of such a classification is consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use 
Plan, and therefore involves areas indicated as medium density or high density 
residential.  Mr. Savidant said the subject application would meet this standard and the 
locational standards of the R-1T district should the Planning Commission determine that 
the depth of the parcel is consistent with the depth of the area classified on the Future 
Land Use Plan as Medium Density Residential.   
 
The petitioner, Fred Binder of 5215 Rochester Road, Troy, was present.  Mr. Binder said 
he thinks the request fits within the Future Land Use Plan, and it does appear that 
similar depths have been approved in the past.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain referenced the Future Land Use Plan with respect to the depth of the 
R-1T zoning versus the commercial to the south.  He said it appears that the subject 
parcel would be deeper or the same depth as the commercial to the south.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-12-154 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that the R-1C to R-1T rezoning request, located on the west side of Rochester Road and 
south of Trinway, within Section 10, being approximately 2.74 acres in size, be granted, 
for the following reason:  
 

1. That it complies with the Future Land Use Plan of the City of Troy.   
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Strat, Waller, Wright 
No: Littman 
Absent: Khan, Schultz, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Littman said he thinks the parcel goes too deep when you look at the neighborhood 
and how it is put together.  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Final January 24, 2005 

C-3 Rezoning Application – West Side of Rochester Road, South of Trinway, 
Section 10 - R-1C to R-1T (Z 699) 

 
Resolution  
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That the R-1C to R-1T rezoning request, located on the west side of 
Rochester Road, south of Trinway, Section 10, being 2.74 acres in size, is hereby 
GRANTED, as recommended by Planning Commission and City Management. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Postpone 
 
Resolution #2005-01-037 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That the R-1C to R-1T rezoning request, located on the west side of 
Rochester Road, south of Trinway, Section 10, being 2.74 acres in size, as 
recommended by the Planning Commission and City Management, is hereby 
POSTPONED, until the Regular City Council Meeting Scheduled for Monday, February 
21, 2005 to provide the Petitioner, the Planning Department and the Planning 
Commission with the opportunity to review alternative development options of the 
property to address concerns brought forward by City Council. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 



















CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 7, 2005 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, February 7, 2005, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:31 PM. 

Reverend John W. Shearer – Central Woodward Christian Church gave the Invocation and the 
Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 

ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin E. Beltramini  
Cristina Broomfield  
David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak (Absent) 
David A. Lambert  
Jeanne M. Stine 
 

Resolution to Excuse Council Member Howrylak    
 
Resolution #2005-02-053 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
RESOLVED, That Council Member Howrylak’s absence at the Regular City Council meeting 
and Closed Session of February 7, 2005 is EXCUSED due to being out of the City. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Howrylak   

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentation:  Fire Lieutenant Chuck Riesterer accepted “Fire Inspector of the Year” 
Award from the Oakland County Fire Protection Society. 

 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Preliminary Site Plan Review and Amended Consent Order and Judgment (SP 883-
C) – Heartland Health Care, Southeast Corner of South Boulevard and Livernois, 
Section 3 – O-1 and R-1B 

 
Resolution #2005-02-054 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  

bittnera
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 7, 2005 
 

- 2 - 

RESOLVED, That the attached proposed First Amended Consent Order and Judgment for the 
Property located at the southeast corner of South Boulevard and Livernois Road, is hereby 
APPROVED, contingent upon the approval of the preliminary site plan that is attached and 
incorporated by reference, and that the Mayor, City Clerk and Assistant City Attorney are 
AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the corrected documents as set on the table, which are to be 
held in escrow and not recorded until after the closing on the Property that is the subject of the 
First Amended Consent Order and Judgment, which is intended to be purchased by Heathcare 
and Retirement Corporation of America. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak   
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1  Request for Parking Variance – 5991 Livernois 
 
Resolution #2005-02-055 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
WHEREAS, Article XLIII (43.00.00) requires that in granting a parking variance, the City Council 
shall find that there are practical difficulties justifying the variances; and  
 
WHEREAS, That the petitioner has revised his plans such that the parking requirements of the 
Zoning Ordinance have been met; and  
 
WHEREAS, The petitioner has submitted a letter requesting withdrawal of the variance request.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Mike Elias, 5991 Livernois, for 
waiver of six additional parking spaces be DENIED. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak   
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2005-02-056 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Items E-9 and E-12, which shall be considered after Consent 
Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: All-6 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 7, 2005 
 

- 3 - 

No: None 
Absent:  Howrylak   
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2005-02-056-E-2  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the Special/Study Meeting of January 24, 2005 at 6:00 PM, 
and the Regular Meeting of January 24, 2005 at 7:30 PM be APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): None Proposed 
 
E-4  Cancellation of Regular City Council Meeting/Liquor Violation Hearing Scheduled 

for Wednesday, February 23, 2005 
 
Resolution #2005-02-056-E-4 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the CANCELLATION of the Regular 
City Council Meeting/Liquor Violation Hearing scheduled for Wednesday, February 23, 2005 as 
there are no cases to be placed before the City Council and that notice be POSTED AND 
PUBLISHED. 
 
E-5  Standard Purchasing Resolution 10: Travel Authorization and Approval to Expend 

Funds for Troy City Council Members’ Travel Expenses – 2005 Michigan Municipal 
League Legislative Conference on March 23, 2005 at the Lansing Center 

 
Resolution #2005-02-056-E-5 
 
RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Council Members are AUTHORIZED to attend the 2005 
MML Legislative Conference at the Lansing Center on March 23, 2005 in accordance with 
accounting procedures of the City of Troy. 
 
E-6  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Bid Award – Sole Bidder – Auction Services 
 
Resolution #2005-02-056-E-6 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to provide auctioneering services is hereby AWARDED to the sole 
bidder, Mid-Thumb Auctioneering SVC LLC, of Goodells, MI at commission rates contained in 
the bid tabulation opened January 5, 2005, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting, which will expire March 20, 2007.    
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is contingent upon contractor submission of 
properly executed proposal and bid documents including bonds, insurance certificates, and all 
other specified requirements.  
 
E-7 Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: State of Michigan MiDEAL Program – Four 

Wheel Drive Pick-Up Truck 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 7, 2005 
 

- 4 - 

Resolution #2005-02-056-E-7 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to purchase one (1) Dodge, Model DR6L61, four-wheel drive pick-
up truck from Bill Snethkamp Lansing Dodge, Inc. is hereby APPROVED through the State of 
Michigan MiDEAL Program (formerly the Extended Purchasing Program) at an estimated cost 
of $21,544.78. 
 
E-8 Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Hauling/Disposal of 

Dirt and Debris 
 
Resolution #2005-02-056-E-8 
 
WHEREAS, On March 15, 2004, one-year contracts with an option to renew for one additional 
year to provide hauling and disposal services of dirt and debris from the DPW Yard was 
awarded to the low bidders, Jackie’s Transport, Inc., Luke’s Trucking and Excavating, LLC, and 
A & B Trucking, Inc. (Resolution 2004-03-144-E9), and 
 
WHEREAS, All awarded bidders have agreed to exercise the one-year option to renew under 
the same prices, terms, and conditions. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the options to renew the contracts are hereby 
EXERCISED with Jackie’s Transport, Inc., Luke’s Trucking and Excavating, LLC, and A & B 
Trucking, Inc. to provide hauling and disposal of dirt and debris under the same contract prices, 
terms, and conditions for one-year expiring March 15, 2006; and if the price of on-road diesel 
fuel exceeds $2.00/gallon during the contract term, the City is AUTHORIZED to pay a $.25/ton 
fuel surcharge to Luke’s Trucking and Excavating, LLC for hauling broken asphalt. 
 
E-10 Approval of Conditioned Purchase Agreement for Right-of-Way: Sidewalk Gap 

Project, Sidwell #88-20-01-476-025, 2775 East Square Lake Road – Jose M. and 
Christina J. Perez 

 
Resolution #2005-02-056-E-10 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agreement to Purchase between Jose M. and Christina J. Perez, owners 
of the property having Sidwell #88-20-01-476-025, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of 
right-of-way for a Sidewalk Gap Completion project is APPROVED in the amount of 
$37,500.00, plus closing costs. 
 
E-11 Private Agreement for Grace Christian Learning Center Parking Lot – Project No. 

02.951.3 
 
Resolution #2005-02-056-E-11 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Grace Christian Learning Center is hereby 
APPROVED for the installation of paving, storm sewer and sidewalk on the site and in the 
adjacent right-of-way, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the 
documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 7, 2005 
 

- 5 - 

E-13 Traffic Committee Recommendations – January 19, 2005 
 
a) Removal of the YIELD Sign and Installation of a STOP Sign – Buckingham Place at 

Brentwood 
 
Resolution #2005-02-056-E-13a 
 
RESOLVED, that Traffic Control Order 05-01-SS be ISSUED for removal of the YIELD sign and 
installation of a STOP sign on Buckingham Place at Brentwood. 
 
b) Removal of the YIELD Sign and Installation of a STOP Sign – Breeze Hill at 

Brentwood 
 
Resolution #2005-02-056-E-13b 
 
RESOLVED, that Traffic Control Order 05-02-SS be ISSUED for removal of the YIELD sign and 
installation of a STOP sign on Breeze Hill Place at Brentwood. 
 
E-14 Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: MITN Cooperative - Copiers 
 
Resolution #2005-02-056-E-14 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to provide copiers from Albin Business Centers on an ongoing 
basis is hereby APPROVED through the MITN Cooperative Contract #00-01-922 established 
by the City of Farmington Hills bid process under the same pricing structure, terms, and 
conditions, which expires August 13, 2006, with any copier agreement executed by then 
extending for a period of sixty- (60) months.   
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-9 Load Restrictions – Removed by City Management 
 
E-12 Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Process Award – Automatic Meter 

Reading System 
 
Resolution #2005-02-057 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to provide an Automatic Meter Reading System for the 
Department of Public Works Water Division is hereby AWARDED to SLC Meter Service, Inc. of 
Davisburg, MI, the lowest, most qualified bidder as a result of a Best Value process, which the 
Troy City Council determines to be in the public interest for an estimated net total cost of 
$78,350.00, which includes Psion system trade-ins, as outlined in the bid tabulation opened 
October 15, 2004, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 7, 2005 
 

- 6 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is contingent upon contractor submission of 
proper contract and proposal documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements.   
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak   
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:None; b) City 
Council Appointments: Election Commission; Historic District Commission; Troy 
Youth Council 

 
(b)  City Council Appointments 
 
Resolution #2005-02-058 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Election Commission 
Appointed by Council (3) – 1 year 
 
Timothy Dewan Term expires 01-31-2006 
 
Historic District Commission 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 years 
 
Robert Hudson Unexpired term expires 05-15-2006 
 
Troy Youth Council 
Appointed by Council – 1 years 
 
Karen Wullaert Unexpired term expires 08-31-05 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
F-2 Reckless Driving Ordinance Amendment 
 
Resolution #2005-02-059 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 7, 2005 
 

- 7 - 

Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That an ordinance amendment to Chapter 106 – Traffic Code, Section 5.14, is 
hereby ADOPTED as recommended by the City Attorney.  A copy of this ordinance shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
F-3 Approval of Contract with MDOT for Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) 

Projects – Project No. 00.106.5; 00.108.5; 01.103.5 
 
Resolution #2005-02-060 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That Contract No. 04-5516 between the Michigan Department of Transportation 
and the City of Troy for CMAQ Projects, Project No. 00.106.5; 00.108.5; and 01.103.5, is 
hereby APPROVED and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the 
agreement. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
F-4 Contract Ratification – MAP (Clerical and Non-Sworn Employees) and City of Troy 
 
Resolution #2005-02-061 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That a collective bargaining agreement between the City of Troy and MAP for the 
period July 1, 2004 through June 30, 2007 is hereby RATIFIED by the City Council of the City 
of Troy, and the Employer, the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the final 
agreement. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Howrylak 
 
F-5 Authorization to Make Unconditioned Offers to Purchase Right-of-Way for Big 

Beaver Road Improvements – Rochester to Dequindre, Project No. 01.105.5 
 
a) Authorization to Make Unconditioned Offers to Purchase Right-of-Way for Big 

Beaver Road Improvements – Rochester to Dequindre – Project #01.105.5 – 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 7, 2005 
 

- 8 - 

Sidwell #88-20-25-229-029 – 2988 East Big Beaver Road – Owners: UEOS 
Dequindre, L.L.C. 

 
Resolution #2005-02-062a 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, In order to proceed with the proposed Big Beaver Road Improvements, between 
Rochester and Dequindre, it is necessary for the City to obtain the needed right-of-way from the 
property owners of 2988 East Big Beaver Road, UEOS Dequindre, L.L.C., having Sidwell #88-
20-25-229-029; 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the Real Estate and Development Department is hereby 
AUTHORIZED to make an Unconditioned Offer to purchase right-of-way for Parcel  #88-20-25-
229-029 in the amount of $97,500.00, plus closing costs. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Howrylak 
 
c) Request for Authorization to Make Unconditioned Offers to Purchase Right-of-Way 

for Big Beaver Road Improvements – Rochester to Dequindre – Project #01.105.5 – 
Sidwell #88-20-25-229-028 – 2966 East Big Beaver Road – Owners: TBB 
Associates, L.L.C. 

 
Resolution #2005-02-062c 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, In order to proceed with the proposed Big Beaver Road Improvements, between 
Rochester and Dequindre, it is necessary for the City to obtain the needed right-of-way from the 
property owners of 2966 East Big Beaver Road, TBB Associates, L.L.C., having Sidwell #88-
20-25-229-028; 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the Real Estate and Development Department is hereby 
AUTHORIZED to make an Unconditioned Offer to purchase right-of-way for Parcel  #88-20-25-
229-028 in the amount of $84,000.00, plus closing costs. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
b) Authorization to Institute Court Action for Right-of-Way for Proposed Big Beaver 

Road Improvements – Rochester to Dequindre - Project #01.105.5 – Sidwell #88-20-
25-229-029 – 2988 East Big Beaver Road – Owners: UEOS Dequindre, L.L.C. 

 
 
Resolution #2005-02-063b 
Moved by Beltramini  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 7, 2005 
 

- 9 - 

Seconded by Stine  
 
WHEREAS, In order to proceed with the Big Beaver Road Improvements, between Rochester 
and Dequindre, it is necessary for the City to obtain the needed right-of-way from the property 
owners of 2988 East Big Beaver Road, UEOS, L.L.C., having Sidwell #88-20-25-229-029; 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is AUTHORIZED, if necessary, to institute 
condemnation litigation and to execute and deliver any and all documents and papers, and to 
expend necessary funds expedient for the prosecution of such proceedings or settlement of 
such claims on proceedings by and with the express approval of this Council. 
 
Yes: Lambert, Stine, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield  
No: Eisenbacher  
Absent: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
d) Request for Authorization to Institute Court Action for Right-of-Way for Proposed 

Big Beaver Road Improvements – Rochester to Dequindre - Project #01.105.5 – 
Sidwell #88-20-25-229-028 – 2966 East Big Beaver Road – Owners: TBB 
Associates, L.L.C.  

 
Resolution #2005-02-063d 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
WHEREAS, In order to proceed with the Big Beaver Road Improvements, between Rochester 
and Dequindre, it is necessary for the City to obtain the needed right-of-way from the property 
owners of 2966 East Big Beaver Road, TBB Associates, L.L.C., having Sidwell #88-20-25-229-
028; 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is AUTHORIZED, if necessary, to institute 
condemnation litigation and to execute and deliver any and all documents and papers, and to 
expend necessary funds expedient for the prosecution of such proceedings or settlement of 
such claims on proceedings by and with the express approval of this Council. 
 
Yes: Lambert, Stine, Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield  
No:  Eisenbacher  
Absent: Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
F-6 Standard Purchasing Resolution 11: Rejection of Proposals – Nature Center 

Interpretive Exhibit Fabrication and Installation 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 7, 2005 
 

- 10 - 

Resolution #2005-02-064 
Moved by Stine 
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the Nature Center’s Interpretive Exhibit Fabrication and Installation proposals 
opened September 10, 2004, are hereby REJECTED due to budgetary considerations. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
F-7 Sanctuary Lake Maintenance Operation 
 
Resolution 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
WHEREAS, The City was under an agreement with Douglas Treadwell and Golf Associates to 
maintain Sanctuary Lake Golf Course; and 
 
WHEREAS, The agreement expired on December 31, 2004; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff review finds it more responsive/responsible to manage the course with City 
staff; and 
 
WHEREAS, To effectively assume responsibilities requires additional staff members outside of 
the currently approved budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, City staff will review and report on the operational alternatives following the 2010 
season. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That City Council AUTHORIZES City staff to assume maintenance 
responsibilities with a report and subsequent recommendation following the 2010 season; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That City Council AUTHORIZES one additional full-time MSE-G 
position to supplement the existing golf course maintenance operations along with seasonal 
employees. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend #1 
 
Resolution #2005-02-065 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by STRIKING all occurrences of “2010” and 
replace by INSERTING “2009”. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 7, 2005 
 

- 11 - 

Yes: Schilling, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Lambert, Stine  
No: Beltramini  
Absent:  Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend #2 
 
Resolution #2005-02-066 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine   
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by STRIKING “and report on the operational 
alternatives following the 2009 season” after “review” in the fifth paragraph and INSERTING 
“operational alternatives annually” and STRIKING “with a report and subsequent 
recommendation following the 2009 season” in the sixth paragraph. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend #3 
 
Resolution #2005-02-067 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Broomfield    
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by INSERTING, “BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, 
That City Staff will review and report on operational alternatives and make a recommendation 
no later than following the 2009 season.” 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
Vote on Amended Resolution 
 
Resolution #2005-02-068 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
WHEREAS, The City was under an agreement with Douglas Treadwell and Golf Associates to 
maintain Sanctuary Lake Golf Course; and 
 
WHEREAS, The agreement expired on December 31, 2004; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff review finds it more responsive/responsible to manage the course with City 
staff; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 7, 2005 
 

- 12 - 

WHEREAS, To effectively assume responsibilities requires additional staff members outside of 
the currently approved budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, City staff will review operational alternatives annually. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That City Council AUTHORIZES City staff to assume maintenance 
responsibilities; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That City Council AUTHORIZES one additional full-time MSE-G 
position to supplement the existing golf course maintenance operations along with seasonal 
employees. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That City Staff will review and report on operational alternatives 
and make a recommendation no later than following the 2009 season. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak   

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   
a) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 3463 Crooks Road – February 28, 2005  
b) Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 5839 John R Road – February 28, 2005 
 
G-2 Green Memorandums:  
a) Rules of Procedure – Proposed Amendments 
 
COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 
 
H-1  No Referrals Advanced 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 7, 2005 
 

- 13 - 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Election Commission/Final – September 28, 2004  
b) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Final – November 23, 2004 
c) Troy Youth Council/Final – December 15, 2004 
d) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – December 21, 2004  
e) Planning Commission/Draft – January 11, 2005 
f) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – January 12, 2005  
g) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – January 18, 2005  
h) Troy Youth Council/Draft – January 19, 2005 
i) Election Commission/Draft – January 26, 2005 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-2 Department Reports:   
a) Troy Fire Department – 2002 Annual Report 
b) Troy Fire Department – 2003 Annual Report  
c) Supplemental Information on Public Sealed Bid Sale of 5 Surplus Parcels  
d) Auction – Vehicle Sale on December 11, 2004 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter to Tim Richnak from Audre Zembrzuski, Thanking Him for Snow Removal  
b) Letter to John Szerlag from Donald Schenk, Commending Him for His Work as City 

Manager, Especially During the City Council Meeting of January 24, 2005 
c) Letter to Chief Craft from Jeffrey Hall, Assistant Oakland County Prosecuting Attorney, 

Commending Detective Lisa Rockafellow for Her Professionalism Before and During an 
Armed Robbery Trial  

d) Letter to Chief Craft from James Elmleaf, Thanking Officers Meinzinger, Browne, M. 
Livingston, Linton, M. Villerot, Mairorano, Dyjewski, Feld, Sinutko, Nordstrom and 
Cantlon, Among Others, for Their Work During an Incident  

e) Letter to Tonni Bartholomew from Kari Beattie, Deputy Director of Constituent Services, 
Office of the Governor, Thanking Her for Contacting the Governor’s Office Regarding the 
City of Troy’s Objection to the Current Definition of Urban Area 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 
J-5  Calendar 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-6  Notice of Public Input Session Regarding a Planned Unit Development (PUD) on 
Big Beaver Road Between Alpine and McClure 

Noted and Filed 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 7, 2005 
 

- 14 - 

J-7  Establishing City Voice and Email Accounts for City Council 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-8  Aquatic Center Fee Recommendation for 2005 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-9  Feasibility of a Noel Night 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-10  Long Lake Road Development Partners, LLC and Good Development, LLC v City 

of Troy 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-11  Fire Department Response Time Analysis 

Noted and Filed 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1  No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session 
 
Resolution #2005-02-069 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as 
permitted by MCL 15.268 (e), Estate of Leslie McPherson v City of Troy – pending litigation. 
 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 9:10 pm. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 9:29 pm. 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 9:30 pm. 
 
 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
  

 
 Barbara A. Holmes, CMC 

Deputy City Clerk 
 



 
 

PROCLAMATION 
IN RECOGNITION OF GEORGE D. GOODMAN 

ON THE OCCASION OF HIS RETIREMENT FROM THE MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUE 
 

WHEREAS, For the past 22 years, George D. Goodman has served as the Executive 
Director of the Michigan Municipal League; and 
 
WHEREAS, Before heading the League, George served as Mayor of Ypsilanti from 1972 -
1982 and as President of the Michigan Conference of Mayors for 1976-1977; and 
 
WHEREAS, In 1998, George was selected to be a distinguished Fellow of the National 
Academy of Public Administration, which is chartered by Congress; and has been 
instrumental in the development of the Michigan Black Caucus; and 
 
WHEREAS, Civic leadership has been an important part of George’s life, especially in his 
roles as Chair of the United Way of Michigan, Board Member of Starr Commonwealth and of 
Youth for Understanding, and Chair of the Washtenaw County Community College 
Foundation; and 
 
WHEREAS, Since its inception in 1991, George has served as the President of the Michigan 
Municipal League Foundation; and  
 
WHEREAS, George has served as a Board Member of the National League of Cities, the 
International City/County Management Association, and the National Association of 
Counties;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy recognize 
George D. Goodman for his years of dedicated service to Michigan’s cities and villages; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER KNOWN That the City Council of the City of Troy, on behalf of themselves, 
City management, and the citizens of the City of Troy, extends wishes of prosperity, good 
health and happiness to George during his retirement years. 
 
Signed this 21st day of February 2005. 

 
 

bittnera
Text Box
E-03a



 
 
February 8, 2005 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 
RE: AGENDA ITEM – REQUEST FOR ACCEPTANCE OF 

PERMANENT EASEMENTS AND WARRANTY DEED FROM 
BRENTWOOD LAND DEVELOPMENT, LLC – WATTLES RIDGE 
SITE CONDOMINIUMS – SIDWELL #88-20-23-100-003, 004, 041, 
046, 063 & 071 

 
 
In connection with the Wattles Ridge Site Condominium project, located in 
northwest corner of Section 23, east of Rochester Road and South of Wattles, 
the Real Estate and Development Department has received a warranty deed for 
the proposed Burns Drive right-of-way and 2 permanent easements for storm 
sewer and sanitary sewer from the property owner, Brentwood Land 
Development, LLC.  The consideration on each document is $1. 
 
In order for this project to proceed, management recommends the acceptance of 
the attached documents. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Larysa Figol, Right of Way Representative 
 

bittnera
Text Box

bittnera
Text Box
E-04



 
 
 
 

WATTLES RIDGE SITE CONDOMINIUM 
SECTION 23 

 
 

 

 
 

Wattles Ridge Site 
Condominium 

 

 
 





















February 7, 2005 
 

TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
  
SUBJECT: Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Oakland County 

Cooperative Purchasing Agreements – Fleet Vehicles 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
City management recommends approval and authorization to purchase Five (5) fleet vehicles 
through Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing Agreements from at an estimated total cost 
of $86,680.00.   
 
The equipment will replace vehicles due to come out of service from the Police and Public 
Works Departments. 
 
 ITEM BUDGET UNIT COST TOTAL 
     
BUFF WHELAN CHEVROLET     
1    Chevrolet Malibu Sedan A-2 $21,000.00 $12,829.99  $12,829.99 
1    Chevrolet Malibu Sedan A-5   $16,000.00 $12,829.99 $12,829.99 
1    Chevrolet 4X4 Pick-Up Ext. Cab A-2 $21,000.00 $20,240.53  $20,240.53 

 
RED HOLMAN PONTIAC GMC     
1    Pontiac Bonneville SE A-2 $21,000.00 $20,509.00 $20,509.00 
     
SLINGERLAND CHRYSLER DODGE     
 1   Dodge Magnum A-2 $21,000.00 $20,272.92 $20,272.92 

TOTAL  $100,000.00  $86,682.43 
If you have any questions regarding this recommendation, please feel free to call me at your 
convenience. 
 
BUDGET 
Funds are available from the Vehicle Motor Pool Capital Account 565.7981. 
 
Prepared by:  Samuel P. Lamerato, Superintendent of Motor Pool 
 
 
 
S:/Murphy’s Review/Agenda 02-21-05 SR4 AwardVehicles-Oakland.doc 
 
 

bittnera
Text Box
E-05



  February 14, 2005 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Bid Award - 

Sole Bidder – Troy Daze Amusement Rides 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On February 2, 2005, proposals were opened to provide three (3) year 
requirements of Amusement Rides for the Troy Daze/Magic of Fall Festival.  City 
management recommends City Council award the contract to the sole bidder, 
Arnold Amusements, Inc., 1140 Oak Terrace, Traverse City, MI 49686 providing 
the City a rate of return of 40% of the gross ride receipts, as identified in their 
proposal and summarized in the attached bid tabulation. 
 
Under the bid proposal, Arnold Amusements, Inc. will pay $275.00 per game 
booth for a maximum of 20 game booths, $400.00 per food booth for a maximum 
of six (6) booths, and $500.00 per booth for exclusive rights to two food booths 
offering Popcorn and Elephant Ears. 
 
Finally, Arnold Amusements, Inc. has offered to pay the City of Troy $3,000.00 
toward festival improvements or advertising upon execution of a three-year 
contract. 
 
SUMMARY 
Arnold Amusements, Inc. was the sole bidder for this contract. Only a limited 
number of companies have trailer-mounted rides equipped for traveling.  These 
midway vendors usually schedule their shows eighteen (18) months in advance, 
which makes it difficult to fulfill festival requirements for 2005.  Arnold has been 
the amusement vendor for the Troy Daze/Magic of Fall Festival for many years 
and have enjoyed a positive and beneficial relationship with the City of Troy and 
the Troy Daze Advisory Committee. 
 
BUDGET 
Funds are collected in the Community Fair Revenue Account  
#1030.4653.AMUSE. 
 
 22 Vendors Notified on MITN System 
   1 Bid Response Rec’d 
   1 No Bid: Company’s schedule would not permit performance of the specifications. 
 
 
Prepared by: Jeffrey J. Biegler, Superintendent of Parks 

bittnera
Text Box
E-06



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-56
Opening Date -- 2-2-05 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 2
Date Prepared -- 2/14/05 AMUSEMENT RIDES

VENDOR NAME: * ARNOLD AMUSEMENTS, INC

PROPOSAL: AMUSEMENT RIDES FOR TROY DAZE
PROPOSAL A: PAYMENT SCHEDULE 40% OF RIDE GROSS FOR YEARS 2005-2007; $275.00 PER GAME BOOTH

UPON SIGNING THREE YEAR CONTRACT WILL PAY $3,000 TOWARDS FESTIVAL
IMPROVEMENTS OR ADVERTISING

PROPOSAL B:   RIDES $1.00/TICKET # of Rides Cost per Ride # of Rides Cost per Ride
2005 INDIVIDUAL CHILDREN'S 12 $2.00

INDIVIDUAL ADULT 12 $3.00
SPECTACULAR RIDES 8 $4.00
SPECIAL BOOKLET/BRACELET Sheet of 44 Tickets - $40.00
PAY-ONE-PRICE PACKAGE Sat 11-5pm $18.00  Sun 5-9pm $15.00
PRE-EVENT SALES DISCOUNT $2.00 Discount

2006 INDIVIDUAL CHILDREN'S 12 $2.00
INDIVIDUAL ADULT 12 $3.00
SPECTACULAR RIDES 8 $4.00
SPECIAL BOOKLET/BRACELET Sheet of 44 Tickets - $40.00
PAY-ONE-PRICE PACKAGE Sat 11-5pm $18.00  Sun 5-9pm $15.00
PRE-EVENT SALES DISCOUNT $2.00 Discount

2007 INDIVIDUAL CHILDREN'S 12 $2.00
INDIVIDUAL ADULT 12 $3.00
SPECTACULAR RIDES 8 $4.00
SPECIAL BOOKLET/BRACELET Sheet of 44 Tickets - $40.00
PAY-ONE-PRICE PACKAGE Sat 11-5pm $18.00  Sun 5-9pm $15.00
PRE-EVENT SALES DISCOUNT $2.00 Discount

PRE-EVENT SALES PACKAGE: ATTACHMENT "C"

DESCRIPTION OF RIDES, SHOWS, CONCESSIONS: CHILDREN RIDES LENGTH OF RIDE CHILDREN RIDES LENGTH OF RIDE

List 10 Children's Rides: 1 DIZZY DRAGONS 3-5 Min
2 SPEEDWAY

3 JUMPING JUMBOS

4 GO GATOR

5 BEAR A FAIR

6 CRAZY BUS

7 WESTERN TRAIN

8 RAIDERS

9 MOON WALK

10 MOTOR CYCLES

11 JET SKI

12 CARS & JEEP COMBO

List 10 Adult Rides: ADULT RIDES LENGTH OF RIDE ADULT RIDES LENGTH OF RIDE

1 TILT-A-WHIRL 3-5 Min
2 SPIDER

3 TORNADO

4 SIZZLER

5 ROCK-O-PLANE

6 SUPER SLIDES (TWO)

7 MARDI GRAS

8 FUN HOUSE

9 MERRY-GO-ROUND

10 PARATROOPER

11 DARK RIDE



CITY OF TROY
Opening Date -- 2-2-05 BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 2
Date Prepared -- 2/14/05 AMUSEMENT RIDES

VENDOR NAME: * ARNOLD AMUSEMENTS, INC

DESCRIPTION OF RIDES, SHOWS, CONCESSIONS: SPECTACULAR RIDES LENGTH OF RIDE SPECTACULAR RIDES LENGTH OF RIDE

List 5 Spectacular Rides 1 CRAZY DANCE 3-5 Min
2 ORBITER

3 1001 NIGHTS

4 ZIPPER

5 EAGLE 16 FERRIS WHEELS (TWO)

6 BUMPER CARS

SPECIAL RIDE NIGHT NUMBER OF RIDES $ FOR TICKETS NUMBER OF RIDES $ FOR TICKETS

Special Ride Night offered on Thursday. 10 10.00$         

DESCRIPTION OF AUDIT SYSTEM: Marked as:

REQUEST FOR FOOD BOOTHS Marked as:
(Include items to be sold) $400/Booth for 2005

REQUEST FOR OTHER CONCESSION BOOTHS:
(Include items to be sold)            Yes or No

REVENUE FOR EXCLUSIVE RIGHTS: $500/Booth
POPCORN
ELEPHANT EARS

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX
Cannot Meet

TERMS

COMPLETION

EXCEPTIONS

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Yes or No

NO BIDS: * DENOTES SOLE BIDDER
 Skerbeck Bros Shows Inc

NOTE: Spectacular refers to a ride classification which costs more to ride because of 
ATTEST: their size and cost of operation.
 Jeffrey Biegler
 Charlene McComb
 Linda Bockstanz

____________________________
Jeanette Bennett
Purchasing Director

G:\ITB-COT 04-56 AmusementRides

YES

WILL PROVIDE

BLANK

As Specified

BLANK

ATTACHMENT A

ATTACHMENT B

BLANK

WILL PROVIDE







bittnera
Text Box
E-07













bittnera
Text Box
E-08













February 15, 2005 
 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Douglas Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 
RE: AGENDA ITEM – REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF CONDITIONED 

PURCHASE AGREEMENT FOR RIGHT-0F-WAY: SIDEWALK 
GAP PROJECT, SIDWELL# 88-20-01-101-022, 1094 E. SOUTH 
BLVD., JOHN D. ANDERSON AND JUDITH A. ANDERSON  

 
As part of the ongoing Sidewalk Gap Completion Project, an agreement has 
been reached with John D. Anderson and Judith A. Anderson, owners of the 
property located at 1094 E. South Blvd., to purchase 27 feet of right-of-way.  The 
property is located in Section 1, on the south side of E. South Blvd., East of John 
R Road. 
 
Based on an appraisal prepared by Andrew Reed & Associates, Inc., State 
Certified General Appraisers, and reviewed by Kimberly Harper, Assistant City 
Assessor, management believes that $23,400.00, the compensation agreed 
upon is just and, is the same as the appraised value for this 27 feet. 
 
In order for the City to proceed with the acquisition of this right-of-way, 
management requests that City Council approve the attached Conditioned 
Purchase Agreement in the amount of $23,400.00. 
 
The right-of-way is being acquired under the Sidewalk New Construction budget. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Dennis C. Stephens, Right of Way Representative 

bittnera
Text Box
E-09







 
EXHIBIT “A” 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Section 01, NW 1/4 
Parcel: 88-20-01-101-022 

Address: 1094 E. South Blvd. 
 
 
 
Description of Right of Way Acquisition: (Created from Tax Record Data) 
 
The North 27.00 feet of the following described parcel; 
 
Lot 422 and 423 of “Supervisor’s Plat of John Arbor Subdivision”, as recorded in 
Liber 6, Page 56 of Oakland County, Michigan records. Said plat being part of 
the Northwest Fractional ¼ of Section 1, T2N-R11E, City of Troy, Oakland 
County, Michigan. Containing 2,160 Square Feet or 0.050 Acres. 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
File: H:\Descriptions\Property Descriptions\88-20-01-101-022 





February 8, 2005 
 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
   
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
  Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
     
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM - PEG Fees Distribution 
 
 
Based on the outcome of the January 17, 2005 Council Study Session, we would 
recommend that Council allocate one half of the approximate $139,600 proceeds 
from cable television providers (Comcast & WideOpenWest) allotted to PEG 
Access (Public, Education, Government) to Community Media Network (CMN) for 
the operation of a public access facility, with the remaining one-half to be used for 
the government access channel (WTRY).  The recommendation would be for the 
length of the contract (3 years) through December 31, 2007 with the option to 
renew.  The ICCA is currently in negotiations with the CMN Board to approve the 
proposed contract. 
 
Community Media Network (CMN) currently manages and operates a public 
access center and studio in Troy for playback of the public access channel.  CMN 
also offers production & training classes, manages the use of production 
equipment, engineers and maintains two remote production trucks.  The Troy 
studio includes a full production facility, featuring three editing suites, production 
studio, two production vans, and ten portable checkout cameras.  There is also a 
fully equipped studio at Oakland University, which is utilized by OU students as 
well as ICCA community residents.  They offer the same training classes and 
production capabilities as the Troy facility. 
 
The ICCA member communities will be discussing the new contract with CMN at 
their February meeting. 
 
 
 
 

 
 

CS 

bittnera
Text Box
E-10



 1

 
February 11, 2005 
 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW AND AMENDED 

CONSENT ORDER AND JUDGMENT (SP 883-C) – Heartland Health Care, 
southeast corner of South Boulevard and Livernois, Section 3 – O-1 and R-1B 

 
 
The Consent Order and Judgment and Site Plan were presented to City Council at the 
February 7, 2005 Regular Meeting.  The amended Consent Order and Judgment was 
approved by City Council at this meeting.  The amended Consent Order and Judgment 
specifically refers to the site plan that is to be approved by City Council at their February 7, 
2005 City Council meeting.  However following the City Council meeting, it was discovered 
that the proposed resolution to approve the site plan had been inadvertently omitted.   
 
The applicant seeks approval of the revised amended Consent Order and Judgment, the 
only change being the approval date on pages 2 and 3 from February 7, 2005 to February 
21, 2005.  In addition, the applicant seeks a specific resolution to approve the Preliminary 
Site Plan. 
 
City Management and the Planning Commission recommend approval of the amended 
Consent Order and Judgment and Preliminary Site Plan.   
 
 
 

Reviewed and Approved as to First  
Amended Consent Order and Judgment 

 
 

______________________________ 
 

Lori Grigg Bluhm 
City Attorney 

 
Attachments: 
1. Amended Consent Order and Judgment. 
2. February 7, 2005 City Council package. 
 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File/ SP 883-C 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
G:\SITE PLANS\SP 883-C Heartland Health CJ Sec 3\CC Approval Heartland 02 21 05.doc 

bittnera
Text Box
E-11

















 1

January 31, 2005 
 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – PUBLIC HEARING – PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 

AND AMENDED CONSENT ORDER AND JUDGMENT (SP 883-C) – 
Heartland Health Care, southeast corner of South Boulevard and Livernois, 
Section 3 – O-1 and R-1B. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The parcel is an appropriate location for a 120-bed nursing home.  The impact of this 
development is less than that of the 50,000 square foot medical office building that 
received Preliminary Site Plan Approval in 2002.  The medical office building was more 
massive and the parking area had over 7 times the number of parking spaces than the 
proposed Heartland Health Care project.  In addition, the traffic generated by the nursing 
home will be significantly less than the proposed medical office. 
 
The proposed development is generally consistent with the Consent Order and Judgment, 
Case No. 83-265736 CZ, dated December 26, 1986.  Representatives of the Meadowland 
Estates Homeowners Association met with the applicant at the beginning of the design 
process and provided input into the design of the site.  The Association has provided a 
letter of support for the proposed development.  
 
At the December 14, 2004 Regular Meeting, the Planning Commission recommended 
approval of the Preliminary Site Plan as submitted, with two conditions: 

 
1. That City Management review the detention pond located to the southeast of the 

proposed development for proper construction, as it appears that water is being 
retained on site.   

 
2. That the trees along the South Boulevard sidewalk as shown by the petitioner, 

being that they are ornamental and evergreens, be moved away from the 
sidewalk so that their ultimate growth size shall not impede the use of the 
sidewalk. 

 
The Public Works Director reviewed the detention pond located southeast of the proposed 
development for proper construction; the water that appears to be retained on site is due 
to a high water table (see attached comments).  The proposed site plan has been 
amended to move the trees away from South Boulevard, as requested by the Planning 
Commission. 



 2

City Management agrees with the Planning Commission and recommends approval of the 
Preliminary Site Plan and amended Consent Order and Judgment.   
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner is Rodney Hyduk.  The applicant is Brion Harrigan of ManorCare Health 
Services Inc. 
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the southeast corner of South Boulevard and Livernois, in section 3. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 3.78 acres in area.  This represents a portion of the parent 
parcel, which is 5.48 acres in area.  The western 180.01 feet of the parent parcel will be 
split from the subject parcel.    
 
Proposed Use of Subject Parcel: 
The applicant is proposing to construct a 120-bed nursing home on the property. 
 
Parcel History: 
The use of the parcel is controlled by a consent order and judgment of the Circuit Court for 
the County of Oakland of December 26, 1986, Case No. 83-265736 CZ (see attached).  
The proposed development is inconsistent with the consent judgment, which therefore 
must be amended to permit this development.  City Council is responsible for approving 
the amended consent judgment, which includes Preliminary Site Plan Approval authority. 
 
At the October 21, 2002 Regular Meeting, City Council approved a Preliminary Site Plan 
and amended consent agreement for a medical office building on the parent parcel.  The 
proposed development included a 2-story, 50,000 square foot medical office building with 
426 constructed parking spaces and 43 landbanked spaces. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
The western 310 feet of the parcel is zoned O-1 Office Building.  The remainder of the 
parcel is zoned R-1B One Family Residential.   
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The property is presently vacant. 
 
Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Animal Medical Center (City of Rochester Hills). 
 
South: Single family residential (Meadowland Estates Subdivision). 



 3

East: Single family residential (Meadowland Estates Subdivision). 
 
West: Val’s Pet Supplies and the Meadowbrook Pre-School and Kindergarten. 
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: B-2 General Business and R-2 One Family Residential (City of Rochester Hills) 
 
South: R-1B One Family Residential.  
 
East: R-1B One Family Residential. 
 
West: R-1B One Family Residential. 
 
Future Land Use Designation: 
The property is designated on the Future Land Use Plan as Low Rise Office. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Compliance with area and bulk requirements of the RM-1 district: 
 
The property is zoned O-1 and R-1B; however, the applicant is proposing a 120-bed 
nursing home.  “Convalescent Homes” are permitted subject to special conditions under 
the RM-1 Multiple Family Low Rise Residential Zoning District (Section 15.25.04).     
 
Lot Area: Not applicable in the RM-1 district. 
 
Lot Width: Not applicable in the RM-1 district. 

 
Height: Maximum permitted height is 2 stories.  The applicant is proposing a 2-story 

building. 
 
Setbacks: Front:  50-foot minimum setback required.  The building is set back 75 feet; 

however, the fixed entrance canopy is set back only 38 feet. 
Side:  50-foot minimum setback required; 88 feet provided.   
Rear:  50-foot minimum setback required; 70 feet provided.  

 
Landscaping: The applicant meets the requirement of at least 800 square feet of lot 

area and 300 square feet of open space per bed. 
 
The applicant does not meet the 50-foot front setback required for convalescent homes in 
the RM-1 district, because the canopy is considered part of the building. 



 4

Compliance with the Consent Order: 
 
The proposed development is generally consistent with the Consent Order and Judgment.  
The most significant exception is the use of the parcel.  The consent order permits all uses 
that are permitted in the O-1 district.  Convalescent homes are not permitted in the O-1 
district.  The impact of a 120-bed convalescent home will be significantly less than a 
50,000 square foot medical office building. 
 
The application meets the following requirements of the Consent Order: 
 

1. A 70-foot minimum building setback from the south property line. 
2. A 50-foot minimum building setback from the east property line. 
3. A 30-foot minimum building setback from the west and north property lines. 
4. Buildings shall not exceed 2 stories in height. 
5. A minimum 10-foot wide greenbelt on the east side of the property, west of the 

right-of-way. 
6. There shall be no screening wall on the east property line, although the screen 

wall is required by the Zoning Ordinance. 
 

The current Consent Order calls for a 6-foot brick-faced screen wall along the south 
property line, except for the western 30 feet, which is to be only 2-½ feet in height.  At the 
request of abutting homeowners to the south, a berm has been proposed in lieu of the 
wall.  This change has been added to the proposed Amendment to the Consent Judgment.  
 
Off-Street Parking and Loading Requirements:  
The 120-bed facility requires 1 space per 2 beds, or 60 spaces.  The applicant is providing 
80 spaces.  The applicant exceeds the off-street parking requirement by 20 spaces. 
 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
The parcel fronts on South Boulevard.  Access will be provided by a boulevard entry drive. 
 
A cross-access easement is proposed for the southwest corner of the parcel. 
 
The applicant is providing an 8-foot wide sidewalk along South Boulevard.  In addition, 5-
foot wide connecting sidewalks are also provided.  An alternative is provided for the 
required sidewalk along Fieldstone Drive.  
 
Midwestern Consulting prepared a Traffic Impact Study for the development.  The report 
shows the AM peak hour trips to be between 17 and 20 vehicles per hour and the PM peak 
hour trips to be between 28 and 61 vehicles per hour.  In comparison, the Environmental 
Impact Statement for the proposed medical office building on the site anticipated 135 AM 
peak hour trips and 204 PM peak hour trips.  The impact in terms of traffic is significantly 
less for the nursing home than for the medical office building. 



 5

Storm Water Detention: 
Storm water detention will be provided by a detention pond in the southeast corner of the 
parcel. 
 
Environmental Provisions: 
The applicant is proposing a screened dumpster on the west side of the building. 
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are some woodlands located on the property. 
 
 
 

Reviewed and Approved as to First  
Amended Consent Order and Judgment 

 
 

______________________________ 
 

Lori Grigg Bluhm 
City Attorney 

 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps. 
2. Consent Order and Judgment, dated December 26, 1986. 
3. Amended Consent Order and Judgment. 
4. Minutes from December 14, 2004 Planning Commission Regular Meeting. 
5. Letter of support from Meadowlands Estates Homeowners Association, dated October 27, 

2004. 
6. Traffic Impact Study prepared by Midwestern Consulting, dated October 12, 2004. 
7. Letter from Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director, dated January 25, 2005. 

 
 

cc: Applicant 
 File/ SP 883-C 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
G:\SITE PLANS\SP 883-C Heartland Health CJ Sec 3\CC Public Hearing Heartland 02 07 05.doc 
 
 
 
 





brattopp
Polygon



brattopp
Polygon





























































 
Date:  February 2, 2005 
 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
 
From:  Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager-Services 
  Steven Vandette, City Engineer 
  Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
 
Subject: Agenda Item 

Interagency Agreement with Wayne County for the Local Sanitary 
Sewer Improvements to Reduce SSOs in the Evergreen 
Farmington System Project  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is our recommendation that the City of Troy approve the attached copies of the 
Interagency Agreement with Wayne County.  This agreement will allow the City 
of Troy to receive federal grant money to fund the Local Sanitary Sewer 
Improvements to Reduce SSOs in the Evergreen Farmington System.   
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
The City of Troy applied for and received grant money from the Rouge River 
National Wet Weather Demonstration Project for reducing Sanitary Sewer 
Overflows (SSO) into the Rouge River by eliminating sources of inflow and 
infiltration (I/I) in the Evergreen Farmington Sewer District System.  The project 
consists of purchasing sanitary sewer flow meters to help locate the sources of I/I 
and to eliminate them with the use of cured-in-place pipe and other grouting 
techniques for sanitary sewers.  The total project is estimated to cost $525,000 
with the City of Troy’s share coming to $315,000.  The City will be able to meet a 
portion of that share utilizing staff labor for televising the sanitary sewer system in 
the Evergreen Farmington Sewer District, reviewing the video tapes of the 
sanitary sewers and field reports, and preparing the necessary grant reports. 
 
The Water & Sewer Department has been working to implement a portion of 
these activities to meet the requirements of the Administrative Consent Order for 
the Evergreen Farmington Sewer District.  This federal grant money allows the 
City of Troy to offset the costs associated with meeting the requirements of the 
Administrative Consent Order.                 
 
 

bittnera
Text Box
E-12



FUNDING: 
 
The total project is for $525,000 with the City of Troy’s share being $315,000.  
The grant match for the project will be paid for out of the Capital Sewer Account 
#5357973.994035.   
 
Reviewed as to Form and Legality:____________________________________ 
     Lori G. Bluhm, City Attorney                Date 
 
Prepared by Dana Calhoun, Storm Water Engineer  

























































 
 
 

                                                                  February 16, 2005 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Laura Fitzpatrick, Assistant to the City Manager 
   
SUBJECT: Education and Training Budget for City Council 
 
 
Per your request, here is a summary of factors relative to the City Council’s Education 
and Training budget and recent discussions about committee appointments. 
 
Background:  
Councilmember Lambert has been offered appointment on the National League of 
Cities Leadership Training Council. Councilmember Beltramini has accepted 
appointment to the Finance, Administration, & Intergovernmental Relations Committee 
and re-appointment to the Democratic Governance Transition Panel.  These 
committees meet at various conferences.  Note that two of the meetings occur at the 
major conferences of the NLC at which Councilmembers Lambert and Beltramini 
usually attend.  NLC also conducts four smaller conferences annually. 
 
Budget:  
As of today’s date, of the $20,800 budgeted for FY 2004-05, there is $6,900 remaining.  
Assuming Councilmembers Lambert and Beltramini attend the conferences at which 
their respective committees could meet (Fall and Spring NLC Conferences and one or 
two additional smaller conference), this will cost: 
 

1) $3,900 this fiscal year, leaving $3,000 in the Education and Training budget 
2) $4,000 next fiscal year, leaving $16,800 in the Education and Training budget 
 

Summary:  
City Council indicated they did not want to increase their Education and Training 
Budget.  Assuming education and training activities remain the same next fiscal year, 
current budgeted amounts will cover the committee meetings cited above.   

 
Note:  
Attendance at the March 2005 Congressional City Conference was previously approved 
(Resolution #2005-01-023-E-10). 

bittnera
Text Box
E-13



Education and Training Summary re: appointments to NLC Committees: Finance, Administration, & Intergovernmental Relations Committee; 
Democratic Governance Transition Panel; and Leadership Training Council

Expense Item FY 05-06 FY 04-05 FY 05-06 FY 04-05 FY 04-05
Fall NLC Conference Spring NLC Conference Annual Leadership Summit  Power of Democratic Governance  Meeting of Dem Gov Comm

December 6-10 March 11-15 August 25-27 April 21-23 June 16-18
Lambert, Beltramini Lambert, Beltramini Lambert Beltramini Beltramini (tentative)

 
Registration $1,015 $1,015 $595 $345 $0

(for both councilmembers) (for both councilmembers)

Hotel $800 $525 $417 $300 $300
(for both councilmembers) (for both councilmembers)

Airfare $450 $250 $200 $200 $200
(for both councilmembers) (for both councilmembers)

Meals $240 $240 $80 $80 $80
(for both councilmembers) (for both councilmembers)

Transportation to/from Airport $160 $160 $80 $80 $80
(for both councilmembers) (for both councilmembers)

TRIP TOTAL $2,665 $2,190 $1,372 $1,005 $660
(for both councilmembers) (for both councilmembers)

BUDGET TOTAL FY 04-05 $3,855

BUDGET FY 05-06 $4,037



February 14, 2005 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 

FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services  
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Carol K. Anderson, Director of Parks and Recreation 
 

SUBJECT: Agenda Item:  Sole Source- Nuisance Goose Control Services for 
Sanctuary Lake and Sylvan Glen Golf Courses 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
The Parks and Recreation Department recommends the City enter into a contract 
with Gooseworks Humane Goose Control, the sole known provider of comprehensive 
goose control services for Sanctuary Lake and Sylvan Glen Golf Courses, for an 
estimated total cost of $12,600.00.  The contract will be for nine (9) months service at 
both facilities for $700/month/facility. 
 

BACKGROUND 
Julie Oakes is the wildlife biologist for the Department of Natural Resources who is 
in charge of the Canada Goose nest/egg destruction, roundup (capture), and hold 
programs for Southeastern Michigan.  City management staff has contacted her 
about other companies that offer a comparable service.  She has informed us that 
Gooseworks Humane Goose Control is the sole supplier providing comprehensive 
goose control services. 
 
Gooseworks will provide goose control services on a seasonal basis to Sanctuary Lake 
and Sylvan Glen Golf Courses, by employing hazing techniques utilizing highly trained 
border collies and their handlers.  Gooseworks has successfully completed training and 
obtained from the Michigan DNR the following permits: 

• Goose harassment with use of dogs 
• Goose egg and nest removal/destruction 
• Goose roundup (capture) and transportation 
• Nuisance goose control 
• Currently holds required goose egg and nest destruction permits for Sylvan 

Glen and Sanctuary Lake Golf Courses. 
• Currently holds roundup and transportation permits for Sylvan Glen and 

Sanctuary Lake Golf Courses. 
• Gooseworks is fully insured under a one (1) million dollar liability policy 

 
Gooseworks Humane Goose Control has provided their contract services at Sylvan 
Glen Golf Course the past three (3) years, and started at Sanctuary Lake in the spring 
of 2004.  We have received no complaints during the past three seasons in regards to 
accumulation of excessive goose droppings on the golf course grounds.  In addition, 
staff has noted that our overall goose population has diminished in total numbers, and 
our golfers have been extremely pleased with the results we received by utilizing this 
complete contract service. 
 
BUDGET 
Funds to provide these services will be available in the respective Golf Course 
Grounds Maintenance Accounts #885.7802.050 and #785.7802.050.  
 
Prepared by: Danny T. McDonald, Superintendent of Greens        
    

bittnera
Text Box
E-14







 
DATE:  February 8, 2005 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Load Restrictions  
 
 
Clarification has been requested regarding Item #4 of the Guide for Permitted 
Loads During Frost Laws, regarding delivery of furnishings when relocating to 
new and/or unoccupied home.  
 
Former Public Works Director Michael Culpepper, the original author of this 
policy, was contacted to verify the intent of this portion of Troy’s load restrictions.  
Mr. Culpepper stated that his intent was to allow for the delivery of furnishings 
and/or possessions to new residences, whether it be a new home or a previously 
constructed unoccupied home.  Traditionally, vehicles that transport these items 
are large and the furnishings and/or possessions are tightly packed for safe and 
efficient transport over long distances.  Consequently this increases the weight in 
the vehicle.   
 
If residents are purchasing replacement furnishings for their home for delivery, 
these pieces are delivered in smaller trucks and in many cases the pieces are 
crated, occupying more space in the truck.  These vehicles would not exceed the 
permitted loads during the time that frost laws are in effect. 
 
In an effort to clarify the language, a change has been made Item #4 of the load 
restrictions policy that indicates delivery of furnishings are permitted when 
relocating to a new and/or unoccupied home. 
 
 
TR/at 
 

bittnera
Text Box
F-02



 
 
 
DATE:  January 25, 2005 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Load Restrictions 
 
 
Each year during the spring thaw we post load restrictions on asphalt roads to prevent 
damage to the road surface. 
 
The Michigan Vehicle Code (Act 300, P.A. 1949) allows local governments, by ordinance 
or resolution, to prohibit the use of trucks or other commercial vehicles, or to impose weight 
limitations of trucks and commercial vehicles on certain streets.  Chapter 94, Axle Load 
Ordinance, allows the Public Works Director or his authorized representative discretionary 
power to reduce normal axle loads on specified streets. 
 
The roads of concern are listed as Attachment "A".  The specific limits to be posted are 
6,000 lbs. per axle, 8,500 lbs. per tandem axle assembly.  This limitation would be in effect 
during periods prescribed in Chapter 94 of the City Code for "frost law" limitations.  
Exceptions to these limitations would include the City’s refuse hauler, school buses, and 
emergency vehicles. 
 
We request approval of the reduced axle load limits for the streets listed on Attachment 
"A". 
 
 
cc:   Superintendent of Streets & Drains 
      
Attachment 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Ann Tyrrell, Office Coordinator 
 

 
 
 



City of Troy 
 Frost Law Load Restrictions 
 
 
Concrete Streets: 25% reduction from normal loadings 
 
Asphalt or Gravel Streets: 35% reduction from normal loadings (unless otherwise posted) 
 
Tabulation of allowable gross axle loads when restrictions are in force 
 

Spacing between axles Normal Load 25% Reduction 35% Reduction 

9 Feet or over 18,000 lb 13,500 lb 11,700 lb 

More than 3 ½ feet but less than 9 feet 13,000 9,750 8,450 

Less than 3 ½ feet, the combined weight shall not 
exceed 

18,000 13,500 11,700 

** When part of a tandem axle assembly 16,000 12,000 10,400 

Maximum Load on any wheel shall not exceed 
(lbs/inch of tire) 

700 525 450 

 
** Note:  On any legal combination of vehicles, only one tandem axle assembly shall be 

permitted, on such designated highways at the gross permissible weight of 16,000 
pounds for any such axle, and no other tandem axle assembly in such combination of 
vehicles shall exceed a gross weight of 13,000 pounds for any such axle. 

 
No overweight permits will be issued while frost laws are in effect. 



Typical Front Axle Loads 
 

Tire Size Normal Load 25% Reduction 35% Reduction 

 7.50 x 20 
 8.25 x 20 
 9.00 x 20 
10.00 x 20 
11.00 x 20 
Duplex Type 

10,500 lb 
11,550 lb 
12,600 lb 
14,000 lb 
15,400 lb 
18,000 lb 

 7,875 lb 
 8,662 lb 
 9,450 lb 
10,500 lb 
11,550 lb 
13,500 lb 

 6,750 lb 
 7,425 lb 
 8,100 lb 
 9,000 lb 
 9,900 lb 
11,700 lb 
 

 
NOTE:  For allowable load calculations use 2 x tire size x allowable load per inch of tire.  (For 

9.00 x 20 on 35% Reduction Street, use 2 x 9.0 x 450 = 8100 #/axle.) 
 
 Guide for Permitted Loads During Frost Laws 
 
Frost Law Axle Loads 
 Concrete Streets - O.C.R.C. Class A Rest. - 25% Reduction 
 Asphalt or Gravel - O.C.R.C Class B Rest. - 35% Reduction 
 Special Posted Streets - 6000 #/axle, 3500 #/tandem assembly 
 

Concrete Trucks Concrete Streets Asphalt or Gravel Streets Posted 
6000 #/axle 
8500 #/tandem 

Tandem Axle 
Tri Axle 
Quad Axle 

4 yards 
5 yards 
6 yards 

3 yards 
3 yards 
4 yards 

no load 
no load 
no load 

 
Vehicles allowed on streets posted 6000 #/axle, 8500 #/tandem: 
 1. Fuel trucks for delivery to residents 
 2. Refuse trucks 
 3. Milk, bread, or grocery delivery to residents 
 4. Delivery of furnishings when relocating to a new and/or unoccupied home 
 5. Septic tank cleaning trucks 
 6. Emergency repair or rescue vehicles 
 7. School buses 
 
NOTE: The above vehicles should travel the shortest possible distance on these streets. 
 



Attachment “A” 
 

 Streets to be posted are: 
 
Section 1  Burdic Section 6   Killarney 
  Chancery   Lake Charnwood 
  Edith   Limerick 
  Evanswood   Malvern 
  Gulliver   Meath Hunt Circle 
  Harned   Ramsbury 
  Jarman   Tewksbury 
  Ravenna   Tutbury 
  Stirling   Windrush 
Section 2  Atkins    
  Barabeau Section 7  Arlund Way 
  Cadmus   Beach 
  Cambria   Rabben 
  Eckerman   Sussex Ct. 
  Hartwig    
  Shelldrake Section 9  Blanche 
     Daniels 
Section 3  Booth   Fabius 
  DeEtta   Habrand 
  Donaldson   Haldane 
  Hannah   Houghten 
  Hurst   McKinley 
  Lesdale   Niles 
  Lovell   Stalwart 
  Marengo   Virgilia 
  Montclair    Wright 
  Norton Section 10  Creston 
  Ottawa   Cutting 
  Peacock   Somerton 
  Quill Creek   Sylvanwood 
  Westaway   Trinway 
Section 4  Aspinwall Section 11  Abbotsford 
  Blackwall   Hilmore 
  Canmoor   Larayne 
  Elmoor   Philatha 
  Fredmoor   Viking 
  Herbmoor Section 13  Forsyth 
  Houghten Section 14  Bradley 
  Hurst   Eleanor 
  Lovell   Glaser 
  Niles   Lamb 
  Scone   Rockfield 
  Troyvally Section 15  Belhaven 
  Vernmoor   Belzair 
     Crestfield 
Section 6  Anslow   Dorshire 
  Beach   Evaline 
  Bretby   Hanover 
  Chalgrove   Leetonia 
  Charnwood   Tallman – Eckford to Thurber 
  Clockgate Circle   Wilton 
  Dalesford    
  Donegal Section 16  Hart 
  Dublin Fair   Lange 
  Erin Way   Paragon 
  Galloway Bay   Virgilia 
  Glyndebourne   Webb 
 
 

  Section 18  Beach 



 
Section 18  Bronson Section 22  Jennings 
  Butternut Hill   Kilmer 
  Chestnut Hill   Louis 
  Hylane   Talbot 
  Juniper Court   Trombley 
  Pine Hill   Troy 
  Rouge Circle   Troywood 
  Valley Vista   Vanderpool 
  Valley Vista Circle    
  Walnut Hill Section 23  Boyd 
Section 19  Avonhurst   Daley 
  Beach   Hartland 
  Binbrooke   Torpey 
  Bolingbroke   Urbancrest 
  Caswell    
  Chelsea Section 24  Orpington 
  Chestnut Hill Court    
  Cheswick Section 25  Garry 
  Eastbourne   Isabell 
  Hampton   Milverton 
  Henhawk   Vermont 
  Kent   Virginia 
  Kingsley    
  Lanergan Section 27  Algansee 
  Myddleton   Arthur 
  Newgate   Beech Lane 
  Oakhill   Birchwood 
  Oxford   Cherry 
  Paddington   Chopin 
  Palmerston   Cook Court 
  Sunridge   Eastport 
  Tothill   Enterprise 
  Townhill   Hartshorn 
  Upton   Hickory 
  Weathervane   Kelly 
  Wembly   Kirkton 
  Wendover   Larchwood 
  Woodman   Lydia 
     Mastin 
Section 20  Alpine   Plum 
  Banmoor   Robinwood 
  Boulan   Starr 
  McClure   Van Courtland 
  McManus   Vermont 
  Muer   Westwood 
     Woodslee 
Section 21  Finch    
  Kirk Lane Section 28  Biltmore 
  Muer   Cloveridge 
  Muerknoll   Forthton 
  Ruthland   Regents 
  Wendleton   Shepherds 
   Section 36  Dashwood 
Section 22  Colebrook   Iowa 
  Ellenboro   Lovington 
  Frankton   Minnesota 
  Harris   Wisconsin 
  Hartland    
  Helena    
Coolidge Highway - Square Lake to South Boulevard 
Square Lake Road - Adams to Dequindre 
Wattles Road -Adams to Dequindre  Revised  1/25/05 



TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council  
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  
DATE: February 16, 2005 

  
  

SUBJECT: Ethics Policy   
 

 
 

 
The City of Troy has already implemented several “ethical” 

requirements for public servants.  Public servants include the City Council, 
City Board and Committee Members, City Management and City 
employees.  These requirements are interspersed in several different 
locations, including but not limited to the City Charter, Board/Committee 
By-laws, Rules and Procedure, Occupational Standards, Ordinances, and 
Employee Handbooks.  Some members of City Council have requested an 
official ethics policy for the City that would incorporate all of these 
requirements into one document.      

 
In researching this issue, there are several Michigan communities 

that have incorporated the Government Ethics Center Public Service 
Ethics- Summary of Principles and Guidelines, which is attached for your 
review.  This is a comprehensive set of guidelines for the public servant, 
and is instructive as to the expectations of public service, and a reminder 
of the sanctity of the public trust.   Assuming that the City of Troy receives 
permission from the Josephson Institute, these principles could be 
adopted by the City of Troy.  The more challenging task is to decide how 
to incorporate and enforce these principles.   Council should decide what 
the City’s policy is for reporting, deliberating, deciding, referring, and 
sanctioning alleged violations of the ethics code by public servants.  One 
option is to defer to an ethics board, which is done in other jurisdictions.  
City Council may also wish to assume responsibility for the enforcement of 
the ethics policy.  It is my recommendation that the consensus of City 
Council be further defined after a study session where potential 
ramifications and unintended consequences are discussed in greater 
detail.       

 
As always, if you have any questions concerning the above, please 

let me know.          
     
  
 
    

bittnera
Text Box
F-03



PROPOSED 
ETHICS PRINCIPLES AND GUIDELINES  

 
The City of Troy recognizes the following principles and guidelines, as espoused 
by the Josephson Institute Government Ethics Center, which are reiterated with 
permission, and adopted by the City of Troy.     
 

I. PUBLIC OFFICE AS A PUBLIC TRUST. 
 

Public servants should treat their office as a public trust, only using the 
powers and resources of public office to advance public interests, and 
not to attain personal benefits or pursue any other private interest 
incompatible with the public good.  
 
A. Pursuit of Public Interests. 

 
In treating their office as a public trust, public servants, whatever 
their role, should diligently and in good faith pursue the public 
interest to the best of their ability and subordinate self-interest to 
the public good.  

  
B. Ensuring Public Respect. 

 
In treating their office as a public trust, public servants should act 
so as to ensure the reality and perception that government is 
conducted according to the highest principles of democracy with 
honesty, integrity and a concern for justice and is, therefore, 
worthy of respect, trust, and support.  
 

1. Avoiding Impropriety.  Public servants should maintain 
public trust in government by avoiding acts that place 
personal or private interests above pursuit of the public 
interest.  

 
2. Avoiding Appearances of Impropriety.  Public servants 

should avoid conduct that tends to undermine public 
trust by creating in the minds of reasonable impartial 
observers the perception that government office has 
been used improperly.   

  
C. Formulation of Public Policy.  

 
Persons with the responsibility for making public policy and laws 
should place the public interest over all other considerations.  



1. Elected Officials Should Make Policy.   In a 
representative democracy, public interest should be 
determined and translated into policies and programs 
by or under the direction of elected officials who are 
ultimately accountable to the public.  

 
2. Dealing With Conflicting Loyalties.  In pursuing the 

public interest, public servants should put loyalty to 
democratic principles and to the broadest public good 
above loyalty to political party, their constituencies and 
individuals.  

 
3. Ranking Loyalty Obligations. When allocating public 

funds and formulating general public policies, elected 
officials should evaluate information objectively and 
decide what is best for the public as a whole, not just a 
narrow constituency.  

 
4. Organizational vs. Personal Loyalties.  Public servants 

with supervisory authority should safeguard and protect 
the public interest, the reputation of government and 
the integrity and efficiency of their department, even at 
the cost of injuring a superior, colleague, or friend.  

 
5. Protection of Minority Rights. It is in the overall public 

interest that the will of the majority is tempered by a 
commitment to consider and protect the rights and 
advance the interests of minorities, especially those 
that are not sufficiently represented in the normal 
decision making process.  

 
 

D. Implementation of Policy. 
 

Public administrators and executives should interpret and 
implement policies and laws in good faith and energetically pursue 
the goals of policy and lawmakers.  
 

1. Subordination of Personal Views.  Public servants 
charged with the administration of policies and laws 
should do so as equitable, efficiently, and economically 
as possible, regardless of their personal views.  

 
  



2. Dealing With Policy Disagreements.  Public servants 
who find that their personal convictions are 
irreconcilably incompatible with lawful policies should 
openly state their conflict and, in some cases, withdraw 
from the administration of such policies.  

 
3. Whistle Blowing:  Disclosure of Unlawful or Improper 

Policies or Actions.  Public servants who have a good 
faith belief that the public interest requires the 
disclosure of governmental policies or actions thought 
to be unlawful or improper should reveal their 
information to appropriate authorities.  

 
4. Leaking.  Except in matters of great public importance 

where identifying oneself as the source of information 
would involve unreasonable personal risks, public 
servants should not secretly reveal confidential matters 
or allege improprieties.    

  
E. Personal Gain From the Performance of Public Duties.  

 
Except for official compensation, public servants should neither 
seek nor accept any form of payment, gratuity or other personal 
benefit relating to the performance of their responsibilities.  
 

1. Performance of Duty.  Public servants should neither 
seek nor accept any form of personal benefit for the 
performance of their duty to deal with a matter 
promptly, efficiently or fairly or for the exercise of 
appropriate but discretionary representational 
authority.  

 
2. Accessibility of Elected Officials.  Elected officials should 

assure that constituents and others who may be 
affected by public policies have a fair and equal 
opportunity to express their concerns, grievances, and 
ideas without regard to their willingness or ability to 
provide personal benefits or political support to the 
official. 

 
3. Personal Benefits Should Never Appear to Be 

Necessary. Public servants should not engage in any 
conduct which could create in the mind of a reasonable 
observer the belief that persons will receive better or 



different service if they provide personal benefits or 
political support to a government official.  

 
F. Use of Public Employees for Personal Benefit.  

 
Public servants should not use public employees on government 
time for private benefit.  

 
1. Subordinate’s Responsibility To Say No. Public 

employees should refuse to perform improper personal 
tasks on government time.  

 
 

G. Use of Government Property for Personal Benefit.  A public servant 
should not use government property or facilities for private benefit.   

 
H. Use of Title or Prestige for Personal Benefit.  

 
Public servants should not use, nor allow others to use, the 
authority, title, or prestige of public office for the attainment of 
private financial, social or political benefits in any manner that is 
inconsistent with public interests.  

 
1. Use For Commercial Purposes. Public servants should 

not permit their names or official titles to be used by a 
nonpublic enterprise in any manner that would lead 
reasonable observers to believe that those who deal 
with the enterprise may receive special treatment or 
advantages as a result of a formal association with the 
public servant.  

 
2. Exploitive Fees.  The present or former holder of a high 

public office that carries with it substantial prestige 
should not appear to sell the stature of the office by 
accepting sums that create a general perception that 
the office has been exploited for private gain.  

 
3. Use For Private Advantage.  Public servants should not 

use official letterhead or refer to their public position as 
a means of inducing or intimidating persons to resolve 
disputes more favorably, provide preferential 
treatment, or give free tickets, discounts, favors or 
other advantages.  

 



 
I. Use of Public Powers for Political Advance. 

 
A public servant should not use the resources, prerogatives and 
powers of office primarily to advance political interests.  
 

1. Use of Public Employees.  A public servant should not 
seek to use public employees, on government time, to 
assist in political party activities, campaigning, fund 
raising, or other partisan or personal political activities.  

   
2. Use of Public Facilities.  A public servant should not 

conduct nor allow campaign and fund raising activities 
on government premises nor use government resources 
for these purposes.  

 
3. Use of Public Authority.  A public servant should not 

use public authority primarily to achieve personal 
political advantage or favorable press coverage.   

  
J. Use of Campaign Funds for Private Benefit.  

 
Public servants to run for office should use campaign funds only for 
expenses directly relating to campaigning (e.g. salaries, consultant 
fees, travel, printing, media, polling, communication with voters 
and constituents) and not for personal or other political purposes.  
 

1. Improper Expenditures.  Campaign funds should not be 
used to supplement personal income or enhance a 
personal life style. 

  
2. Loans.  Candidates should not borrow from campaign 

funds nor loan them to any other person, whether or 
not interest is paid.  

  
3. Disclosure About the Use of Funds.  Public servants to 

raise campaign funds with the intent or known 
possibility that they will be used for a purpose other 
than direct campaign expenses relating to a current 
election should disclose their intent to the donor in 
order to avoid any possibility of raising money under 
false pretenses.   

 
 



 
  

II. PRINCIPLES OF INDEPENDENT OBJECTIVE JUDGMENT. 
 

Public servants should employ independent objective judgment in 
performing their duties, deciding all matters on the merits, free from 
conflicts of interest and both real and apparent improper influences.  
 
A. Conflicts of Interest. 

 
Public servants should safeguard their ability to make independent, 
objective, fair and impartial judgments by scrupulously avoiding 
financial, social and political relationships and transactions that may 
compromise or give the appearance of compromising their 
objectivity, independence or honesty.  
 

1. Disclosure of Financial Conflicts of Interest.  Public 
servants should safeguard their ability to make 
independent, objective, fair and impartial judgments by 
scrupulously avoiding financial, social and political 
relationships and transactions that may compromise or 
give the appearance of compromising on their 
objectivity, independence or honesty.  

    
2. Avoidance of Financial Conflicts.  Public servants should 

make all reasonable efforts to avoid transactions that 
may compromise or give the appearance of 
compromising their objectivity, independence or 
honesty.  

   
3. Benefits Intended to Influence.  Public servants should 

not accept benefits of any sort under circumstances in 
which it could be reasonably inferred that the benefit 
was intended to influence them in the performance of 
their public responsibilities.   

 
4. Duty to Report Improper Offers.  When the possibility 

of improper motive requires refusal of a gratuity, the 
official should firmly warn the person about bribery 
laws and improper influence; if the attempt to unduly 
influence is clear, the matter should be reported to law 
enforcement authorities.   

 



5. Appearance of Undue Influence.  Regardless of the 
actual intent of the provider or recipient, public 
servants should not accept benefits of any sort under 
circumstances that would create in the mind of a 
reasonable observer the belief the benefit may 
influence them in the performance of their public 
responsibilities.  

 
a. Earned income from persons directly affected 

by actions or decisions.  Public servants should 
avoid engaging in financial relationships that 
might reasonably be construed to affect their 
judgment or actions, especially from lobbyists 
or other persons who are unlikely to be 
affected directly by their actions or decisions. 

 
b. Gratuities from persons directly affected by 

actions or decisions.  Public servants should 
refuse to accept any gratuities that may 
reasonably be construed to affect their 
judgment or actions, especially from lobbyists 
or other persons who are likely to be affected 
directly by their actions or decisions.  

 
c. Campaign contributions from persons directly 

affected by decisions. Public servants should 
be cautious about accepting campaign 
contributions that may reasonably be 
construed to affect their judgment or actions, 
especially from other lobbyists or other persons 
who are likely to be affected by their decisions.  

 
d. Personal relationships with persons directly 

affected by decisions.  Public servants should 
be cautious about accepting campaign 
contributions that may reasonably be 
construed to affect their judgment or actions, 
especially from lobbyists who are likely to be 
affected directly by their decisions.    

  
 
 
 
 



B. Recusal and Disqualification. 
 

Public servants should not take any public action under 
circumstances where, due to a conflict in interests, they are not 
certain that they can do so fairly and objectively.  
  

C. Bias or Favoritism. 
 

Public servants should exercise the powers and prerogatives of 
office fairly without prejudice or favoritism.  It is improper to use 
public authority to reward relatives, friends or political supporters 
or to hinder or punish enemies and opponents. 
   

D. Intervening on Behalf of Constituents and Friends.  
 

Public officials should be extremely cautious about directly or 
indirectly intervening with normal decision making, investigatory, or 
adjudicative processes of governmental bodies on behalf of 
constituents or friends, since such intervention can threaten the 
ability of government administrators to exercise independent 
objective judgment on the merits.  
 

1. General Rule.  Generally, intervention on behalf of 
constituents or friends is proper only if it is strictly 
limited to assuring fairness of the procedures and the 
intervener consciously avoids seeking to unduly 
influence the decision making process. 

   
2. Those who intervene should firmly, explicitly and 

unambiguously convey their limited purpose to reduce 
the possibility of direct or indirect pressure on 
administrators that could reasonably appear to 
influence the substantive decision.  

 
III. PRINCIPLE OF ACCOUNTABILITY. 

 
Public servants should assure that government is conducted openly, 
efficiently, equitably and honorably in a manner that permits the 
citizenry to make informed judgments and hold government officials 
accountable.  
 
 
 
 



A. Oversight.  
 

Public servants should assure that those to whom they have 
delegated public power, including their staffs and administrative 
agencies, carry out their responsibilities efficiently, equitably and 
ethically.  
   

B. Openness.  
 

Public servants should exercise the authority of their offices openly 
so that the public is informed about governmental decisions and 
the citizenry can hold them accountable for their actions.  
 

C. Duty to Improve the System.  
 

Public servants who believe that a law or policy is not achieving its 
intended purpose, is creating unintended harms, or is wasteful or 
inefficient, should take affirmative steps to improve procedures in a 
way that will increase the fairness and quality of government 
services and assure that policies are implemented equitably, 
efficiently and economically.  
 

1. Making Changes.  Public servants should take whatever 
actions they can to correct problems, streamline 
procedures and improve services.  Where desirable 
changes exceed authority, public servants should 
promptly and forcefully recommend reform to the 
appropriate person or body.  

 
2. Supervisor’s Duty.  In order to encourage a broad 

sense of responsibility for both the results and methods 
of government action, supervisors should develop a 
working environment that fosters constructive criticism 
and creative problem solving.   

 
D. Self- Policing. 

 
Public servants should maintain the integrity and trustworthiness of 
government by taking whatever steps are necessary, including 
reporting improper conduct to appropriate authorities, to prevent 
the unlawful or unethical use of public position, authority or 
resources.  
 
 



IV. PRINCIPLE OF DEMOCRATIC LEADERSHIP.  
 

Public servants should honor and respect the principles and spirit of 
representative democracy and set a positive example of good 
citizenship by scrupulously observing the letter and spirit of laws and 
rules.  
 
A. Obeying All Laws.  

 
Public servants have a special obligation to obey all laws and 
regulations.  

 
B. Artifices and Schemes. 

 
Public servants should not engage in artifices and schemes to 
exploit loopholes or ambiguities in the law in a way that 
undermines their spirit and purpose.  

 
C. Integrity of the Process.  

 
In using procedural rules, public servants should maintain the 
integrity, fairness and efficiency of the process by honoring the 
substance and spirit of the rules and by refraining from conduct 
which undermines the principles of representative democracy.  
 

D. Use of Leadership Power. 
 

Legislative leaders and committee chairs should use their 
leadership powers only in a manner consistent with representative 
democracy.  
  

E. Civil Disobedience.  
 

In rare cases, a public servant may exercise the prerogative of 
conscientious objection by disobeying the law.  In such cases, the 
illegal behavior should be open and the official should be willing to 
bear the appropriate legal and political consequences.  
 

V. PRINCIPLE OF RESPECTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR PUBLIC 
OFFICE.  

 
Public servants should safeguard public confidence in the integrity of 
government by being honest, fair, caring and respectful and by 



avoiding conduct creating the appearance of impropriety of which is 
otherwise unbefitting a public official.  
 
A. Fitness of Public Office.  

 
Public servants should conduct their professional and personal lives 
so as to reveal character traits, attitudes, and judgments that are 
worthy of honor and respect and demonstrate fitness for public 
office.  
  

1. Honesty.  Public servants should be scrupulously 
honest, avoiding any form of lying, deception, 
deviousness, hypocrisy, and cheating in their 
professional and personal lives.  

 
2. Integrity.  A public servant should reflect personal 

integrity in all matters, placing principle over 
expediency and demonstrating courage of convictions.  

 
3. Private Personal Conduct.  Public servants should avoid 

engaging in any conduct that is likely to bring discredit 
on themselves and the governmental bodies in which 
they serve.   

 
B. Campaigning.  

 
Those seeking public office should conduct their campaign in a way 
that aids the citizenry to make an informed choice on appropriate 
criteria and which casts credit on government and the election 
process.   
 
 



   Memorandum 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
From: John M Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
Date: January 24, 2005 
Subject: Agenda Item - Rules of Procedure – Proposed Amendments 

 
  
The following memorandum has been placed before City Council at their Regular 
meeting of February 7, 2005 as a Green Agenda Item to allow City Council an 
opportunity to review the document. The item will be placed on the February 21, 
2005 Regular meeting agenda as a Regular Business Item. 
 
City Council at their Special Meeting of January 17, 2005 requested proposed 
amendments be made to their Council’s Rules and Procedures. The rule changes 
were proposed to improve the effectiveness of City Council meetings. 
 
In response to the above request, the following bulleted list of amendments has 
been incorporated into the Council’s Rules of Procedure as redline insertions.  
 

• Commercial Vehicle Appeal hearings to be conducted and acted upon by 
the Board of Zoning Appeals. (Commercial Vehicle Appeal Ordinance has 
been referred to the Planning Commission.) – No Council Rule 
modification required. 

 
• Have two (2) Regular City Council meetings per month with public hearings 

distributed between them. Have one Special City Council meeting (for the 
purpose of study) per month. – Proposed Council Rule Number 3 

 
• Decisions shall not be made at Special Meetings unless so indicated on the 

agenda or unless extenuating circumstances are present and in accordance 
with Charter provisions. - Proposed Council Rule Number 3 

 
• City Council Agenda items that are related to topics where there is 

significant public input anticipated should initiate the scheduling of a Special 
meeting for that specific purpose. - Proposed Council Rule Numbers 5.10, 
5.11, 5.13, 5.18, 6, 14, and 16. 

 

bittnera
Text Box
F-04



• Public Comment may be limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people 
signed up to speak on one topic by the request of the Chair and consensus 
of the City Council. - Proposed Council Rule Numbers 5.10, 5.11, 5.13, 
5.18, 6, 14, and 16. 

 
• Adjournment time will be no later than 12:00 AM. At the direction of the 

Chair and with consensus of City Council this time can be extended. – 
Proposed Council Rule Number 26 

 
In addition to the proposed Council requested amendments, a Special Meetings 
item has been added to the Council Rules of Procedure document to address 
Special meetings scheduled by City Council. - Proposed Council Rule Number 7 
 
Section 3 (5) of the Open Meetings Act states that “A person shall be permitted to 
address a meeting of a public body under rules established and recorded by the 
public body…” It is the belief that these modifications to the City Council Rules of 
Procedure are in compliance with the referenced OMA Section. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
cc: Lori Bluhm, City Attorney 



 

 
 

RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN 
 

Adopted:  June 7, 2004 
 

 
1. APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR PRO TEM........................................................... 1 
2. DESIGNATION OF ACTING MAYOR............................................................... 1 
3. REGULAR MEETINGS...................................................................................... 1 
4. AGENDA ............................................................................................................ 1 
5. ORDER OF BUSINESS..................................................................................... 1 
6. REGULAR BUSINESS....................................................................................... 3 
7. CABLE CASTING OF CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS ......................................... 4 
8. MINUTES ........................................................................................................... 5 
9. PROCLAMATIONS............................................................................................ 5 
10. RECONSIDERATION OF QUESTIONS ........................................................... 5 
11. RESCISSION OF QUESTIONS......................................................................... 5 
12. PUBLIC HEARING............................................................................................. 5 
13. CONSENT AGENDA ......................................................................................... 6 
14. APPOINTMENTS............................................................................................... 6 
15. VISITORS........................................................................................................... 7 
16. POSTPONE........................................................................................................ 7 
17. RULES OF ORDER ........................................................................................... 7 
18. MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES........................................................................ 7 
19. EXPENSES:  OUT-OF-TOWN TRAVEL FOR CITY BUSINESS...................... 7 
20. ABSENCES AT COUNCIL MEETINGS ............................................................ 8 
21. SUSPEND RULES............................................................................................. 8 
22. COUNCIL DISCUSSION.................................................................................... 8 
23. AGENDA ITEMS SUBMITTED BY COUNCIL MEMBERS:.............................. 8 
24. VIDEO AND AUDIO PRESENTATIONS........................................................... 8 
25. VIOLATIONS...................................................................................................... 8 
 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 1 
 

Adopted: 06.07.04 

1. APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR PRO TEM 
The selection of Mayor Pro Tem shall proceed in a linear fashion based on seat rotation in the 
following order: Beltramini, Eisenbacher, Broomfield, Howrylak, Stine, Lambert. 

2. DESIGNATION OF ACTING MAYOR 
In the absence or disability of the Mayor and the Mayor Pro Tem, the Council Member present 
who has served longest shall be designated Acting Mayor and shall perform the duties of the 
Mayor. 

3. REGULAR MEETINGS 
Regular meetings shall be held in the Council Chambers at 7:30 P.M on the first and third 
Monday each month, except for holidays or holiday-eves recognized by the City of Troy, 
regular or special election days, except school district elections, or unless canceled by 
resolution of the Council. Council also will meet on the fourth (4th) Monday of the month in the 
months of September, October, January, February, March, April and May.  
• It is the intention of City Council that no business be placed upon the fourth (4th) Monday of 

the month meeting and that the Regular meeting unless so indicated on the Regular 
Agenda in extenuating circumstances. The fourth (4th) Monday of the month meeting will be 
routinely adjourned without action to allow the City Council to go into a Special meeting of 
City Council for the purpose of study where no action will be taken. 

• Public Comment may be limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people signed up to 
speak on one topic by the request of the Chair and consensus of the City Council. 

4. AGENDA 
(a) Regular Agenda: A printed agenda for each regularly scheduled meeting shall be 

produced at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance of the meeting.  Every item of 
business to come before the Council shall be filed with the City Clerk by noon on the 
Wednesday preceding the Monday on which the Council meets.  It shall be the duty of 
the City Clerk to have delivered, as soon as practical, to each member of the Council a 
complete agenda of the items to be considered at the following meeting.  Each item on 
the agenda shall have sufficient explanation to indicate its intent.  All questions 
introduced that do not appear on the agenda will be referred to a later meeting, except 
by suspension of these rules.  A packet, excluding all confidential items, will be posted 
on the City’s Website at least 48 hours prior to Council meetings. 

 
(b) Closed Session Agenda: Where a Closed Session is requested of a pending case, the 

specific name(s) is to be included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (e), even though the specific 
name(s) is not technically required under the Open Meetings Act.  Where a Closed 
Session is requested of any collective bargaining unit, the specific name(s) is to be 
included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (c), even though not technically required under the 
Open Meetings Act.  

5. ORDER OF BUSINESS 
At each regular meeting of the Council, the business to be considered shall be taken up for 
consideration and disposition in the following order: 

 
1. Call to Order 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 2 
 

Adopted: 06.07.04 

2. Invocation 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 
4. Roll Call 
5. A. Certificates of Recognition 
6. B. Carryover Items 
7. C.  Public Hearings 
8. D.  Postponed Items 
9. E.  Consent Agenda 

1.  Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
2.  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion 

10. Public Comment – Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
• Public comment is limited to not more than twice nor longer than five (5) minutes 

on any item, unless so permitted by the Chair, in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 15, as amended May 3, 2004. City Council 
requests that if you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of 
the appropriate department(s) whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has 
not been resolved satisfactorily, you are encouraged to bring it to the attention of 
the City Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council.  

• It is the intention of City Council that no business be placed upon the fourth (4th) 
Monday of the month meeting and that the Regular meeting unless so indicated 
on the Regular Agenda in extenuating circumstances. The fourth (4th) Monday of 
the month meeting will be routinely adjourned without action to allow the City 
Council to go into a Special meeting of City Council for the purpose of study 
where no action will be taken. 

• Agenda items that are related to topics where there is significant public input 
anticipated should initiate the scheduling of a Special meeting for that specific 
purpose. 

• Public Comment may be limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people 
signed up to speak on one topic by the request of the Chair and consensus of the 
City Council. 

11. F.  Regular Business 
• Council will move forward all of the “F” items on which members of the audience 

would like to address. Public comment is limited to not more than twice nor 
longer than five (5) minutes on any item, unless so permitted by the Chair, in 
accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 15, as 
amended May 3, 2004.  

• Agenda items that are related to topics where there is significant public input 
anticipated should initiate the scheduling of a Special meeting for that specific 
purpose. 

• Public Comment may be limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people 
signed up to speak on one topic by the request of the Chair and consensus of the 
City Council. 

12. F.  Regular Business 
• Address Remaining F Items 

13. G.  Memorandums and Future Council Agenda Items 
• Public comment is limited “G” Items and to not more than twice nor longer than 

five (5) minutes on any item, unless so permitted by the Chair, in accordance with 
the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 15, as amended May 3, 2004. 
City Council requests that if you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 3 
 

Adopted: 06.07.04 

attention of the appropriate department(s) whenever possible. If you feel that the 
matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you are encouraged to bring it to the 
attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to the Mayor 
and Council.  

• Agenda items that are related to topics where there is significant public input 
anticipated should initiate the scheduling of a Special meeting for that specific 
purpose. 

• Public Comment may be limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people 
signed up to speak on one topic by the request of the Chair and consensus of the 
City Council. 

14. H.  Council Referrals 
• Items appearing under Council Referrals are items brought forward by the Mayor 

or Council Members before the City Manager’s agenda deadline for 
consideration at the next regular meeting  

15. I.  Council Comments 
• Items brought forward by Mayor and Council will be placed on the next Regular 

Meeting Agenda for Action. Items appearing under Council Comments are not 
intended for discussion or action at the meeting at which they first appear. 

16. J.  Reports 
• No Public Comment received on “J” Items at this time. 

17. K.  Study Items 
18.  
18.19. Public Comment -–  

Public comment is limited to not more than twice nor longer than five (5) minutes 
on any item, unless so permitted by the Chair, in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 15, as amended May 3, 2004. City Council 
requests that if you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of 
the appropriate department(s) whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has 
not been resolved satisfactorily, you are encouraged to bring it to the attention of 
the City Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council.  

• Agenda items that are related to topics where there is significant public input 
anticipated should initiate the scheduling of a Special meeting for that specific 
purpose. 

• Public Comment may be limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people 
signed up to speak on one topic by the request of the Chair and consensus of the 
City Council. 

19.20. L.  Closed Session 
20.21. Adjournment 

6. REGULAR BUSINESS 
• Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 

Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by the 
Chair during the Public Comment section under item 12.“F” of the agenda. Other than 
asking questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not 
interrupt or debate with members of the public during their comments. For those addressing 
City Council, petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be 
extended with the majority consent of Council and all other interested people, their time may 
be limited to not more than twice nor longer than five (5) minutes on any item, unless so 
permitted by the Chair, in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 4 
 

Adopted: 06.07.04 

Article 15, as amended May 3, 2004. Once discussion is brought back to the Council table, 
persons from the audience will be permitted to speak only by invitation by Council, through 
the Chair.  

• Agenda items that are related to topics where there is significant public input anticipated 
should initiate the scheduling of a Special meeting for that specific purpose. 

• Public Comment may be limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people signed up to 
speak on one topic by the request of the Chair and consensus of the City Council. 

 

7. SPECIAL MEETINGS 

A. CALLING OF SPECIAL MEETINGS: (Pursuant to City Charter Section 4.2) 
Section 4.2 - Special Meetings: 
Special meetings shall be called by the Clerk on the written request of the 
Mayor, or any two members of the Council on at least twenty-four hours written 
notice to each member of the Council, served personally or left at his usual 
place of residence; but a special meeting may be held on shorter notice if all 
members of the Council are present or have waived notice thereof in writing. 

B. DOCUMENTATION: 
Special meetings shall be exclusively limited to items specifically referenced in 
the Call of the Meeting. 
• Special Meeting Posting: Pursuant to City Charter a printed meeting notice for 

each specially called meeting shall contain the items indicated in the written 
notice calling the meeting.   

• (b) Study Session (Special Meeting) Agenda and Posting: Study Session 
Agendas shall contain the items as indicated in the motion calling the meeting.  

C. POSTING AND DELIVERY: 
Special meeting Calling Notice and/or Agenda shall be personally delivered to 
each Council Member and posted for public display at least twenty-four (24) 
hours in advance of the meeting. 

D. ORDER OF BUSINESS 
At each Study Session (Special Meeting) of the Council, the business to be considered 
shall include the items listed and in the following order: 

 
a) Call to Order 
b) Roll Call 
c) Items as Indicated in the Motion Calling of the Meeting 
d) Items Not Indicated in the Motion Call the Meeting, Pursuant to City Charter  
e) See Article 6 Amendments/Additions to Agenda 
f) Public Comment 
g) Public comment is limited to no longer than five (5) minutes, unless so permitted 

by the Chair, in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 
9, as adopted           , 2005. City Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 5 
 

Adopted: 06.07.04 

you are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not 
resolved satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 

h) Adjournment 

E. AMENDMENTS/ADDITIONS TO AGENDA 
1. By Charter, special meetings are limited to what is expressly indicated in the Call 

of the meeting (Motion of Council or written notice, per Charter). 
2. If all members of City Council approve of agenda amendments or additions in 

writing prior to the desired action, then Council can entertain such desired action 
only when all members present at the meeting consent to allow the 
amendment/addition to the agenda. 

78. CABLE CASTING OF CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS 
All City Council Meetings will be broadcast on WTRY, with the exception of Closed meetings of 
City Council. 

89. MINUTES 
a. Regular Minutes: The minutes will be distributed to the Council prior to their approval. The 

minutes will be placed on the Consent Agenda for approval. 
 
b. Closed Session Minutes: Where a Closed Session is requested for discussion of a 

pending case, the specific name(s) is to be included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (e), even 
though the specific name(s) is not technically required under the Open Meetings Act.  
Where a Closed Session is requested of any collective bargaining unit, the specific 
name(s) of a collective bargaining unit is to be included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (c), 
even though not technically required under the Open Meetings Act.  

910. PROCLAMATIONS 
Proclamations shall be included in the agenda under Reports and Communications and may 
be brought before Council for consideration by any member. Proclamations will be placed on 
the Consent Agenda for approval. 

110. RECONSIDERATION OF QUESTIONS 
Reconsideration of any vote of the Council may be made by either side of the voted motion and 
shall require the affirmative vote of the majority of the Council Members*. Reconsideration of 
any vote of the Council may further be made by either side of the voted motion and shall 
require the affirmative vote of the majority of the Council Members provided that new 
information has been brought forward. *Charter states “majority of the members elect.” 

121. RESCISSION OF QUESTIONS 
Rescission of any vote of the Council shall require the affirmative vote of the majority of the 
Council Members. *Charter states “majority of the members elect.” 

132. PUBLIC HEARING 
Public Hearings will be held after required notice has been provided. Notices shall inform 
recipients of possible continuations of hearings.  The City Council may upon affirmative vote of 
a majority of its members "continue" said hearing at a future date designated in the resolution. 
If the City Council elects to continue the Public Hearing it will appear in the designated meeting 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 6 
 

Adopted: 06.07.04 

Agenda under the topic of "Public Hearings".  Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute 
presentation time that may be extended with the majority consent of Council.  

143. CONSENT AGENDA 
The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one motion. 
That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent Agenda.  Any 
Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in opposition to the 
recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda and have it considered as 
a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent Agenda shall be considered after 
other items on the consent portion of the agenda have been heard. Public comment on 
Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda Item 9 “E” Public Comment– Limited to 
“E” Consent Agenda Items - Public Comment is limited to not more than twice nor longer than 
five (5) minutes on any item, unless so permitted by the Chair, in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 15, as amended May 3, 2004.  
• Agenda items that are related to topics where there is significant public input anticipated 

should initiate the scheduling of a Special meeting for that specific purpose. 
• Public Comment may be limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people signed up to 

speak on one topic by the request of the Chair and consensus of the City Council. 
 

154. APPOINTMENTS 
A. Appointments to Boards, Commissions and Committees: 

 
The Mayor shall, with City Council concurrence, appoint members of Boards or Committees 
as governed by State Statute or local ordinances. 
 
The Mayor Pro Tem will contact incumbents to determine their interest in being nominated 
for reappointment. 
 
The Mayor or any Council Member desiring to nominate a person for appointment to a 
Board, Commission, or Committee shall submit such name, along with a brief summary of 
background and personal data as to nominee's qualifications, except that such a resume 
shall not be required for the re-nomination of a current member, or if the Council 
unanimously agrees that a resume is not necessary.  Resumes will be submitted on or 
before the time of voting. 
 
Nominations will occur during any regular meeting of the Council.  A resolution to nominate 
will be considered during the "Regular Business" of the agenda.  All nominations are subject 
to Section "B" which appears below. 

 
B. Method of Voting on Nominees. 

 
1. Where the number of nominees does not exceed the number of positions to be filled, a 

roll call vote shall be used. 
 
2. Where the number of nominations exceeds the number of positions to be filled, voting 

shall take place by the City Clerk calling the roll of the Council and each Council 
Member is to indicate the names of the individuals he/she wishes to fill the vacancies 

 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 7 
 

Adopted: 06.07.04 

3. When no candidate receives a majority vote, the candidate(s) with the least number of 
votes shall be eliminated from the ensuing ballot. 

 
4. No member of the City Council shall serve on any committee, commission or board of 

the City of Troy, except the Retirement System Board of Trustees, unless membership 
is required by Statute or the City Charter. 

 
5. Persons nominated, but not appointed during this process will be sent a letter thanking 

them for their willingness to serve the community. 
 
6. Recognition will be given to persons who have concluded their service to the community 

on Boards and Commissions. 

165. VISITORS 
Any person not a member of the Council may address the Council with recognition of the 
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry. No person not a member of the 
Council shall be allowed to speak more than twice or longer than five (5) minutes on any item, 
unless so permitted by the Chair. The Council may waive the requirements of this section by 
a majority of the Council Members. City Council requests that if you do have a question or 
concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) whenever possible. If you 
feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you are encouraged to bring it to the 
attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
• Agenda items that are related to topics where there is significant public input anticipated 

should initiate the scheduling of a Special meeting for that specific purpose. 
• Public Comment may be limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people signed up to 

speak on one topic by the request of the Chair and consensus of the City Council. 
 

176. POSTPONE  
A motion to postpone may be made for a definite period of time. Items will automatically appear 
on the appropriate agenda. 

187. RULES OF ORDER 
Robert's Rules of Order, Newly Revised 10th Edition, as clarified by the City Clerk, is hereby 
adopted and made a part hereof, except as modified by these Rules of Procedure, the Charter, 
and the City Code. 

198. MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES 
Reasonable and necessary expenses incurred in service on behalf of the City shall be paid the 
Mayor and Council, provided that at the end of each month a detailed expense report is 
submitted and approved by the City Council. 

2019. EXPENSES:  OUT-OF-TOWN TRAVEL FOR CITY BUSINESS 
A. Funds providing for Council representation at State and National conferences 

sponsored by affiliations of cities will be annually approved in the budget for the subject 
fiscal year. The City Council will by advance resolution grant authorization for out of 
town travel to specific places, for conference purposes. Members of the City Council will 
submit expense vouchers exceeding $50 per day to attend out-of-town meetings and 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 8 
 

Adopted: 06.07.04 

conferences, with additional allowances being made for transportation (paid at the air 
coach rate or gas mileage at current IRS guidelines, depending upon the mode of 
transportation) and lodging. Expenses may be authorized for payment by the City 
Manager, and a copy of the expense report form will be placed on the Council agenda 
under Reports and Communications. 
 

B. Detailed and receipted expenses, not to exceed $150, to attend legislative committee 
hearings, legislative meetings, etc., may be authorized for payment by the City Manager 
without prior authorization by the Council, and a copy of the expense report form, along 
with receipts, will be placed on the Council agenda under Reports and Communications. 

210. ABSENCES AT COUNCIL MEETINGS 
In the event of an absence of a Council Member at a meeting, the City Manager is directed to 
supply such absent Council Member with information about any special meetings that may 
have been scheduled. 

221. SUSPEND RULES 
The Rules of Procedure may be waived by a simple majority. 

232. COUNCIL DISCUSSION 
No member of Council shall speak a second time on any item under discussion until all other 
members desiring to speak on that item have been heard. No member of Council shall be 
allowed to speak for more than five (5)-minutes at a time. 

243. AGENDA ITEMS SUBMITTED BY COUNCIL MEMBERS: 
Mayor and Council Members submitting an item for a vote shall send the item to the City 
Manager in a timely manner in writing. Staff professional opinion will be written to accompany 
the item for discussion and a vote on the matter. Presentations at the Council table shall be 
limited to 15 minutes. 

254. VIDEO AND AUDIO PRESENTATIONS  
Video and Audio Presentations may not be submitted for presentation at a Council meeting 
unless submitted by 12:00 Noon prior to the meeting. Inappropriate material will be prohibited. 
 

26 CONTINUED AGENDA ITEMS NOT CONSIDERED BEFORE 12:00 PM 
Any item on the Council agenda that has not been discussed by 12:00 p.m. shall be 
continued to the next regular meeting as a Carryover Item, unless City Council takes action 
to the contrary. 
 

275. VIOLATIONS 
The City Clerk shall be responsible for reporting violations of time limitations or speaking 
sequence to the Chair. 



 
 
DATE:  February 11, 2005 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM - ANNOUNCEMENT OF PUBLIC HEARING 

(FEBRUARY 28, 2005) - ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
FOR SECTION 03.21, PROCEDURE (ZOTA 210) 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The City and Village Zoning Act allows communities to adopt requirements that permit a 
person opposing a proposed zoning ordinance amendment to present a protest petition 
to the legislative body before final City Council action on the amendment.  The protest 
petition has to be signed by at least 20% of the area of land included in the proposed 
change, or by the owners of at least 20% of the area of land included within an area 
extending outward 100 feet from any point on the boundary of the land included in the 
proposed change, excluding public lands.  Upon presentation of a protest petition that 
meets either of these requirements, City Council is required to adopt the zoning 
ordinance by at least a 2/3 vote of the legislative body.  However, there is no current 
language in the zoning ordinance related to protest petitions.  The proposed draft Article 
03.21.07 is consistent with the requirements of the City and Village Zoning Act.   
 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on this item at the December 14, 2004 
Regular Meeting.  The Planning Commission recommended approval of the draft 
amendment.  City Management agrees with the Planning Commission recommendation 
and recommends approval of ZOTA 210, as printed.   
 
 
 
Reviewed as to Form and Legality: _________________________ _______ 
      Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney Date 
 
cc: File/ZOTA 210 
 Planning Commission 
 
Attachments: 
1. ZOTA 210, dated December 7, 2004 
2. Minutes from December 14, 2004 Planning Commission Public Hearing 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 210 Protest Petitions\CC Announcement of Public Hearing Memo 02 15 05.doc 

bittnera
Text Box
G-01a









 
 
DATE:  February 11, 2005 
 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
  
FROM: Douglas J. Smith, Real Estate & Development Director 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM - ANNOUNCEMENT OF PUBLIC HEARING 

(FEBRUARY 28, 2005) - ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
FOR SECTION 04.20 DEFINITIONS, SECTION 22.30 USES 
PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL - B-3 DISTRICT, 
SECTION 28.25 CONDITIONAL USES PERMITTED - M-1 DISTRICT 
(ZOTA 209) 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
A landowner has approached the City with an interest in leasing an existing building 
with the purpose of developing a veterinary hospital in Troy.  Presently the zoning 
ordinance does not permit veterinary hospitals in the M-1 Light Industrial District.  
“Veterinary Hospitals or Clinics” are permitted subject to Special Use Approval in the 
B-3 District (Article 22.30.04).  Commercial Kennels are permitted in the M-1 District 
by Special Use Approval (Article 28.30.08).  There is no definition for “Veterinarian 
Hospital” in the Zoning Ordinance.    
 
The proposed text amendment includes a definition for “Veterinary Hospital”.  Article 
22.30.04 has been modified to eliminate the reference to “clinics”, and making the 
provision consistent with the proposed provision 28.25.06 and the proposed definition.  
Article 22.30.05 has been amended by eliminating a typographical error in the provision, 
which incorrectly includes a “0” in front of the word “zoned” in sub-section B. 
 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on this item at the December 14, 2004 
Regular meeting.  The Planning Commission recommended approval of the proposed 
amendment.  City Management agrees with the Planning Commission recommendation 
and recommends approval of ZOTA 209, as printed.   
 
 
 
Reviewed as to Form and Legality: _________________________ _________ 
      Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney Date 
 
cc: File/ZOTA 209 
 Planning Commission 

bittnera
Text Box
G-01b



Attachments: 
1. ZOTA 209, dated December 7, 2004 
2. Minutes from December 14, 2004 Planning Commission Public Hearing 
3. Article 28.30.08 Commercial Kennel requirements in M-1 
4. Article 22.30.04 Veterinary Hospital and Clinic requirements in B-3 
5. Article 22.30.05 Commercial Kennel requirements in B-3 
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 209 Veterinary Clinics in M-1\CC Announcement of Public Hearing Memo 02 15 05.doc 



Prepared by City of Troy Planning Department  12/7/04 1

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 39 
of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2 – Amendment to Articles IV, XXII and XXVIII of Chapter 39 
Articles IV, XXII, and XXVIII of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is 
amended to provide a definition for "veterinary hospital" and to permit veterinary 
hospitals as a conditional use permitted in the M-1 Light Industrial District subject 
to specific standards by the addition of a new sections 04.20.152 and 28.25.06 
and by revising section 22.30.04 and 22.30.05 as follows:   
 
 
04.20.152 VETERINARY HOSPITAL: A facility maintained by or for the use of a 

licensed veterinarian in the diagnosis, treatment, or prevention of 
animal diseases and injuries.   

 
 
22.30.04 Veterinary hospitals or clinics, provided all activities are conducted 

within a totally enclosed main building and provided further that all 
abutting or adjacent property is non-residentially zoned. 

 
 
22.30.5 Commercial Kennels, subject to the following conditions: 
 

A. The site shall have at least one property line abutting a major 
thoroughfare. 

 
B. The site shall be no closer than three hundred (300) feet from 

any residentially-zoned or used property. This distance 
provision shall not apply to residentially-0zoned land, which is 
developed or committed for uses other than the construction of 
residential dwellings. 

 
C. A Commercial Kennel establishment may include ancillary 

uses such as pet grooming and pet obedience training. 
 
 
28.25.06 Veterinary hospitals, subject to the following conditions: 

 
  A. All activities shall be conducted within a totally enclosed 

main building.  No outdoor dog run areas shall be permitted. 



Prepared by City of Troy Planning Department  12/7/04 2

 
  B. A veterinary hospital may include ancillary uses such as 

overnight boarding, pet grooming and pet obedience training. 
 
 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance 
adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of 
this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions 
pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for offenses 
committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in accordance with 
the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such 
offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, ____. 
 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 209 Veterinary Clinics in M-1\Draft 4 Veterinary Hospitals in M-1 12 28 04.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 14, 2004 
 

13. PUBLIC HEARING - ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 209) – 
Articles 04.20.152, 28.30.09, and 28.30.10 – Veterinary Hospitals in the M-1 (Light 
Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Miller provided a brief review of the proposed zoning ordinance text 
amendment relating to veterinary hospitals.  
 
Mr. Chamberlain brought to the attention of the Planning Department one 
typographical error in the third line of Section 22.30.05(B); that is, to delete the “0” 
in front of the word “zoned”.  Mr. Chamberlain said he was informed from a 
veterinarian friend of his that the facility terms used by veterinarians (i.e., clinic, 
hospital) are synonymous with respect to medical treatment.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2004-12-160 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Drake-Batts 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Articles 04.20.152, 28.30.09, and 28.30.10, pertaining to Veterinary 
Hospitals in the M-1 (Light Industrial) District, be amended as printed on the 
Proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment and further, that Article 
22.30.05(B) be amended per Member Chamberlain’s comments.   
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Schultz, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 







February 11, 2005 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Charles Craft, Police Chief 
  Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Report and Communication/Snow Emergency 

Ordinance 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that a Snow Advisory Ordinance be proposed and that staff 
have the opportunity to bring this proposed ordinance to council by June 20, 
2005.  The June date provides Staff an opportunity to develop the ordinance and 
if approved by Council ample time to train staff and have proper notification to the 
residents and business community of Troy before the next winter season. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Over the 50-year history of the City of Troy there has been numerous requests to 
staff and Council recommending that City Council adopt a Snow Emergency 
Ordinance. The most recent proposal to City Council was presented on January 
7, 2002. 
 
Streets that are clear of parked vehicles would increase our snow removal 
efficiency and improve the quality of the end product.  Typically, Snow 
Emergency ordinances prohibit the parking of vehicles on the street during the 
duration of the declared emergency and authorize the police department to 
remove vehicles that do not comply.   
 
Such ordinances place an increased demand on police service at a time when 
the police department typically experiences a substantial increase in calls for 
service of a more serious nature.  It also requires the services of a tow truck at a 
time when towing services have increased demand for their services.  As a result 
of these two factors, enforcement of a Snow Emergency ordinance would be 
inconsistent at best.  In that calls for police service are prioritized, problems 
brought on by a severe snowstorm could make enforcement of the ordinance 
impossible.    
 
It is also important to note the enactment of a Snow Emergency ordinance would 
create a public perception that vehicles would be towed.  Failure by the police 
department to remove the vehicles parked on the street in a timely fashion, 
regardless of the circumstances, would serve to frustrate those who comply with 
the ordinance.      
 

bittnera
Text Box
G-02a



Therefore we will be proposing a Snow Advisory Ordinance that will act as a 
notification to the community of our citywide plowing operation and request for 
voluntary prohibition of parking on the street until it has been fully cleared.  In 
addition we will be looking at current parking restrictions that may be temporarily 
suspended during a Snow Advisory that may assist residence in removing the 
vehicles off the street.  
 
 
Prepared by:  Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director 



bittnera
Text Box
H-01









FINAL 
Meeting Minutes 

 
A meeting of the Downtown Development Authority was held on Wednesday, 
September 15, 2004 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 W. 
Big Beaver Troy, Michigan.  Alan Kiriluk called the meeting to order at 7:30 a.m. 
 
PRESENT:  Stuart Frankel 

Michele Hodges 
William Kennis 
Alan Kiriluk 

   Carol Price 
   Ernest Reschke 
   Douglas Schroeder   

G. Thomas York 
Harvey Weiss    

    
ABSENT:  Michael Culpepper 
   David Hay 

Daniel MacLeish 
Louise Schilling 

 
             
ALSO PRESENT: John Szerlag    
   Lori Bluhm 
   John M. Lamerato  

Brian Murphy   
   Mark Miller 

Doug Smith 
Mark Stimac 
Laura Fitzpatrick 
 
 

EXCUSE ABSENT MEMBERS 
 
Resolution:    DD-04-14 
Moved by:    York 
Seconded by: Price 
 
RESOLVED, That Culpepper, Hay, MacLeish and Schilling be excused. 
 
Yeas: All (9) 
Absent: Culpepper, Hay, MacLeish, Schilling 
 

 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution: DD-04-15 
Moved by: Hodges 
Seconded by: Frankel 

bittnera
Text Box
J-01a



 
RESOLVED, that the minutes of the July 14, 2004 regular meeting be approved. 
 
Yeas:  All (9) 
Absent: Culpepper, Hay, MacLeish, Schilling 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
Mission of the DDA 
 
John Szerlag and Board members discussed the mission statement and goals and 
objectives of the DDA in preparation for a joint meeting with City Council on 
September 22, 2004. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
New member David Hay of Kelly Services. 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Several members in attendance addressed the Board.    
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:42 a.m. 
 
Next Meeting:  September 22, 2004 @ 7:30 a.m. @ Top of Troy, 13th floor 

 
         
 
 __________________________________________ 

Alan Kiriluk, Chairman   
 

________________________________________ 
      John M. Lamerato, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
JL/pg 



TROY ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD – FINAL October 5, 2004 
 

Call to Order 
The regular meeting was called to order at 7:10 p.m. in Conference Room C at Troy City Hall. 
 
 
Roll Call 

Present: Tom Kaszubski   Jeff Hyun 
Anju Brodbine   Oniell Shah  

  Padma Kuppa   Charles Yuan   
   Amin Hashmi    Flora Tan 

Cindy Stewart, City Liaison   
 

  Absent: Hailu Robele    Kara Huang, Student Rep  
   
  Visitor: Rommy Najor, WSU student 
 
 
Approval of Minutes 
Minutes from September 7, 2004 - Motion by Shah, second by Yuan. Approved unanimously. 
 

 
Correspondence 
Eccentric editorial September 30 “Display policy is wrong move” 
 
 
New Business 

A. Sights & Sounds 
a. Letters sent to following contacts, members will do follow up phone call 
Oniell – Germany, Egypt, Tom – Poland, Flora – France, Jeff – Ukraine, 
Amin – Pakistan 
b. Cindy- email dates to EIA Board for 2004-05 Sights & Sounds 
c. Oniell and Flora will try to stop by Russian Cultural Show on Saturday 
d. Padma will visit Senior Craft Show for ideas for next year 
e. Send packet to Romanian contact and Japanese Society Women’s Club 
f. Padma will contact Hill and Troy Union music teachers re: program at future Sights 

& Sounds 
 
 
Old Business 

A. Troy Daze Booth wrap-up 
a. Booth needs better coverage. Padma will contact principal from International 

Academy for student volunteers to assist EIA Board with programs throughout the 
year. 

b. EIA take lead role in the tent. Invite JoAnn Preston to EIA meeting (Nov. 9) and 
brainstorm 2005 EthniCity. 

c. Idea for tent – have a stage in the center and have demos at various times 
(Mehendi, eating with chopsticks, Chinese painting, puppets) 

 

bittnera
Text Box
J-01b



TROY ETHNCI ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD – FINAL October 5, 2004 
 
 

  

B. Resource List 
a. Email updated list to EIA Board – shoot for Jan. 23 Kaleidoscope event. 

 
C. Diversity Month 

a. April 8 – May 8, 2005 
b. Send letters to schools, businesses, churches 
c. Let EIA Board know and we’ll publicize 
d. Tim re: new PTO list 

 
D. Law Brochure 

a. On hold, ask company how much it would cost 
 

E. Community Kaleidoscope 
a. Sunday, January 23 
b. Giveaways, resource guide, globes 
c. Next meeting, November 9, 2004, move from November 2 (Election Day) 

 
F. EIA Board adopt a needy family in December 
 
 
 
Next meeting November 9, 2004 

 
  
Motion by Kuppa, second by Brodbine to adjourn - Meeting adjourned at 8:40 pm   
 
 
 

_______________________________________ 
Tom Kaszubski, EIA Board Chairman 

 
 

_______________________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, Recording Secretary 

 
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT– DEC 2004 

 1

 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, December 1, 2004, at the lower level conference room at City Hall.  
Leonard Bertin called the Meeting to order at 7:04 P.M. 
 
Present:  L Bertin, member  S. Burt, member 
   A. Done, member  A. Fuhrman, alternate 
   P. Manetta, member D. Pietron, member     
    
Present: M. Grusnick, staff 
   K. Jearls, staff 
 
Absent: C. Buchanan, member, EA  K. Gauri, member, EA 
   T. House, member, EA  N. Johnson, alternate, EA 
   M. Pritzlaff, alternate, EA  A. Wiqar, student, UA 
    
ITEM B – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF NOVEMBER 3,  2004 
Burt made a motion that the minutes of November 3, 2004 be approved.  Supported by 
Pietron.  All voted in favor. 
 
ITEM C – VISITORS, DELEGATIONS AND GENERAL PUBLIC 
 
ITEM D – NEW BUSINESS 
Bertin spoke with the Michigan Municipal League and they do not have training or 
seminars available at this time for disability issues.  They are interested; Bertin invited 
Kelly Stanford and/or Erica Hagendorff to the next meeting. 
 
Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager for Services, also plans on attending. 
 
Grusnick will check into room availability at the Community Center for a meeting in 
spring with the Chronic Illness Coalition. 
 
ITEM E – REGULAR BUSINESS 
Manetta will attend the 12/6 City Council meeting and Burt will attend 12/20. 
 
ITEM F – OLD BUSINESS 
Done brought House’s review of Troy polling places to the meeting.  It will be forwarded 
to the Clerk’s office to address the deficiencies. 
 
ITEM G – INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
City Council proclaimed December 3, 2004 as International Day For Persons With 
Disabilities.  This is the 3rd consecutive year of this proclamation signed by City Council 
and Mayor. 
 
 

bittnera
Text Box
J-01c



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT– DEC 2004 

 2

 
 
ITEM H – ADJOURN 
Burt made a motion to adjourn at 8:00, Done seconded. 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                         _______________________________ 
                         Leonard Bertin, Chairperson 
 
 
        ________________________________ 
           Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                            
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL– DEC 2004 

 1

 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, December 1, 2004, at the lower level conference room at City Hall.  
Leonard Bertin called the Meeting to order at 7:04 P.M. 
 
Present:  L Bertin, member  S. Burt, member 
   A. Done, member  A. Fuhrman, alternate 
   P. Manetta, member D. Pietron, member     
    
Present: M. Grusnick, staff 
   K. Jearls, staff 
 
Absent: C. Buchanan, member, EA  K. Gauri, member, EA 
   T. House, member, EA  N. Johnson, alternate, EA 
   M. Pritzlaff, alternate, EA  A. Wiqar, student, UA 
    
ITEM B – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF NOVEMBER 3,  2004 
Burt made a motion that the minutes of November 3, 2004 be approved.  Supported by 
Pietron.  All voted in favor. 
 
ITEM C – VISITORS, DELEGATIONS AND GENERAL PUBLIC 
 
ITEM D – NEW BUSINESS 
Bertin spoke with the Michigan Municipal League and they do not have training or 
seminars available at this time for disability issues.  They are interested; Bertin invited 
Kelly Stanford and/or Erica Hagendorff to the next meeting. 
 
Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager for Services, also plans on attending. 
 
Grusnick will check into room availability at the Community Center for a meeting in 
spring with the Chronic Illness Coalition. 
 
ITEM E – REGULAR BUSINESS 
Manetta will attend the 12/6 City Council meeting and Burt will attend 12/20. 
 
ITEM F – OLD BUSINESS 
Done brought House’s review of Troy polling places to the meeting.  It will be forwarded 
to the Clerk’s office to address the deficiencies. 
 
ITEM G – INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
City Council proclaimed December 3, 2004 as International Day For Persons With 
Disabilities.  This is the 3rd consecutive year of this proclamation signed by City Council 
and Mayor. 
 
 

bittnera
Text Box
J-01d



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL– DEC 2004 

 2

 
 
ITEM H – ADJOURN 
Burt made a motion to adjourn at 8:00, Done seconded. 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                         _______________________________ 
                         Leonard Bertin, Chairperson 
 
 
        ________________________________ 
           Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                            
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                            Dec. 2, 2004 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A Regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday, 
December 2 2004 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair JoAnn Thompson called the meeting 
to order at 10:01 AM. 
 
Present: JoAnn Thompson, Chair Bill Weisgerber, Vice-Chair  
 David Ogg, Member       Pauline Noce, Member 
 Bud Black, Member James Berar, Member 
 Merrill Dixon, Member    Carla Vaughan, Staff   
     
Absent:   Marie Hoag, Jo Rhoades-excused  
   
Visitors:    David Keats, Stu Alderman, Kraig Schmottlach, Mary Beth Halushka 
   
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2004-12-001 
Moved by Bud Black 
Seconded by Pauline Noce 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of November 4, 2004 be approved as submitted. 
 
Yes:  7      
No:  0       
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
Stu Alderman stated that he and Kriag were there to answer questions the Committee might 
have about the catering contract.  
 
Old Business 
 
Troy Senior Council Name Change:   JoAnn Thompson reported that she talked to the 
assistant City Attorney and she is willing to help Jo-Anne Stein with the name change.  
 
Senior Centers in Neighboring Cities/Shuffleboard:   JoAnn Thompson visited the 
shuffleboard and bocce courts in St. Clair Shores and talked to someone there about them.  
They are well used.  Warren has indoor and outdoor shuffleboard courts.  Carla drafted a form 
that committee members can use when visiting other senior centers.  Committee members will 
review the form and revise it at the next meeting.     
 
 
 
 
 
 

bittnera
Text Box
J-01e



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                            Dec. 2, 2004 

2 

Catering Service at the Community Center:  Stu Alderman explained the catering contract 
and discussed concerns that the committee has about the cost of refreshments for non-profit 
groups.  JoAnn Thompson would like to know how much revenue the cater gets from non-profit 
groups, and what profit Parks and Recreation gets from this revenue.  Bud Black would like to 
see a copy of the catering contract.  JoAnn read a letter from the Troy American Association of 
University Women stating that they and other groups no longer meet at the Community Center 
due to the cost of refreshments.  The committee reviewed and approved a memo for City 
Council recommending changes in the catering contract (copy attached). 
  
Resolution # SC-2004-12-002 
Moved by Pauline Noce 
Seconded by Bud Black 
 
RESOLVED, That the memo reviewed at today’s meeting be sent to City Council. 
 
Yes:  6   (Bill Weisgerber was excused from the vote)     
No:  0       
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
New Business 
 
Minor League Baseball Stadium:  David Ogg led a discussion about the minor league 
baseball stadium and handed out information from Troy Citizens United. 
 
Reports 
 
Park Board: Merrill Dixon reported that the Park Board will attend a special meeting to discuss 
the baseball stadium.  
 
Medi-Go:   No report.  
 
Nutrition:  No report.  
    There were 1356 meals served on 22 days at the Community Center in September.   
Senior Program:  Carla reported that Elaine Torvinen has been hired as the new senior 
program coordinator.  She was previously employed at the Royal Oak Senior Center with 
similar responsibilities.  We will be offering two new craft classes this winter:  Stained Glass 
and Animal Drawing.  Creative Endeavors posted record sales in November with a 35% 
increase over sales of November 2003.  We are going to discontinue the Theme lunches in 
January because attendance has been low. 
    
OLHSA:  Jo Rhoads reported  
 
 
 
Suggestion Box:  None. 
 
Comments 
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                            Dec. 2, 2004 

3 

 
 
 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 11:30 a.m.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
JoAnn Thompson, Chair     Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



 1 

LIBRARY BOARD MINUTES - FINAL DECEMBER 9, 2004 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Library Board was held Thursday, December 9, 2004 at 
the Office of the Library Director.  Brian Griffen, Chairman, called the meeting to order 
at 7:30 P.M. 
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT: Lynne Gregory 
   Brian Griffen 
   Nancy Wheeler 
   Audre Zembrzuski 
   Cheng Chen, Student Representative 
   Lauren Andreoff 
   Brian Stoutenburg, Library Director 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given 
 
 
Resolution #LB-2004-12-001 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Gregory 
 
RESOLVED, That Joanne Allen be excused. 
Yes:  4—Gregory, Griffen, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No:  0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Resolution #LB-2004-12-002 
Moved by Wheeler 
Seconded by Gregory 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of October 14, 2004 be approved with this 
correction:  adding the sentence “This could be used by parents as an incentive 
for children to come to the library as opposed to candy or other treats.”  The 
sentence would follow  “Zembrzuski suggested that the Library have a program 
for children at which they can buy cloth bags and decorate them.” 
 
Yes:  4—Gregory, Griffen, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No:  0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Reviewed Agenda entries 
 
Resolution #LB-2004-12-003 
Moved by Gregory 
Seconded by Zembrzuski 

bittnera
Text Box
J-01f



 2 

 
RESOLVED, That the Agenda be approved.  
Yes:  4— Gregory, Griffen, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No:  0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS 
There were no postponed items. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
Resolution #LB-2004-11-005 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Wheeler 
 
RESOLVED, That the Suburban Library Cooperative’s Plan of Service be 
approved as presented.    
Yes:  4—Gregory, Griffen, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No:  0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
The Meeting Room Guidelines were reviewed by the Board. 
 
REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS 
Director’s Report. 
A photo of the Library’s Youth Services entrance through the Peace Garden was 
chosen for the 2005 Sirsi Calendar for the month of April.  Staff, Friends and Library 
Board enjoyed a recognition party for being ranked number one in the State for libraries 
our size and for receiving a Citation of Excellence from the Library of Michigan 
Foundation.  The Library’s Liaison Committee coordinated the event.  We have received 
a lot of media coverage over these two achievements.  
 
Board Member comments. 
Wheeler inquired about Mr. Lenivov’s presentation about establishing an event similar 
to Detroit’s Noel Night at the last meeting.  Griffen commented that so much is going on 
City-wide that this probably isn’t necessary.  Each organization could do something 
separately if they chose to.  He further commented that this is something that should 
come down from City Council, rather than up from Boards and Commissions.  
 
Zembrzuski relayed a patron’s concern that magazines were not in sequence and 
sometimes issues were not there.  Our magazines can be checked out once a new 
issue arrives, so that would account for the “missing” issues. 
Griffen asked for Quarterly Budget figures to be presented when the other quarterly 
reports were provided. 
 
Gregory asked about the restrictions for meetings held at the Community Center. 
 



 3 

Chen commented that students come to the library to study and has received no 
complaints from them as to library services. 
 
SLC Report. 
Gregory reported that the SLC Board voted to keep the Non-Resident Card fee at $200 
per residence.  He also said that information on self checkout machines was available 
at www.checkpoint.com. 
 
Friends of the Library.  
The Friends will be holding three evening book sales to reduce their stock.  They are 
scheduled for December 7, 14, 21 from 4:00 until 7:00 in the west lobby. 
 
Gifts.    
Two gifts totaling $110.00 were received. 
 
Informational Items.   
December TPL Calendar 
 
Contacts and Correspondence.    
20 written comments from the public were reviewed. 
 
Public Participation.   
There was no public participation. 
 
The Library Board meeting adjourned at 8:25 P.M. 
 

 
 
 
Brian Griffen 
Chair 
 
 
 
Brian Stoutenburg 
Recording Secretary 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL                December 13, 2004 
 

Page 1 of 3 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, December 
13, 2004 in Conference Room C of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver Road.  
Committee member James R. Peard called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
  
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Henry W. Allemon 
    Alex Bennett 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    James R. Peard 
    Emily Polet, Student Representative 
    Carolyn Glosby, Assistant City Attorney 
    Sergeant Thomas J. Gordon 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    Anita Elenbaum (resigned) 
 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Member Ehlert 
 
Resolution #LC2004-12-132 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Bennett 
 
RESOLVED, that the absence of Committee member Ehlert at the Liquor Advisory 
Committee meeting of December 13, 2004 BE EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert, Elenbaum 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of November 8, 2004 Meeting  
 
Resolution #LC2004-12-133 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Bennett 
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the November 8, 2004 meeting of the Liquor Advisory 
Committee be approved. 

bittnera
Text Box
J-01g



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL                December 13, 2004 
 

Page 2 of 3 

Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert, Elenbaum 
 
_____________________________________________________________________  
 
Agenda Items: 
 
1.     MJMN, INC., requests to transfer ownership of 2004 SDD & SDM licensed 

business located at 36949 Dequindre, Troy MI, 48084, Oakland County, from 
Asia Mart, Inc.  [MLCC REQ ID# 268689]    Inspections underway – proposed 
Atlas Market and Bakery 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was Thomas Giachino, attorney for 
Atlas Market and Bakery.   
 
The owners of this business are planning to open a full service grocery and bakery, 
subleasing space for a pharmacy.  They are doing extensive remodeling and city 
inspections are nearly completed.  They currently own a store in Highland Park and 
have many years of management experience.   
 
Resolution #LC2004-12-134 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Bennett  
 
RESOLVED, that MJMN, INC., be allowed to transfer ownership of 2004 SDD & SDM 
licensed business located at 36949 Dequindre, Troy MI, 48084, Oakland County, from 
Asia Mart, Inc.  [MLCC REQ ID# 268689]     
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert 
 
 
 
____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
2.   MK 2, L.L.C., requests to transfer ownership of 2004 SDD and SDM licensed 

business located at 4835 John R, Troy MI 48098, Oakland County, from Faten A 
and A, Inc.   [MLCC REQ ID# 271602]    Inspections underway – sale of The 
Beer Barrel to Lucky’s Market 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee were Michael Konja, Sr. and Michael 
Konja, Jr. 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL                December 13, 2004 
 

Page 3 of 3 

This family has purchased this convenience store.  They plan to change the name and 
do exterior improvements.  The layout of the store will basically remain the same, with 
minor changes to the shelving.  This will be a seven day operation with just family 
members as staff.  They previously owned a convenience store in Waterford and 
received a liquor violation in 1997. 
 
Resolution #LC2004-12-135 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 
RESOLVED, that MK 2, L.L.C., be allowed to transfer ownership of 2004 SDD and SDM 
licensed business located at 4835 John R, Troy MI 48098, Oakland County, from Faten 
A and A, Inc.   [MLCC REQ ID# 271602]     
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert, Elenbaum 
 
 
 
 
Assistant City Attorney, Carolyn Glosby, distributed to Committee members a memo 
dated November 22, 2004 directed to the Mayor and Members of City Council.  This 
memo deals with the potential impacts and available alternatives for liquor license 
applicants once the quota licenses are depleted.  This memo was discussed by the 
Committee members. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:35 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      James R. Peard 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Patricia A. Gladysz, Office Assistant II 



TROY ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD – DRAFT January 4, 2005 
 

Call to Order 
The regular meeting was called to order at 7:18 p.m. in Conference Room C at Troy City Hall. 
 
Roll Call 

Present: Tom Kaszubski   Jeff Hyun 
Oniell Shah    Flora Tan 

  Padma Kuppa   Charles Yuan    
Cindy Stewart, City Liaison  Kara Huang, Student Rep 
 

  Absent: Anju Brodbine   Amin Hashmi  
Hailu Robele         

   
Approval of Minutes 
Minutes from October 5, 2004 - Motion by Kuppa, second by Yuan. Approved unanimously. 

 
Correspondence 
Third-Culture Kids 
 
New Business 

A. Troy Daze 2005 
a. JoAnn Preston re: EthniCity will be present at 8 pm. EIA will offer to co-chair the event 

with her. But JoAnn will not be present during the actual festival. Before EIA Board 
commits, they’d like to know what is involved. She coordinates countries under the 
EthniCity tent, flagbearers for Opening Ceremonies and Parade. 

 
B. Community Kaleidoscope 

a. Made schedule 
 

C. Sights & Sounds of the World 
a. April 9, 2005 from 12-4 pm 

i. Cindy- Egypt & Germany (Reinhardt Lemke) 
ii. Flora- Philippines & Korea & Japan 
iii. Padma- India & Poland 
iv. Charles- China 
v. Anju - Russia 

b. Sights & Sounds World Bazaar - work on getting Oct. 15 at Community Center.  If yes, 
send letter/application with “Troy works to segregate” article form 12/8/04 

 
D. Holiday Sing-along 

a. Padma Kuppa expressed concern over her children’s elementary school situation 
related to inclusion of all cultures and nationalities in holiday events. Schools should 
offer more diversity training for teachers. 

 
Old Business 
 

A. Resource List 
a. Will be ready for Community Kaleidoscope 

 
B. Diversity Week 

bittnera
Text Box
J-01h



TROY ETHNCI ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD – DRAFT January 4, 2005 
 
 

  

a. Redo and mail letters to school, businesses and churches 
 

C. Law Brochure 
a. Postponed 

 
Troy Daze EthniCity meeting with JoAnn Preston 
 

EIA would like to work together to help with EthniCity. Want to know where help is needed. Ideas- 
stage in center of tent for demos. Problem with booths lacking manpower. Can’t leave booths 
unattended to commit to conducting demos. 
 
Maybe the Board can come up with a twist to draw people into the EthniCity tent like Magic 
Cauldron has done. But you need commitment from groups. 

 
JoAnn is concerned because EIA Board members did not fulfill booth rules – not decorated and 
unmanned.  Booth could have shown videotapes of past events, had signage, etc. but especially 
needed coverage at the booth. 

 
This year EIA Board could make contact with ethnic groups and look for commitments re: booth 
involvement and/or demonstrations. 

 
JoAnn needs adult involvement to help man the EthniCity tent and direct the student volunteers. 
She will be out of town during 2005 Troy Daze. 

 
JoAnn will send booth contracts out in April/May. EIA Board can send letters to see what interest 
there is for a group doing a demo as well as their booth. 

 
EIA – possible for groups to only do a demo? Tom Kaszubski will pose this to Troy Daze 
committee.  EIA will get approval from Troy Daze re: demos idea and send JoAnn sample letter to 
groups 

 
JoAnn invites EIA to future EthniCity meetings (2nd Thursday of the month, 8 pm) she will send 
email reminder for the next meeting 

 
JoAnn also asks the EIA to consider what they’ll do for their booth in EthniCity tent 
 

 
Motion by Yuan, second by Tan to adjourn - Meeting adjourned at 9:06 pm   
 
 

_______________________________________ 
Tom Kaszubski, EIA Board Chairman 

 
 

_______________________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, Recording Secretary 

 



 1 

LIBRARY BOARD MINUTES - DRAFT JANUARY 13, 2005 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Library Board was held Thursday, January 13, 2005 at 
the Office of the Library Director.  Audre Zembrzuski, Vice-Chairman, called the meeting 
to order at 7:30 P.M.   
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT: Joanne Allen 
   Lynne Gregory 
   Audre Zembrzuski 
    
   Brian Stoutenburg, Library Director 
             
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 
 
Resolution #LB-2005-01-001 
Moved by Allen 
Seconded by Gregory 
 
RESOLVED, That Brian Griffen, Nancy Wheeler and student representatives 
Lauren Andreoff and Cheng Chen be excused. 
Yes:  3—Allen, Gregory, Zembrzuski 
No:  0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #LB-2005-01-002 
Moved by Gregory 
Seconded by Allen 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of December 9, 2004 be approved. 
 
Yes:  3—Allen, Gregory, Zembrzuski 
No:  0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Reviewed Agenda entries 
 
Resolution #LB-2005-01-003 
Moved by Gregory 
Seconded by Allen 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agenda be approved.  
Yes:  3— Allen, Gregory, Zembrzuski 
No:  0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

bittnera
Text Box
J-01i



 2 

POSTPONED ITEMS 
There were no postponed items. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS 
There was no regular business. 
 
REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS 
Director’s Report. 
The library has been very busy this season with circulation of materials running 10% 
higher than last year.  The Youth Services Department will be working on a program of 
providing cloth book bags for children to decorate during National Library Week in April.  
 
Board Member comments.   
Zembrzuski related a story about people saying that we have the best library. 
   
SLC Report. 
Gregory reported that the SLC Board made minor changes to the wording in the 
Personnel Policy as advised by their auditor.  They also re-titled some positions and 
made a few changes to the Classification and Compensation Plan.  A new server was 
purchased to allow the spam software to run more efficiently.  Adobe Creative Suite was 
purchased for producing documents and promotional pieces.  The investment policy 
was reviewed.  A new Sirsi update has been installed. 
 
Friends of the Library.  
The Friends Books Store made almost $80,000 this year. 
 
Gifts.    
Five gifts totaling $460.00 were received. 
 
Informational Items.   
January TPL Calendar 
 
Contacts and Correspondence.    
14 written comments from the public were reviewed. 
 
Public Participation.   
There was no public participation. 
 
The Library Board meeting adjourned at 8:15 P.M. 

 
 
 
                  
Audre Zembrzuski 
Vice-Chair 
 
 
 
Brian Stoutenburg 
Recording Secretary 



TROY CAC ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT January 19, 2005 
 
Call to Order 
 
The regular meeting was called to order at 7 p.m. at Troy City Hall. 
 
 
Roll Call 
 

Present: Penny Marinos  Bryan Wehrung 
  Jerry Bixby   Cindy Stewart 

Richard Hughes  Fan Lin (student rep) 
Alan Manzon  (late) 
 
 

Absent:  Kent Voigt 
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
Motion to approve minutes of October 20, 2004. Motion by Hughes, seconded by Bixby. 
Approved unanimously. 

 
 

A. Comcast channel additions for digital cable - Sports Tier (Fox Soccer Channel, NBA 
TV, GOL TV) 

B. Comcast channel additions - TV One (entertainment oriented) and Bridges TV 
(Muslim-oriented) 

C. WOW – Monthly rate adjustment – customized notices for specific customer groups 
D. WOW is updating emergency alert equipment (EAS) – communities can interrupt 

cable programming with emergency information 
E. Comcast – Network Upgrades – Since 1996, more than $1 billion has been invested 

in the networks that serve customers in Michigan, approximately $1000 per 
customer. Future services include Digital Video Recorder (DVR) Comcast and 
Digital Phone. 

 
Correspondence – Articles 

A. Warren Settles Cable TV Franchise Fee Suit (Detroit News 12-28-04) 
Bixby – feels that no subscriber benefited from this, not a positive outcome 
 

B. Cable vs. Satellite (Oakland Press 12-12-04) 
Customers are upset with rising cable rates and looking at alternatives such as 
DirectTV 
 

C. Metro Cable Rates to Rise by January (Detroit News 12-1-04) 
Comcast customers will pay up to 7.9% more, while WOW hikes will be as much 
as 8.3%.  Both blame the rate hikes on higher programming and operating costs, 
but contend that new services recently introduced, such as On-Demand movies 
and DVRs, now give customers much more for their money. 
 

D. Wi-Fi is an idea whose time has come for Pontiac (Oakland Press editorial 10-27-
04) 

bittnera
Text Box
J-01j



TROY CAC ADVISORY COMMITTEE – DRAFT January 19, 2005 
 
 

 2

Wireless Internet access makes sense as a service throughout an entire urban 
neighborhood. 

 
 
Old Business 

A. Cable Complaint Logs  
WOW 4th Quarter 2004 - Fairly routine customer concerns and complaints. 
Nothing negligible. Why are complaints only via email – none by phone. 
 
 

B. Report on Web Publications – would members please go online and check out 
articles of interest to CAC 

 
 
New Business 

A. Resignation letter from Shazad Butt – effective 01/18/05.  He unfortunately does not 
have the time for the position.  CAC recommends contacting Bob Victor for opening.  
He was the last person being considered. 

 
 
Board Comments 

A. Community Media Network info – contract month by month basis right now. ICCA 
working on a new contract between ICCA and CMN.  Manzon – made a motion that  
CAC send letter to Council re: recommendation to City Council they keep the PEG 
funding at current level ½ public and ½ government.  Seconded by Bixby. 
Yeas:  AM, JB, PM, BW  No:      RH  
 
Motion by Manzon, second by Hughes to put term ending date on ICCA representative 
position. 
Yeas:     AM, JB, RH      No:     BW, PM 
 
 
Staff Report 
B. Cable Guide – new programs Talking History, Museum Lecture Series 
C. CAC member listing changes 
D. ICCA meeting notes – Nov. 17, 2004 
E. Next meeting – April 21, 2005 
F. Additional information 

a. Spam Manager from WOW, free service to all WOW Internet customers. 
Blocks and removes all emails with known viruses from server. Spam 
Manager Plus is available for $0.99 per month. With this level you can 
customize your levels of protection. 

 
 
Motion to adjourn by Marinos, second by Hughes. Meeting adjourned 8:37 pm. 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JANUARY 25, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Vice Chair Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on January 25, 2005, in the Council Board Room of the 
Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Lynn Drake-Batts (arrived 7:33 p.m.) Gary Chamberlain 
Fazal Khan Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz Thomas Strat 
Mark. J. Vleck 
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-01-009 
Moved by: Waller 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Chamberlain, Littman and Strat are excused from 
attendance at this meeting for personal reasons.  
 
Yes: Khan, Schultz, Vleck, Waller, Wright 
No: None 
Absent:  Chamberlain, Drake-Batts (arrived 7:33 p.m.), Littman, Strat 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. MINUTES 
 
Mr. Waller requested that the January 11, 2005 Regular Meeting minutes reflect under 
agenda item #8, page 9, that a written report on the “Greenbuild” trip was submitted, 
as requested by the Planning Commission, and that a copy be attached and made a 
part of the minutes.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-01-010 
Moved by:  Khan 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the January 11, 2005 Regular Meeting minutes as 
corrected. 

bittnera
Text Box
J-01k



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JANUARY 25, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

Yes: Drake-Batts, Khan, Schultz, Vleck, Waller 
No: None 
Abstain: Wright 
Absent: Chamberlain, Littman, Strat 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

4. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS REPORT 
 
There was no report. 
 
 

5. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY REPORT 
 
There was no report. 
 
 

6. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller reported on the following items.   
 
• Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Chesapeake Grove Site Condominium, 

north side of Square Lake Road, east of John R, Section 1, R-1D – Approved by 
City Council (January 10, 2005 Regular Meeting).   

• Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Covington Estates Site Condominium, 
south side of Long Lake Road, east of Livernois, Section 15, R-1C – Approved by 
City Council (January 10, 2005 Regular Meeting).   

• Rezoning Application Z 696-B – Chary Villas, west side of Rochester Road, north 
of Square Lake Road, Section 3, From R-1B to R-1T – Approved by City Council 
(January 24, 2005 Regular Meeting). 

• Rezoning Application Z 602-B – Red Wagon Shoppe, northwest corner of Maple 
and Livernois, Section 28, From O-1 to B-1, B-2 or B-3 – Approved by City Council 
to B-3 (January 24, 2005 Regular Meeting). 

• Big Beaver Corridor Study – Five finalists have been selected to respond to the 
Request for Proposal (RFP).  The RFP deadline is March 4, 2005.  Interviews will 
be scheduled at the end of February.   

• Preliminary Site Plan Review and Amended Consent Order and Judgment 
(SP 883-C) – Hearthland Health Care, southeast corner of South Boulevard and 
Livernois, Section 3, O-1 and R-1B – Public Hearing on February 7, 2005 City 
Council Regular Meeting.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JANUARY 25, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

• Rezoning Application Z 479-B – Clark Gas Station, northeast corner of Rochester 
Road and Charrington Road, Section 23, From B-1 to H-S – Denied by City 
Council (January 10, 2005 Regular Meeting).   

• Rezoning Application Z 699 – Briggs Crossing Condominium, west side of 
Rochester Road, south of Trinway, Section 10, From R-1C to R-1T – Postponed 
by City Council to February 21, 2005 Regular Meeting to allow the petitioner, the 
Planning Commission and the Planning Department to review alternative 
development options (January 24, 2005 Regular Meeting).   

• Street Vacation SV 179 – Alger Street right-of-way located between Birchwood 
and Vermont, west of John R and north of Maple Road, Section 26 – Approved by 
City Council (December 20, 2004 Regular Meeting).   

• ZOTA 200 One Family Cluster Option – Approved with minor revisions by City 
Council (January 10, 2005 Regular Meeting).   

• Planning Commission Representation on Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) – 
Approved by City Council to appoint Members Wright and Drake-Batts to the BZA 
as Representative and Alternate Representative, respectively (January 10, 2005 
Regular Meeting).   

• Proposed PUD 4 – North side of Big Beaver Road, east of Alpine and west of 
McClure, Section 20 – Public Input Meeting on February 8, 2005.   

 
 

7. SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Oak Forest Site 
Condominium, 76 units/lots proposed, South side of Square Lake Road, West side of 
John R, Section 11 – R-1C (One Family Residential) District 
 

8. SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Oak Forest South Site 
Condominium, 24 units/lots proposed, South of Square Lake Road, East side of 
Willow Grove, Section 11 – R-1C (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed the three major issues discussed at the January 11, 2005 
Regular Meeting:  (1) vehicular connection; (2) drainage; and (3) extension of 
Hopedale sewer main over City property.   
 
Vehicular connection was discussed at great length.  No consensus was reached. 
 
The City Engineer, in a memorandum provided to the Planning Commission, stated 
the proposed development would not be permitted to cause or exacerbate drainage 
problems on abutting properties, and that the required improvements would have 
the effect of improving drainage in the area.  The Planning Commission was 
satisfied that any drainage concerns would be appropriately handled by the 
Engineering Department. 
 
There was a brief discussion on the extension of the Hopedale sanitary sewer main 
over City property.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JANUARY 25, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

The petitioners, Dale Garrett and Joel Garrett of Ladd’s Inc., Troy, were present.  
The petitioners advised that the sanitary sewer service to the units on the east side 
of the drain would be provided from the sewer main on the west side of the drain, 
and the need for an easement over City property would be eliminated.   
 
 

9. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-A) – 
Article 04.20.00 and Articles 40.55.00-40.59.00, pertaining to Accessory Buildings 
Definitions and Provisions 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the four issues related to the proposed zoning ordinance text 
amendment:  (1) garage door height, (2) foot print ratios, (3) number of detached 
buildings, and (4) greenhouses.  Public Hearings on the proposed text are 
scheduled for the February 8, 2005 Planning Commission Regular Meeting and the 
February 28, 2005 City Council Regular Meeting.   
 
Options discussed on garage door height were:  garage doors that face a street; 
garage doors that do not face a street; appropriate setbacks between attached 
accessory buildings and the property line.  The Planning Commission reached no 
consensus. 
 
Foot print ratios were discussed at length.  It was determined to request the 
Assessing Department to prepare data that compares the accessory building floor 
area to the total residential floor area.  Another option discussed was to allow an 
attached accessory building to be 100% of the size of the ground floor area of the 
residence, but the area of detached structures could not exceed 50% of the ground 
floor area of the residence.   
 
Dick Minnick of 28 Millstone Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Minnick circulated 
photographs of a home he previously owned and the home in which he currently 
lives.  He indicated that both homes, as well as a total of 803 homes throughout the 
City, would become non-conforming should the City pass the ordinance amendment 
at 50% of the ground floor square footage.  Mr. Minnick said there has never been a 
complaint that his garage is too big for his house or an eyesore to the 
neighborhood.  He expressed concerns of a non-conforming home with respect to 
rebuild, resale, and potential insurance rate hikes.  Mr. Minnick said his house fits 
within the required setbacks and the City should not be able to dictate the allocation 
of the structure.  Mr. Minnick said his garage is very important to him; it is heated 
and cooled and has electrical and plumbing.  He briefly addressed tandem and 
double-decker garages.  Mr. Minnick strongly urged that a percentage higher than 
the proposed 50% of the residential ground floor area be considered.  
 
Victor Yee of 23 Timberview, Troy, was present.  Mr. Yee agreed that a higher 
percentage of the residential ground floor should be considered, and also 
suggested that a limitation could be placed on the size of the attached accessory 
structure.  Mr. Yee said the percentage formula for the ground floor residential area 
is penalizing homeowners of colonial style homes.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JANUARY 25, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

There was no consensus reached on the foot print ratio.   
 
After a brief discussion, there was no consensus reached on the number of 
detached buildings. 
 
The removal of greenhouses from Article 40.56.02 was discussed briefly.  The 
Planning Commission agreed to make the change.   
 
 

10. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-B) – 
Article 04.20.004, Article 40.65.02 and Article 40.66.00, pertaining to Commercial 
Vehicle Definitions 
 

11. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-C) – 
Article 43.74.00, Article 40.65.02 and Article 44.00.00, pertaining to Commercial 
Vehicle Parking Appeals 
 
It was the recommendation of the Planning Department to postpone ZOTA 215-B and 
ZOTA 215-C to a future meeting. 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-01-011 
Moved by:  Vleck 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone ZOTA 215-B, Commercial Vehicle Definitions, and ZOTA 
215-C, Commercial Vehicle Parking Appeals, until Accessory Buildings Definitions 
and Provisions (ZOTA 215-A), is approved.   
 
Yes: All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent: Chamberlain, Littman, Strat 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

12. CITY OF STERLING HEIGHTS PROPOSED MASTER LAND USE PLAN 
 
Mr. Savidant provided a brief review of the proposed City of Sterling Heights Master 
Land Use Plan.   
 
Mr. Miller said the proposed City of Sterling Heights Master Land Use Plan is 
consistent with Troy’s Future Land Use Plan.  He recommended that the Planning 
Commission adopt a resolution of support. 
 
A brief discussion followed. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JANUARY 25, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2005-01-012 
Moved by:  Waller 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Sterling Heights Planning Commission has prepared the 
Draft City of Sterling Heights Master Land Use Plan; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Draft Sterling Heights Master Land Use Plan includes 
recommendations for the physical redevelopment of the City of Sterling Heights, 
including Community Goals and Objectives, Future Land Use and an 
Implementation strategy; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the boundary of the City of Troy is contiguous with the boundary of the 
City of Sterling Heights; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Sterling Heights has provided a copy of the Draft Sterling 
Heights Master Land Use Plan to the City of Troy for the Planning Commission’s 
review and comment; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Troy Planning Commission has determined that the Draft 
Plan is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan of the City of Troy.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy Planning Commission 
hereby supports the efforts of the City of Sterling Heights Planning Commission in 
preparing the Draft Sterling Heights Master Land Use Plan. 
 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Khan, Schultz, Waller, Wright 
No: Vleck 
Absent: Chamberlain, Littman, Strat 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Vleck said he would have liked more of an opportunity to compare the proposed 
zoning of Sterling Heights and the relationship to the City of Troy’s proposed plan and 
zoning along Dequindre. 
 
 
 

13. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JANUARY 25, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Mr. Waller requested a summary of outstanding discussion items; i.e., outlot restaurants, 
Special Use, etc.   
 
Mr. Miller asked members to be prompt in responding to Community Affairs for the Boards 
and Committees Appreciation Dinner on February 12, 2005.  Mr. Miller indicated he would 
be out of town on that date.   
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 10:20 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert Schultz, Vice Chair 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2005 PC Minutes\Draft\01-25-05 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 



DRAFT 
TROY DAZE ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

 
A regular meeting of the Troy Daze Advisory Committee was held Tuesday, January 25, 2005 at 
the Troy Community Center. Meeting was called to order at 7:30 pm. 
 
Present: 
Jim Cyrulewski 
Marilyn Musick 
Cecile Dilley  
Kessie Kaltsounis 
Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski     

Bill Hall 
Mike Gonda 
Jeff Stewart (absent)  
Bob Preston (absent) 

 
Resolution # TD-2005-01-001 
Moved by Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski, Seconded by Kessie Kaltsounis 
RESOLVED that the minutes from the November 23, 2004 Troy Daze Advisory Committee are 
approved.  Motion approved. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
None 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

1. Tabled 
2. Performance Report 

 
Resolution # TD-2005-01-002 
Moved by Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski, Seconded by Kessie Kaltsounis 
RESOLVED that the report be approved as submitted. Motion Approved. 

    
Resolution # TD-2005-01-003 
 
Moved by Kessie Kaltsounis, Seconded by Bill Hall   
RESOLVED that the Troy Daze Advisory Committee is adjourned.  Motion approved. 
 
Meeting is adjourned at 7:45 pm.   
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Robert Berk, Chairperson 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, Recording Secretary

bittnera
Text Box
J-01l



TROY DAZE MINUTES        
 
A regular meeting of the Troy Daze Festival Committee was held Tuesday, January 25, 2005 at the 
Troy Community Center. Meeting was called to order at 7:45 pm. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 

Present:
Mike Gonda  
JoAnn Preston 
Cele Dilley  
Bill Hall  
Kessie Kaltsounis  
Bob Berk  
Jim Cyrulewski  
Marilyn Musick  
Sandy Macknis  
Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski  
Tom Clark  
Tarcisio Massaini  
Jefrey Super  
Tom Tighe 
Doris Schuchter 

Tim McAvoy 
Dan O’Brien  
Padma Kuppa 
 
 
City Staff Present: 
Jeff Biegler    
Bob Matlick  
Tonya Perry  
Gerry Scherlinck  
Cindy Stewart  
Laura Fitzpatrick 
 
 
 

 
Minutes 
Motion to approve the minutes from November 23, 2004. 
 
Moved by Jim Cyrulewski, Seconded by Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski.  Motion approved. 
 
Treasurer’s Report 
As of 12/31/04 
Revenue: $134,807.06 ($168,657.06 w/corporate sponsor $ given to City) 
Expenditures: $171,643.49 
 
Not much activity 
Operating supplies 
Education & Training 
 
Receive and file Treasurer’s Report 
 
D.  Correspondence 

1. Meeting Notice 
2. Application Community Kaleidoscope 
3. Letter to TYA – Student Nominee 
4. Note to Pepsi re: demographics 

 
E.  Events Chairperson Report



 
1. Budget review – revenues and expenses after committee looks at proposed budget and 

makes suggestions, Advisory Committee will meet to make decisions 
 
City expressed concern that expenses do not increase this year – last three years festival 
has not broken even.  Deficit numbers are not what City wants. 
 
Corporate Sponsor dollars down in 2004/2005. 
 
Expenses 
 
Operations/Equipment 
-reduce golf carts by $1000 
(eliminate some flat beds) 
 
Operations/Supplies 
Reduce signs for Corporate Sponsors by $1,100. 
 
Miscellaneous 

 Eliminate schedule of events trifold $800 
 Signage $600 
 Art flats $500 
 
 Events 
 Craft Show Advertising $200 
 Talent Shows  $300 
 Magic Cauldron $500 
 Mr. Troy  $100 
 Volunteers (reimbursement of food coupons)  $300 
  
 Entertainment  $4000 
 
 Parade  $1900 
 
 EthniCIty  $1500 
 
 Still have a $15,000 deficit 
 

If Delphi is out – will we still have fireworks? NO.  The event must pay for itself. 
 

Advisory Committee must meet and make hard decisions. 
 
Parade is a $15,000 event – does stop people coming into park, takes dollars away from vendors, 
food, carnival rides.  From a business standpoint, might be an event to look at cutting or changing 
location.  Takes a large number of volunteer manpower to run parade. 
 
Option to move parade route.  Scale it down, lower expenses. 
 
Other ideas to cut costs 



 MFEA Conf $5,000 
 Polo shirts $2,000 
 
Idea to increase fees – parking, booths 
3 day vs. 4 day festival 
Thursday is a trial run day for Operations Committee.  Makes things run smoother. 
 
Need to do a budget analysis. Net cost expenses on project.  Meet with Parade Committee. 
 
Hold Miss Troy Pageant on Thursday evening to reduce costs at Community Center 
 
Volunteer t-shirts 
 
Fireworks 
 
More people in the parade than watching parade. 
 
Police are under same pressures $28,000 overtime, $42,000 with benefits 
All personnel costs that need to be reduced. 
 
Advisory Committee Special Meeting 
 
If increase booth fees by 10%, add $2,000 
 
Tabled rest of discussion until end of meeting. 
 
Alliance Mobile Health Funding – new expense based on their participation. 
 
Line item - $5000 cost for 2004 festival might be reduced by half 
  
 
F.  New Business 

None 
 
G.  Old Business 

1. Storage Trailer – sold for salvage $250.00 
 
2. Meeting with EIA Committee – JoAnn Preston met with committee and suggested to      

them their booth was not up to their standards.  They would like to bring in more groups, 
demos for groups not having booth space, but demo in middle of Ethnicity tent.  Cooking, 
games, music, juggler, etc.  JoAnn Preston’s volunteers can’t handle this. 

 
3. Suggestion List – tabled 

 
4. Action Items – tabled 

 
5. Operations Meeting Review – next meeting 

 



6. Corporation Sponsor Committee Review – all packets out to previous sponsors.  New 
potential sponsors will now be tapped. 

 
7. Volunteer Committee Review – Wednesday, February 9th, 7:00 p.m. 

 
8. Request Memo Review – ready with a few minor corrections 

 
9. See Memo Review minor changes 

 
Motion to adjourn the Festival Committee meeting by Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski 
Seconded by Kessie Kaltsounis. Motion approved. 
 
Meeting is adjourned at 8:55 p.m.   
 



 
DRAFT 

TROY DAZE ADVISORY COMMITTEE (Reconvened) 
 

A meeting of the Troy Daze Advisory Committee was held Tuesday, January 25, 2005 at the Troy 
Community Center. Meeting was reconvened at 9:00 pm. 
 
Present: 
Jim Cyrulewski 
Marilyn Musick 
Cecile Dilley  
Kessie Kaltsounis 
Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski     

Cindy Stewart 
Bill Hall 
Mike Gonda 
Gerry Scherlinck 
Jeff Biegler

 
Resolution # TD-2005-01-004 
Moved by Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski, Seconded by Kessie Kaltsounis 
RESOLVED that the meeting of the Troy Daze Advisory Committee be reconvened.  Motion 
approved. 
 
Look at some big ticket items – get to a number we can live with, then have another meeting 
of Advisory Committee to finalize. 
 
Bottom line livable but not optimal 
 
Currently we sell ride tickets @ $.50.  Increase to $1.00? 
 
$47,593 income from rides 
 
Add 10% to Booth Revenue + 2000 
 
Corporate Sponsors we are losing 
 $5000 Delphi 
 $5000 Pepsi 
 
Parking Increase –  
Discussion for $5/day all 4 days 
$5 for Friday, Saturday, Sunday 
 
Expenses of electrical expenses 
 
Look @ EthniCity, Parade, Pageant, Fireworks, Senior Sensation 
Look @ value – revenues and expenses 
 
Proposal for study session to look at all events before February 22nd Meeting. 
 
Possible dates – Tuesday, February 8th, 7:30 p.m. location to be announced 
(Need flip charts) 
     
Resolution # TD-2005-01-005 



Moved by Marilyn Musick, Seconded by Cecile Dilley   
RESOLVED that the Troy Daze Advisory Committee is adjourned.  Motion approved. 
 
Meeting is adjourned at 10:11 pm.   
 
 
_____________________________ 
Robert  Berk, Vice Chairperson 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, Recording Secretary 
 

 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                          FEBRUARY 2, 2005 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:30 A.M. on Wednesday, February 2, 2005 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:   Ted Dziurman 
    Rick Kessler 
    Tim Richnak 
    Rick Sinclair   
    Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
    Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF JANUARY 5, 2005 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Zuazo 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of January 5, 2005 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  MR. & MRS. F. CARMONA, 5268 ORCHARD 
CREST, for relief of the 2003 Michigan Building Code to finish their basement. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the 2003 Michigan 
Building Code to finish the basement in their home.  Section R305.1 of the 2003 
Michigan Building Code, requires a 7’ minimum ceiling height (6’-6” minimum for 
beams) in finished basements.  The plan submitted indicates a 6’-9” general ceiling 
height and 6’-2” ceiling height at the beam and ductwork. 
 
Mrs. Carmona was present and stated that her daughter has a lot of allergies and she 
also has two members of her family that are afflicted with cystic fibrosis.  She would like 
to be able to finish this area of the basement with Owens Corning material, as it does 
not encourage the growth of mold.  The reason a variance is required is because the 
ceiling tiles are installed as a drop ceiling and it is recommended that this suspended 
ceiling be installed with a 3” drop.  Mrs. Carmona also brought in a letter from the 
heating company, which states that they will work with the contractor to reduce the size 
of the ductwork at the bottom of the stairs that will add to the proposed ceiling height. 
 
Mr. David Shipley of J & E Home Improvements was also present and said that the 
suspended ceiling has inhibitors in the material that will also prohibit mold.    
 
 

 1

bittnera
Text Box
J-01m



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                          FEBRUARY 2, 2005 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if the 7’ height requirement was new for basements.  Mr. Stimac 
stated that it has been in effect for several years.  One of the reasons for this height 
requirement is for head clearance and the other was a fire requirement, which would 
prohibit the movement of smoke in the area.  Mr. Stimac also said that when most 
basements are constructed they are not considered to be habitable space.  Mr. Stimac 
explained that habitable space is considered to be space used for sleeping, playing and 
living and does not include sanitation spaces.  Mr. Dziurman asked what Mrs. Carmona 
planned to use this space for.  Mrs. Carmona said that they plan to make it a TV room 
and playroom for the children.   
 
Mr. Richnak asked for clarification regarding the 7’ height.  Mr. Stimac explained that 
the distance from the floor to the joists is 7’ and with installation of ½’” drywall it would 
give a ceiling height of 6’-11 ½”.  Mr. Stimac also said that an acoustical tile system 
could probably be done with less than a 3” drop depending on other potential 
obstructions. 
 
Mr. Shipley said that the installation instructions call for a 3” clearance, but he was sure 
that they could put it in at 2” clearance.  Mr. Richnak asked if these were 2’ x 4’ tiles, 
and Mr. Shipley said that they are 2’ x 2’.  Mr. Shipley went on to say that he had drawn 
a second plan which would increase the ceiling height to 6’-10” and by running plywood 
along the ductwork, could increase the height of the ceiling to 6’-4 ½” or 6’-5” rather 
than 6’-2”.  Mr. Shipley explained that there are two large heat runs that run across the 
basement.   
 
Mr. Richnak asked about the letter from Wiegand Heating.  Mrs. Carmona explained 
that they could make one of the larger heat runs smaller.  Mr. Shipley said that Owen 
Corning is based in Toledo, Ohio and that Ohio has changed their ceiling height 
requirement for existing basements.  Mr. Shipley said that he understands it has not 
been done in Michigan at this time, but thought it was something that was in the works.   
 
Mr. Dziurman said that he did not think the Carmonas had an alternative that would 
meet the 7’ height requirement.  Mr. Dziurman asked what the height underneath the 
existing beam was.  Mr. Shipley said that he believes currently it is 6’-6”, which they 
would decrease to 6’5” by using the ½” plywood along the ductwork.   
 
Mr. Kessler asked if the space in the basement would be separated.  Mrs. Carmona 
said that they already have an area of the basement that they use for storage and would 
like to finish this area as one large room.  Mr. Kessler did not think the basement would 
look the same with the different ceiling heights and also that he thinks there are a lot of 
taller people today that would require a higher ceiling height. 
 
 
 
 

 2



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                          FEBRUARY 2, 2005 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Dziurman clarified that they are proposing a 6’-10” ceiling height in the main area 
and a ceiling height of 6’-5” to the beams.  Mr. Shipley said that he thought they could 
meet these requirements. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to grant Mr. & Mrs. F. Carmona, 5268 Orchard Crest, relief of the 2003 
Michigan Building Code to finish their basement with the following stipulations: 
 

• General ceiling height to be 6’-10”. 
• Ceiling height at the beams and ductwork to be 6’-5”. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE WITH STIPULATIONS CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  MARY STORK OF GIGGLE GANG DAYCARE 
& PRESCHOOL, 3193 ROCHESTER ROAD, for relief of Chapter 83 to install 4’ high 
fencing for an outdoor play area for the day care center at 3193 Rochester Road. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 83 to install 
fencing for an outdoor play area for their day care center.  This property is a double 
front corner lot.  As such it has front yards on both Rochester and Hartland.  The 
proposed fencing is located in the front yard along Hartland.  Section 3 of Chapter 83 of 
the Troy City Code prohibits fencing in the yard between the building and any frontage 
street.  Mr. Stimac also explained that this property is in the B-3 Zoning District, which 
does not allow for any type of fencing in front of the front building line.   
 
Mr. Jeffrey Tucker, the Architectural Manager for this project was present and said that 
the reason they want the play area in this location is to meet the requirements of the 
City which is 150 square feet of play area provided for each child.  Presently this day 
care facility will have 60 students and 9,000 square feet of play area is required.  The 
other reason they wish to put the play area here is that eventually they plan to approach 
the City and vacate Hartland Street. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if this was a Zoning issue and Mr. Stimac explained that they had 
already gotten approval from the Planning Commission for this Day Care center. 
 
Mr. Tucker said that originally they planned to put in a chain link fence, but the City 
wanted more decorative fencing along Rochester Road because it is a main 
thoroughfare.  Mr. Dziurman asked if the fence would be 4’ high or 6’ high.  Mr. Tucker 
indicated that it would be a 4’ high wrought iron type of fence. 
 

 3



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                          FEBRUARY 2, 2005 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if the Day Care center was occupied now.  Ms. Stork indicated that 
they plan to move into this center by February 14th.  Mr. Tucker stated that they are 
relocating the Day Care from Clawson to Troy. 
 
Mr. Richnak then asked what would be involved to vacate Hartland.  Mr. Stimac said 
that this request would have to go before City Council, which has not bee done at this 
time.  Mr. Stimac also said that if Hartland were vacated this variance would not be 
required.   
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if this Day Care Center had been approved by the State.  Ms. Stork 
explained that they are at the last step.  Ms. Stork also said that they are transferring 
the Day Care Center from Clawson to Troy and one of the requirements is to put up a 
fence around the play area.  Mr. Zuazo asked if there were any complications based on 
the number of students attending this facility.  Ms. Stork said that they plan to maintain 
the existing number of students for the time being, and if they increase this number in 
the future they would come back to the Board for an additional variance. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if the same type of fencing would be used all along the property.  Mr. 
Tucker said that they plan to put in more decorative type of fencing along Rochester 
Road.    Mr. Kessler asked if this would be a non-obscuring fence and Ms. Stork stated 
that it would and that they definitely agree with the requirements of the City. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked what type of play equipment would be put in this area.  Ms. Stork 
said that she is looking into different types now, but thought it would probably be the 
colored plastic type of play structures.   
 
Mr. Richnak then asked if there were other Day Care facilities located in Troy that have 
similar situations.  Mr. Stimac said that most of the Day Care Centers have play areas in 
the rear yard; however there is one on Rochester Road and another on Long Lake, 
which have fences that come very close to the main roads.  Mr. Zuazo asked if the Fire 
Department had any requirements regarding these fences and Mr. Sinclair stated that 
they did not. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed.   
 
There is one (1) written approval on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if it was possible that the other property the Church owns could be 
split and residential homes put in.  Mr. Stimac said that the property in the back is 
Zoned R-1E and the front is B-3 (General Business).  Mr. Stimac also said that there is 
no provision in B-3 zoning for residential uses. 
 
 

 4



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                          FEBRUARY 2, 2005 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Shipley said that the property is landlocked because of the location of the Church.  
Mr. Kessler suggested moving the play area in back of the gym and Mr. Shipley stated  
that this is their main drop off area.  Mr. Kessler also said that this fence would change 
the entire character of the area and he would like to see a plan to add additional 
landscaping.  Mr. Tucker said that the Planning Commission had also recommended 
additional landscaping and they do plan to put in additional shrubs.    Mr. Kessler asked 
if they looked into any other locations for this play area and Mr. Tucker said it was not 
feasible to put it in another area.  Mr. Kessler then asked if they were planning to put a 
barricade in front of the fence.  Mr. Tucker said that he felt this was a very reasonable 
request.   
  
Mr. Richnak asked what would happen if they wished to expand this facility.  Mr. Tucker 
indicated that the 9000 square feet would also have to be expanded, and it was 
possible that this would happen further down the road.  
 
Mr. Zuazo expressed concern about the distance of the fence from the property line 
along Hartland and said he would like it moved farther back.  Mr. Richnak agreed and 
said he would like to see it pushed back at least four more feet and would also like more 
shrubbery, which would obscure the fence from the surrounding property.  Mr. Kessler 
also indicated that he would like to see landscaping plans.   
 
Mr. Kessler asked about the play equipment.  Ms. Stork said that they did not plan to 
have any permanent play equipment, but would provide plastic structures that could be 
moved within the play area.  
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if the number of children, 60, was an approved number.  Ms. Stork 
indicated that the State had approved them for sixty-(60) children.  Mr. Zuazo asked if 
the square foot requirement would be met if the fence was pushed back.  Mr. Tucker 
said that he thought it would, but would go back to make sure there is no catch basin in 
this area.  Mr. Tucker also indicated that he did not think this requirement would present 
a problem. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to grant Mary Stork of Giggle Gang Daycare & Preschool, 3193 Rochester 
Road, relief of Chapter 83 to install 4’ high fencing for an outdoor play area in the front 
yard along Hartland. 
 

• Fence will be placed 16’ from property line along Hartland. 
• Landscape plans will be provided and approved by Ron Hynd, City of Troy 

Landscape Analyst. 
• Additional landscaping will become a full hedge within a two-year growing period. 

 

 5



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                          FEBRUARY 2, 2005 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE WITH STIPULATIONS CARRIED 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:22 A.M. 
 
 
 
 
              
      Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 

 6



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                            Feb. 3, 2005 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A Regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday, 
February 3 2005 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair JoAnn Thompson called the meeting to 
order at 10:10 AM. 
 
Present: JoAnn Thompson, Chair Bill Weisgerber, Vice-Chair  
 David Ogg, Member       Pauline Noce, Member 
 Bud Black, Member James Berar, Member 
 Merrill Dixon, Member    Marie Hoag, Member 
 Jo Rhoads, Member Carla Vaughan, Staff   
     
Absent:   None  
   
Visitors:    Mary Beth Halushka, Wendy Underwood, Martin Bieganowski 
   
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2005-02-001 
Moved by Jo Rhoads 
Seconded by David Ogg 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of December 2, 2004 be approved as amended:  Bill 
Weisgerber was excused from the vote on Resolution # SC-2004-12-002. 
 
Yes: 9        
No: 0        
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
Mary Beth Halushka introduced school board candidate Wendy Underwood.  The Committee 
asked Mary Beth to invite Janet Jopke to the March meeting. 
 
Old Business 
 
Troy Senior Council Name Change:   JoAnn Thompson reported that that they are open to 
changing their name and the City Attorney’s office is willing to help them and she will continue 
to pursue the matter with them.  Membership cards have been printed for 2005. 
 
Senior Centers in Neighboring Cities:   Bill Weisgerber stated that the object of the visits to 
other cities is to compare our program to theirs, and a discussion was held on how to go about 
this. 
 
Shuffleboard:  Jo Rhoads reported that bocci ball is very popular.  Merrill Dixon stated that a 
report should be presented to the Park Board with the signatures and details about the courts.  
Rochester has an indoor court that does not get much use.  The table shuffleboard there is 
more popular.  JoAnn Thompson will prepare a report for the February Park Board meeting.     

bittnera
Text Box
J-01n



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                            Feb. 3, 2005 

2 

Catering Service at the Community Center:  Carla reported that the Committee’s memo 
went to council on Monday, January 10 as a communication along with a memo of response 
from Carol Anderson.  Carol is exploring the Committee’s suggestion and will take other 
suggestions.   Stu and Kraig are working on a proposal.  Emerald Food Service does not keep 
records of how much business they get from non-profit groups, but estimate that it is about 
25% of their total.   JoAnn reported that it is not entirely true that room 504 is available for 
groups to bring snacks in since it is reserved for birthday parties on Fridays, Saturdays and 
Sundays.  She would still like to know how much revenue is involved with snacks for non-profit 
groups.  She has talked to many groups and they are not purchasing snacks, so lost revenue 
would probably be very little.  David Ogg suggested that the City have their own caterer for all 
City facilities.  Bill would like to see a feasibility study done on this.  He also stated that the 
Senior Advisory Committee should have been advised when the expiration date for the 
catering contract was changed.  The Committee requested that Carla call Kim Haveraneck and 
invite her to the March meeting.   
 
New Business 
 
Golf:  James Berar suggested that now that the City has two golf courses, they should have a 
golf float in the Troy Daze parade.  He also suggested that some screening needs to be 
planted at the driving range so people have a background on which to track their balls.  Merrill 
Dixon will bring up these items at the next Park Board meeting. 
 
Senior Community Goals and Objectives:  Bill Weisgerber led a discussion about 
establishing a task force to determine goals and objective for the senior community.  
 
Resolution # SC-2005-02-002 
Moved by Bill Weisgerber 
Seconded by Merrill Dixon 
 
RESOLVED,  That a recommendation be made to establish a task force to determine goals 
and objectives for the senior community.  
 
Yes: 1        
No: 8        
 
MOTION DENIED 
   
Reports 
 
Park Board: Merrill Dixon reported that the Senior Advisory Committee’s memo about the 
catering contract was discussed.  They were sympathetic to the Committee’s concerns and 
suggested that they pursue the issue.  The Aquatic Center annual report and high school 
spring break activities were also discussed.  Merrill requested that a Spring Break flyer be 
enclosed with the minutes. 
 
Medi-Go:   Jo Rhoads reported that they gave over 10,000 rides last year and it is getting 
difficult at times to get a ride. 
 
Nutrition:  No report.  



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                            Feb. 3, 2005 

3 

    There were 1356 meals served on 22 days at the Community Center in September.   
Senior Program:  Carla reported on the upcoming TESA workshop.  She will invite Elaine 
Torvinen to the next meeting so the Committee can meet her. 
    
OLHSA:  Jo Rhoads reported that OLHSA has merged with CSO. 
 
Suggestion Box:   Carla reported that there were only two suggestions – both asking for more 
weights for the exercise classes.  She is pursuing the matter with the Community Center 
Supervisor, since all of the fitness classes share the weights.  
 
Comments 
Carla handed out information from Councilman Dave Lambert and JoAnn Thompson 
suggested that the discussion of this material be added to the March agenda.  Committee 
members voted in favor of adding this to the next agenda. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 12:20 p.m.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
JoAnn Thompson, Chair      
 
 
 
Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



 1 

LIBRARY BOARD MINUTES - DRAFT FEBRUARY 4, 2005 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Library Board was held on Friday, February 4, 2005 at 
the Office of the Library Director.  Brian Griffen, Chairman, called the meeting to order 
at 10:15 A.M.   
 
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT: Joanne Allen 
   Brian Griffen 
   Audre Zembrzuski 
    
   Brian Stoutenburg, Library Director 
             
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 
 
 
Resolution #LB-2005-02-001 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Allen 
 
RESOLVED, That Lynne Gregory, Nancy Wheeler and student representatives 
Lauren Andreoff and Cheng Chen be excused. 
Yes:  3—Allen, Griffen, Zembrzuski 
No:  0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #LB-2005-02-002 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Allen 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of January 13, 2005 be approved. 
 
Yes:  3—Allen, Griffen, Zebmbrzuski 
No:  0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Reviewed Agenda entries 
 
Resolution #LB-2005-02-003 
Moved by Allen 
Seconded by Zembrzuski 
 

bittnera
Text Box
J-01o



 2 

RESOLVED, That the Agenda be approved.  
Yes:  3— Allen, Griffen, Zembrzuski 
No:  0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS 
There were no postponed items. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS 
It was reported that Joanne Allen, Audre Zembrzuski, Nancy Wheeler and student 
representative Cheng Chen along with Brian Stoutenburg will attend the annual Boards 
and Commissions Banquet. 
 
REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS 
 
Director’s Report. 
The Board Member’s attendance at the All Staff meeting that morning was discussed 
and it was requested to make this an annual event so that the Board and the Staff could 
interact with each other.  An old history of the Library was distributed as well as a new 
timeline that will be used in conjunction with the City’s 50th Anniversary.  
 
Quarterly Financial Report. 
The quarterly financial report was reviewed. 
 
Board Member comments.   
Griffen asked that at next meeting an organizational chart of the Library and Museum be 
distributed with the names of key staff. 
 
Zembrzuski asked that a new history of the library brochure be developed and made 
available to the public on the information rack. 
 
Allen commented that having worked in libraries she is a strong advocate for the staff. 
   
SLC Report. 
No report. 
 
Friends of the Library.  
The Friends Books Store held another Tuesday evening special book sale to reduce 
stock on February 1, 2005 and plans one more such sale on February 8, 2005. 
 
Gifts.    
No gifts were received. 
 
Informational Items.   
February TPL Calendar 
 



 3 

Contacts and Correspondence.    
8 written comments from the public were reviewed. 
 
Public Participation.   
There was no public participation. 
 
The Library Board meeting adjourned at 11:00 A.M. 
 

 
 
                  
Brian Griffen 
Chair 
 
 
 
Brian Stoutenburg 
Recording Secretary 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                    February 14, 2005 
 

Page 1 of 3 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, February 14, 
2005 in Conference Room C of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver Road.  Committee 
member Henry K. Allemon called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. 
  
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Henry W. Allemon 
    Alex Bennett 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    James R. Peard 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
    Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
    Sergeant Thomas J. Gordon 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    Patrick C. Hall 
 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Members Ehlert and Hall 
 
Resolution #LC2005-02-001 
Moved by Peard 
Seconded by Bennett 
 
RESOLVED, that the absence of Committee members Ehlert and Hall at the Liquor 
Advisory Committee meeting of February 14, 2005 BE EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  5  
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert, Hall 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of December 13, 2004 Meeting  
 
Resolution #LC2005-02-002 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the December 13, 2004 meeting of the Liquor Advisory 
Committee be approved. 

bittnera
Text Box
J-01p



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                    February 14, 2005 
 

Page 2 of 3 

 
Yes:  5  
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert, Hall 
 
_____________________________________________________________________  
 
Agenda Items: 
 
1.   LNT WEST, INC., requests a new SDM license to be located at 790 E. Big 

Beaver Rd., Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County.  [MLCC REQ ID# 276831]     
Linens n’ Things 

 
 
Present to answer questions from the Committee were Kelly Allen and Laura Peters of 
Adkison, Need & Allen law firm. 
 
Linens n’ Things is a nationwide department store chain specializing in household items. 
 In an attempt to offer their customers a “one-stop shopping” opportunity, they are 
requesting a SDM license which will allow them to sell beer and wine for off-premise 
consumption.  The stores will also be increasing their specialty food inventory to include 
items that would normally be included in a gift basket.  They will train all employees 
through the TIPS program and will update their cash registers to include a machine that 
will require the driver’s license of the customer be swiped before the alcohol purchase 
can be completed.  There are currently five stores in Michigan where the SDM license 
has been requested. 
 
Resolution #LC2005-02-003 
Moved by Peard 
Seconded by Bennett 
 
RESOLVED, that LNT WEST, INC., be granted a new SDM license to be located at 790 
E. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County.  [MLCC REQ ID# 276831]      
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert, Hall 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                    February 14, 2005 
 

Page 3 of 3 

 
The meeting adjourned at 7:27 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Henry W. Allemon 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Patricia A. Gladysz, Office Assistant II 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 16, 2005 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council for Liquor Violation Hearings was held Wednesday, 
February 16, 2005, at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to 
order at 7:32 PM. 

Mayor Pro Tem Beltramini gave the Invocation and the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was 
given. 

ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin E. Beltramini  
Cristina Broomfield  
David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak (Absent) 
David A. Lambert  
Jeanne M. Stine 

Resolution to Excuse Council Member Howrylak    
 
Resolution #2005-02-070 
Moved by Eisenbacher   
Seconded by Stine   
 
RESOLVED, That Council Member Howrylak’s absence at the Regular City Council meeting of 
February 16, 2005 is EXCUSED due to being out of the County. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Lambert, Stine  
No: Schilling  
Absent:  Howrylak   
 
MOTION CARRIED 

OUTLINE OF PUBLIC HEARING PROCEDURE 

The City Attorney suggests the following outline of procedure for consideration of liquor 
violations: 
 

1. The Mayor calls the licensee whose case is to be heard. 
2. The licensee and/or his attorney should be asked to the front of the Chamber to 

acknowledge their presence for the record and can be seated. 
3. The Assistant City Attorney makes a very short opening statement regarding the 

violation(s), and presents proofs. 
4. When witnesses are called, they should be sworn by the City Clerk to tell the truth. 
5. Once the witness is sworn, the Assistant City Attorney will question the witness. 
6. The police report and other documents may be offered into evidence as part of the 

case and should be kept by the City Clerk as part of the records. 
7. At the conclusion of the City’s case, the licensee or his attorney should be asked to 

offer an explanation for the violations if they choose, make a statement, offer 
evidence, or otherwise make their presentation. 

bittnera
Text Box
J-01q



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 16, 2005 
 

- 2 - 

8. If the licensee offers evidence from witnesses who have not been previously sworn, 
the City Clerk should swear those witnesses. 

9. Once the licensee has concluded his presentation, the Assistant City Attorney should 
be given an opportunity for rebuttal, if any is desired. 

10. City Council members may ask questions at any time, but it is suggested that this 
questioning by Council members be conducted after the parties conclude their 
presentations. 

11. When the presentation of evidence is concluded, the matter returns to the City 
Council for discussion, deliberation, and resolution. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   

A. Items on the Current Agenda 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

The following named licensees have been given notice to appear for this series of Public 
Hearings regarding alleged violations: 
 
1.0  Liquor Violations (Class C):   
 

 a) Name:  Thunderbird Lanes, Inc. (dba: Thunderbird Lanes) 
  Address: 400 West Maple Road, 48084  
  License No.: Class C - Sunday Sales (1941-2004 SS)  

 
 b) Name:  Ichibang (dba: Ichibang) 
  Address: 1129 East Long Lake Road, 48085  
  License No.: Class C - Sunday Sales (125216-2004 SS) 

 
 c) Name:  GBD, Inc. (dba: Franco’s Cafe) 
  Address: 3614 Rochester Road, 48083 
  License No.: Class C (6886-2004 SS) 
 

2.0 Liquor Violations (SDD/SDM): 
 

a) Name:  Rite Aid of Michigan, Inc. (dba: Rite Aid Discount Pharmacy #4268) 
  Address: 3986 John R, 48083 
  License No.: SDD (11763-2004-SS) / SDM (4339-2004) 
 

b) Name:  K-Mart Corporation (dba: K-Mart #4082) 
  Address: 100 E. Maples, 48083 
  License No.: SDM (8174-2004) 
 

c) Name:  Troy Paradise, Inc. (dba: Troy Paradise Party Store) 
  Address: 5945 John R, 48085 
  License No.: SDD (115945-2004-SS) 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 16, 2005 
 

- 3 - 

1.0 Liquor Violations (Class C): (a) Thunderbird Lanes, Inc. (dba: Thunderbird Lanes); 
(b) Ichibang (dba: Ichibang); (c) GBD, Inc. (dba: Franco’s Cafe)  

 
(a) Thunderbird Lanes, Inc. (dba: Thunderbird Lanes) 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has reviewed the following infractions of liquor 
control codes and regulations and/or ordinances of the State of Michigan and/or the City of Troy 
respectively; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that it will deliberate and determine 
whether to adopt a resolution to recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that 
the license be revoked after Public Hearing on Wednesday, February 16, 2005 for the following 
licensed establishment: 
 

  Name:  Thunderbird Lanes, Inc. (dba: Thunderbird Lanes) 
  Address: 400 West Maple Road, 48084  
  License No.: Class C - Sunday Sales (1941-2004 SS)  

 
and having found violation of the following codes and/or regulations; SALE TO MINOR 
(Compliance Test), March 23, 2004; and 
 
WHEREAS, This licensee has had no prior violations; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given opportunity to review these cited 
infractions, and opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 16, 2005. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that after due 
notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, and having made findings, it is RECOMMENDED 
to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that Class C-Sunday Sales License Number (1941-
2004 SS) in the name of Thunderbird Lanes, Inc. in the City of Troy, BE RENEWED with the 
STIPULATION that all employees be TIPS and TAMS trained and that the Licensee provide 
proof of training to the Troy Police Department within ninety (90) days; and a certified copy of 
this resolution be SENT to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 
 
Vote on Amendment 
 
Resolution #2005-02-071 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by INSERTING after ninety (90) days, “all new 
employees will be TIPS and TAMS trained prior to serving alcohol”. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 16, 2005 
 

- 4 - 

Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak  
 
Vote on Amended Resolution 
 
Resolution #2005-02-072 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Eisenbacher 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has reviewed the following infractions of liquor 
control codes and regulations and/or ordinances of the State of Michigan and/or the City of Troy 
respectively; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that it will deliberate and determine 
whether to adopt a resolution to recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that 
the license be revoked after Public Hearing on Wednesday, February 16, 2005 for the following 
licensed establishment: 
 

  Name:  Thunderbird Lanes, Inc. (dba: Thunderbird Lanes) 
  Address: 400 West Maple Road, 48084  
  License No.: Class C - Sunday Sales (1941-2004 SS)  

 
and having found violation of the following codes and/or regulations; SALE TO MINOR 
(Compliance Test), March 23, 2004; and 
 
WHEREAS, This licensee has had no prior violations; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given opportunity to review these cited 
infractions, and opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 16, 2005. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that after due 
notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, and having made findings, it is RECOMMENDED 
to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that Class C-Sunday Sales License Number (1941-
2004 SS) in the name of Thunderbird Lanes, Inc. in the City of Troy, BE RENEWED with the 
STIPULATION that all employees be TIPS and TAMS trained, that the Licensee provide proof 
of training to the Troy Police Department within ninety (90) days, and all new employees will be 
TIPS and TAMS trained prior to serving alcohol; a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to 
the Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 16, 2005 
 

- 5 - 

(b) Ichibang (dba: Ichibang) 
 
Resolution #2005-02-073 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has reviewed the following infractions of liquor 
control codes and regulations and/or ordinances of the State of Michigan and/or the City of Troy 
respectively; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that it will deliberate and determine 
whether to adopt a resolution to recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that 
the license be revoked after Public Hearing on Wednesday, February 16, 2005 for the following 
licensed establishment: 
 

  Name:  Ichibang (dba: Ichibang) 
  Address: 1129 East Long Lake Road, 48085  

  License No.: Class C - Sunday Sales (125216-2004 SS) 
 
and having found violation of the following codes and/or regulations; SALE TO MINOR 
(Compliance Test), March 23, 2004; and 
 
WHEREAS, This licensee has had no prior violations; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given opportunity to review these cited 
infractions, and opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 16, 2005. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that after due 
notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, and having made findings, it is RECOMMENDED 
to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that Class C License Number (125216-2004 SS) in 
the name of Ichibang, in the City of Troy, BE RENEWED with the STIPULATION that all 
employees be TIPS and TAMS trained and that the Licensee provide proof of training to the 
Troy Police Department within thirty (30) days; and a certified copy of this resolution be SENT 
to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak  
 
 (c) GBD, Inc. (dba: Franco’s Cafe) 
 
Resolution 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has reviewed the following infractions of liquor 
control codes and regulations and/or ordinances of the State of Michigan and/or the City of Troy 
respectively; and 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 16, 2005 
 

- 6 - 

WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that it will deliberate and determine 
whether to adopt a resolution to recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that 
the license not be renewed after a Public Hearing on Wednesday, February 16, 2005, for the 
following licensed establishment: 
 

Name:  GBD, Inc. (dba: Franco’s Cafe) 
  Address: 3614 Rochester Road, 48083 

  License No.: Class C (6886-2004 SS) 
 
and, having found violation for the following codes and/or regulations: SALE TO MINOR -
(Compliance Test) on April 16, 2004; and 
 
WHEREAS, This licensee had prior violations dated November 6, 1998 - Sale to Minor 
(Compliance Insp.) and on October 18, 1995 - Sale to Minor; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given opportunity to review these cited 
infractions, and opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 16, 2005. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that after due 
notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, and having made findings, it is recommended to 
the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that Class C License Number 6886-2004 SS in the 
name of GBD, Inc. in the City of Troy, BE RENEWED with the STIPULATION that the Licensee 
follow the regular TIPS and TAMS recertification schedule for all employees serving alcohol; 
and that a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 
 
Vote on Amendment 
 
Resolution #2005-02-074 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini 
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by STRIKING “that the Licensee follow the 
regular TIPS and TAMS recertification schedule for all employees serving alcohol” and 
INSERTING, “that all employees be TIPS and TAMS trained annually and that all new 
employees will be TIPS and TAMS trained prior to serving alcohol”. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
Vote on Amended Resolution 
 
Resolution #2005-02-075 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 16, 2005 
 

- 7 - 

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has reviewed the following infractions of liquor 
control codes and regulations and/or ordinances of the State of Michigan and/or the City of Troy 
respectively; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that it will deliberate and determine 
whether to adopt a resolution to recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that 
the license not be renewed after a Public Hearing on Wednesday, February 16, 2005, for the 
following licensed establishment: 
 

Name:  GBD, Inc. (dba: Franco’s Cafe) 
  Address: 3614 Rochester Road, 48083 

  License No.: Class C (6886-2004 SS) 
 
and, having found violation for the following codes and/or regulations: SALE TO MINOR -
(Compliance Test) on April 16, 2004; and 
 
WHEREAS, This licensee had prior violations dated November 6, 1998 - Sale to Minor 
(Compliance Insp.) and on October 18, 1995 - Sale to Minor; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given opportunity to review these cited 
infractions, and opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 16, 2005. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that after due 
notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, and having made findings, it is recommended to 
the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that Class C License Number 6886-2004 SS in the 
name of GBD, Inc. in the City of Troy, BE RENEWED with the STIPULATION that all 
employees be TIPS and TAMS trained annually and that all new employees will be TIPS and 
TAMS trained prior to serving liquor; and that a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the 
Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 

2.0 Liquor Violations (Class SDD/SDM): (a) Rite Aid of Michigan, Inc. (dba: Rite Aid 
Discount Pharmacy #4268); (b) K-Mart Corporation (dba: K-Mart #4082); (c) Troy 
Paradise, Inc. (dba: Troy Paradise Party Store)  

 
(a) Rite Aid of Michigan, Inc. (dba: Rite Aid Discount Pharmacy #4268) 
 
Resolution 
Moved by Eisenbacher   
Seconded by  Beltramini   
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has reviewed the following infractions of liquor 
control codes and regulations and/or ordinances of the State of Michigan and/or the City of Troy 
respectively; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 16, 2005 
 

- 8 - 

WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that it will deliberate and determine 
whether to adopt a resolution to recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that 
the license not be renewed after a Public Hearing on Wednesday, February 16, 2005, for the 
following licensed establishment: 
 

Name:  Rite Aid of Michigan, Inc. (dba: Rite Aid Discount Pharmacy #4268) 
  Address: 3986 John R, 48083 
  License No.: SDD (11763-2004-SS) / SDM (4339-2004) 

 
and, having found violation for the following codes and/or regulations: SALE TO MINOR -
(Compliance Test) on June 30, 2004; and 
 
WHEREAS, This licensee has had prior violations dated: July 11, 2003 – Sale to Minor (MLCC 
Compliance Test); February 28, 2002 - Sale to Minor (Compliance Test); April 24, 2001 – Sale 
to Minor (Compliance Test); October 27, 1999 – Sale to Minor (Compliance Test); October 28, 
1998 – Sale to Minor (Compliance Insp.); December 9, 1996 – Sale to Minor (Compliance 
Insp.); and 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given opportunity to review these cited 
infractions, and opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 16, 2005. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that after due 
notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, and having made findings, it is recommended to 
the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that SDD License Number 11763-2004-SS and SDM 
License Number 4339-2004 in the name of Rite Aid of Michigan, Inc. in the City of Troy, NOT 
BE REVOKED because the infraction has already be adjudicated by the state with the 
STIPULATION that TIPS and TAMS or Rite Aid’s training be given to all employees on a bi-
annual basis, that the management employees of Rite Aid Discount Pharmacy #4268 be given 
the same training as its employees on a bi-annual basis, that the Manager on duty will assist 
with all alcohol sales for a period of one year to verify that the customer is of an appropriate age 
to purchase alcohol, and that the monthly audit of the age verification machine currently in 
place will instead be conducted on a bi-monthly basis; and that a certified copy of this resolution 
be SENT to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 
 
Vote on Amendment 
 
Resolution #2005-02-076 
Moved by Beltramini    
Seconded by  Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by INSERTING, “that the Licensee provide 
proof of TAMS or Rite Aid’s training to the Troy Police Department within thirty (30) days of 
each training” BEFORE “and that a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan 
Liquor Control Commission. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 16, 2005 
 

- 9 - 

Vote on Amendment 
 
Resolution #2005-02-077 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by  Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by INSERTING, ”that a copy of the Rite Aid 
Discount Pharmacy #4268 employee manual will be delivered to the Troy Police Department no 
later than April 1, 2005 and a letter from Rite Aid’s upper management will be forwarded to the 
Troy Police Department stating what policy changes are being made at Rite Aid Discount 
Pharmacy #4268 in order to comply with the provisions of this resolution” BEFORE “and that a 
certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
Vote on Amended Resolution 
 
Resolution #2005-02-078 
Moved by Eisenbacher    
Seconded by  Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has reviewed the following infractions of liquor 
control codes and regulations and/or ordinances of the State of Michigan and/or the City of Troy 
respectively; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that it will deliberate and determine 
whether to adopt a resolution to recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that 
the license not be renewed after a Public Hearing on Wednesday, February 16, 2005, for the 
following licensed establishment: 
 

Name:  Rite Aid of Michigan, Inc. (dba: Rite Aid Discount Pharmacy #4268) 
  Address: 3986 John R, 48083 
  License No.: SDD (11763-2004-SS) / SDM (4339-2004) 

 
and, having found violation for the following codes and/or regulations: SALE TO MINOR -
(Compliance Test) on June 30, 2004; and 
 
WHEREAS, This licensee has had prior violations dated: July 11, 2003 – Sale to Minor (MLCC 
Compliance Test); February 28, 2002 - Sale to Minor (Compliance Test); April 24, 2001 – Sale 
to Minor (Compliance Test); October 27, 1999 – Sale to Minor (Compliance Test); October 28, 
1998 – Sale to Minor (Compliance Insp.); December 9, 1996 – Sale to Minor (Compliance 
Insp.); and 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given opportunity to review these cited 
infractions, and opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 16, 2005. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 16, 2005 
 

- 10 - 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that after due 
notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, and having made findings, it is recommended to 
the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that SDD License Number 11763-2004-SS and SDM 
License Number 4339-2004 in the name of Rite Aid of Michigan, Inc. in the City of Troy, NOT 
BE REVOKED because the infraction has already be adjudicated by the state with the 
STIPULATION that TIPS and TAMS or Rite Aid’s training be given to all employees on a bi-
annual basis, that the management employees of Rite Aid Discount Pharmacy #4268 be given 
the same training as its employees on a bi-annual basis, that the Manager on duty will assist 
with all alcohol sales for a period of one year to verify that the customer is of an appropriate age 
to purchase alcohol, that the monthly audit of the age verification machine currently in place will 
instead be conducted on a bi-monthly basis, that the Licensee provide proof of TAMS or Rite 
Aid’s training to the Troy Police Department within thirty (30) days of each training, and that a 
copy of the Rite Aid Discount Pharmacy #4268 employee manual will be delivered to the Troy 
Police Department no later than April 1, 2005 and a letter from Rite Aid’s upper management 
will be forwarded to the Troy Police Department stating what policy changes are being made at 
Rite Aid Discount Pharmacy #4268 in order to comply with the provisions of this resolution; and 
that a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 9:43 pm. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 9:51 pm. 
 
(b) K-Mart Corporation (dba: K-Mart #4082) 
 
Resolution #2005-02-079 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has reviewed the following infractions of liquor 
control codes and regulations and/or ordinances of the State of Michigan and/or the City of Troy 
respectively; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that it will deliberate and determine 
whether to adopt a resolution to recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that 
the license not be renewed after a Public Hearing on Wednesday, February 16, 2005, for the 
following licensed establishment: 
 

Name:  K-Mart Corporation (dba: K-Mart #4082) 
  Address: 100 E. Maples, 48083 
  License No.: SDM (8174-2004) 

 
and, having found violation for the following codes and/or regulations: SALE TO MINOR -
(Compliance Test) on June 30, 2004; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 16, 2005 
 

- 11 - 

WHEREAS, This licensee has had prior violations dated: May 17, 2001 – Sale to Minor 
(Compliance Test); July 25, 2000 – Sale to Minor (Compliance Test); October 28, 1998 – Sale 
to Minor (Compliance Insp.); and 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given opportunity to review these cited 
infractions, and opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 16, 2005. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that after due 
notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, and having made findings, it is recommended to 
the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that SDM License Number 8174-2004 in the name of 
K-Mart Corporation in the City of Troy, NOT BE REVOKED; and that a certified copy of this 
resolution be SENT to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
(c) Troy Paradise, Inc. (dba: Troy Paradise Party Store) 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has reviewed the following infractions of liquor 
control codes and regulations and/or ordinances of the State of Michigan and/or the City of Troy 
respectively; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that it will deliberate and determine 
whether to adopt a resolution to recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that 
the license not be renewed after a Public Hearing on Wednesday, February 16, 2005, for the 
following licensed establishment: 
 

Name:  Troy Paradise, Inc. (dba: Troy Paradise Party Store) 
  Address: 5945 John R, 48085 

  License No.: SDD (115945-2004 SS) 
 
and, having found violation for the following codes and/or regulations: SALE TO MINOR -
(Compliance Test) on November 21, 2004; and 
 
WHEREAS, This licensee has had a prior violation dated: March 24, 2003; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given opportunity to review these cited 
infractions, and opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 16, 2005. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that after due 
notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, and having made findings, it is recommended to 
the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that SDD License Number 115945-2004 SS in the 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 16, 2005 
 

- 12 - 

name of Troy Paradise, Inc. in the City of Troy, NOT BE REVOKED with the STIPULATION 
that the Licensee be TIPS and TAMS trained and certified annually, and that the Licensee 
provide proof of training to the Troy Police Department within thirty (30) days; and that a 
certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 
 
Vote on Amendment 
 
Resolution #2005-02-080 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by INSERTING, “that the Licensee purchase 
an age verification machine and require identification for all customers purchasing alcohol” 
BEFORE “and that a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan Liquor Control 
Commission.” 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
Vote on Amended Resolution 
 
Resolution #2005-02-081 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Lambert 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has reviewed the following infractions of liquor 
control codes and regulations and/or ordinances of the State of Michigan and/or the City of Troy 
respectively; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has given public notice that it will deliberate and determine 
whether to adopt a resolution to recommend to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that 
the license not be renewed after a Public Hearing on Wednesday, February 16, 2005, for the 
following licensed establishment: 
 

Name:  Troy Paradise, Inc. (dba: Troy Paradise Party Store) 
  Address: 5945 John R, 48085 

  License No.: SDD (115945-2004 SS) 
 
and, having found violation for the following codes and/or regulations: SALE TO MINOR -
(Compliance Test) on November 21, 2004; and 
 
WHEREAS, This licensee has had a prior violation dated: March 24, 2003; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given opportunity to review these cited 
infractions, and opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements by accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 16, 2005. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 16, 2005 
 

- 13 - 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that after due 
notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, and having made findings, it is recommended to 
the Michigan Liquor Control Commission that SDD License Number 115945-2004 SS in the 
name of Troy Paradise, Inc. in the City of Troy, NOT BE REVOKED with the STIPULATION 
that the Licensee be TIPS and TAMS trained and certified annually, that the Licensee provide 
proof of training to the Troy Police Department within thirty (30) days, and that the Licensee 
purchase an age verification machine and require identification for all customers purchasing 
alcohol; and that a certified copy of this resolution be SENT to the Michigan Liquor Control 
Commission. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Howrylak 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at10:26 pm. 
 
 
 
 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
  

 
 Barbara A. Holmes, CMC 

Deputy City Clerk 
 



DATE:        February 1, 2005

TO:            John Szerlag, City Manager
FROM:       Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:  Permits issued during the Month of January 2005

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
Add/Alter 4 $245,730.00 $1,670.00

Sub Total 4 $245,730.00 $1,670.00

COMMERCIAL
Tenant Completion 2 $50,000.00 $470.00
Add/Alter 15 $1,337,361.00 $8,135.00

Sub Total 17 $1,387,361.00 $8,605.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 3 $582,000.00 $3,240.00
Add/Alter 18 $599,037.00 $4,810.00
Repair 2 $8,360.00 $155.00
Wreck 6 $3,000.00 $320.00

Sub Total 29 $1,192,397.00 $8,525.00

TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
New 5 $750,000.00 $4,300.00
Add/Alter 5 $42,277.00 $515.00

Sub Total 10 $792,277.00 $4,815.00

INSTITUTIONAL/HOSPITAL
Add/Alter 1 $3,000,000.00 $15,110.00

Sub Total 1 $3,000,000.00 $15,110.00

MISCELLANEOUS
Signs 28 $0.00 $3,225.00
Fences 4 $0.00 $70.00

Sub Total 32 $0.00 $3,295.00

TOTAL 93 $6,617,765.00 $42,020.00

Page 1

bittnera
Text Box
J-02a



PERMITS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF JANUARY 2005
NO. PERMIT FEE

Mul. Dwel. Insp. 0 $0.00
Cert. of Occupancy 27 $1,631.50
Plan Review 72 $3,923.50
Microfilm 23 $242.00
Building Permits 93 $42,020.00
Electrical Permits 149 $10,958.00
Heating Permits 152 $6,745.00
Air Cond. Permits 31 $1,245.00
Refrigeration Permits 0 $0.00
Plumbing Permits 116 $8,583.00
Storm Sewer Permits 4 $203.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 4 $110.00
Sewer Taps 8 $4,394.00

TOTAL 679 $80,055.00

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF JANUARY 2005
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 24 $120.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 62 $930.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 12 $12.00
Sewer Inst.-Reg. 2 $100.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 3 $30.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 5 $75.00
Fence Inst.-Reg. 2 $20.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 8 $80.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 3 $45.00

TOTAL 121 $1,412.00

Page 2



BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED

BUILDING PERMIT BUILDING
PERMITS VALUATION PERMITS

2004 2004 2005

JANUARY 100 $5,235,481.00 93

FEBRUARY 130 $21,354,496.00 0

MARCH 158 $9,372,242.00 0

APRIL 178 $14,158,227.00 0

MAY 232 $11,511,644.00 0

JUNE 232 $16,224,865.00 0

JULY 178 $19,788,711.00 0

AUGUST 224 $11,179,780.00 0

SEPTEMBER 198 $13,582,037.00 0

OCTOBER 197 $11,540,976.00 0

NOVEMBER 161 $6,232,506.00 0

DECEMBER 148 $7,316,487.00 0

TOTAL 2136 $147,497,452.00



PERMIT
VALUATION

2005

$6,617,765.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00



2004 2004

SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING PERMITS 2005

3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch

A
pr

il

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug

us
t

Se
pt

em
be

r

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r

D
ec

em
be

r



Feb 1, 2005 BRIEF BREAKDOWN OF NON-RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMITSPrinted:
ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF JANUARY 2005Page:  1

Type of Construction Address of Job ValuationBuilder or Company

Commercial, Add/Alter 5460 CORPORATE  500,000.00TROY ROBIN INC
Commercial, Add/Alter 392 W FOURTEEN MILE  110,000.00RICK LOFTUS
Commercial, Add/Alter 362 W FOURTEEN MILE  157,311.00DEJAGER CONSTRUCTION INC
Commercial, Add/Alter 2801 W BIG BEAVER J-226  230,000.00NATIONAL CONTRACTORS INC
Commercial, Add/Alter 201 W BIG BEAVER 1120  150,000.00KIRCO CONSTRUCTION LLC

Commercial, Add/AlterTotal  1,147,311.00

Inst./Hosp., Add/Alter 44201 DEQUINDRE 1ST FL  3,000,000.00SKANSKA USA DESIGN BUILD INC

Inst./Hosp., Add/AlterTotal  3,000,000.00

Total Valuation:  4,147,311.00Records  7



bittnera
Text Box
J-02b



bittnera
Text Box
J-02c







































To:  Mayor and City Council 
 
cc:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
From:  Robin Beltramini, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
Subject: National League of Cities Congress of Cities and Exposition 
  November 30 – December 4, 2004 
  Indianapolis IN 
 
 
First, thank you for the opportunity to represent Troy at this meeting. It was a terrific 
opportunity to learn new skills and to network with officials of other communities, to build 
a resource network as we face Troy’s upcoming challenges.  I have already met with 
the City Manager to share pertinent information from the vendor and management 
sectors of the Congress and Expo.   
 
The first 24 hours were spent with committee meetings and educational events which I 
will cover in a separate document.  This report will serve as a synopsis of the “meat” of 
the Congress and Expo. 
 
Wednesday, December 1, 2004 
 
Opening Reception:  This event was located in the Exhibit Hall allowing us free access 
to the hundreds of vendors present, and the cities that had special news to share.  As 
an example, it was during this event that we learned how the City of Reno put all 
permits on line and saved almost 15 minutes, per permit, in employee time at the 
counter.  We were able to talk to various purveyors of internet programs.  There are 
always providers of DPW and park services and hardware.  All information was passed 
along to our City Management. 
 
Thursday, December 2, 2004 
 
Opening General Session:   
Bart Peterson, Mayor of Indianapolis and incoming 2nd VP for NLC, reported that there 
were 3000 attendees representing 1604 direct member cities.  The purpose of the 
convention was to set legislative policy direction and to offer individual attendees and 
member cities ways to do our jobs better, learn from mistakes made by others, find new 
solutions to problems, and to provide an opportunity to develop resource relationships. 
Charlie Lyons, Selectman from Arlington MA and NLC President, reported on his year 
as President.  He visited 22 state leagues, including Michigan.  From those visits he 
drew a few universal conclusions:  1) People are united in favor of democracy, fairness, 
and the future of America; 2)  There is need for a regional approach to education and 
housing;  3)  All communities need to be livable and sustainable.   His message on 
leadership was a quote from Eleanor Roosevelt, “Great minds talk about ideas.  

1 

bittnera
Text Box
J-02d



Average minds talk about events.   Small minds talk about people.”  He urged us, as 
leaders, to think, talk, and act in terms of vision and ideas. 
Michael Beschloss, Presidential historian and author, tried to put the recent election in 
some perspective.  He began by talking about the difference in historical perspective vs. 
real time perspective.  For instance, Truman is revered for his adherence to personal 
values and for the laying of the groundwork for resolution of the Cold War.  However, as 
he left office, Truman’s approval rating was 12%.   Beschloss likened George W. Bush’s 
re-election situation to that of Franklin D. Roosevelt in 1937 and Lyndon B. Johnson in 
1965.  FDR and LBJ had like-party Congresses, but without some personal and 
philosophical allies.  GWB has those allies, but still has only the 12-18 months to get the 
job done before new campaigns intervene.  Like George W. Bush, FDR had not served 
in Congress and didn’t understand the relationships and priorities.  LBJ knew he had 
about seven months to pass his priorities—because of his personal experiences in the 
Congress and knowledge of the re-election pressures that would begin to color votes.   
Beschloss’s message on leadership was that it doesn’t really come from the President 
of the United States.  Ideas come from local, grassroots constituencies leaning on 
Congress and the President to enact laws to make those ideas reality.  The Founding 
Fathers wanted a diversity of ideas and a system that would deal with it.  However, their 
vision was for great dialogue without rancor and nastiness.  That is what is lacking in 
today’s political system.  Even as recently as Ronald Reagan, there was healthy, albeit, 
partisan dialogue.  President Reagan and Tip O’Neill could separate business and be 
social friends.  LBJ and Everett Dirksen were much the same.  Those leaders had real 
relationships that they then used to pass legislation (e.g., LBJ and the 1965 Civil Rights 
Act). 
 
News conferences and tapings: There was a nationally distributed news conference 
featuring NLC officers which talked about the themes and goals of the Congress of 
Cities and Exposition.  Additionally, a relatively new feature was the advent of taping 
local officials for broadcast “at home.”  Mayor Schilling was part of one of these.  Some 
sessions were webcast, as well. 
 
Lunch in the Exhibit Hall:  This was much the same as the Opening Reception, but 
featured a box lunch.  With over 300 commercial vendors and almost 20 cities 
showcasing new products and ways to do business, these set-aside times for perusal 
were very welcome. 
 
Afternoon Break-Out Session, Land Use Planning By the People, For the People:  I was 
the moderator for this session featuring Tom Argust, retired Commissioner of 
Community Development in Rochester NY and Katherine Perez, Executive Director of 
the Transportation and Land Use Collaborative of Southern California.  The session 
highlighted two successful initiatives where citizens took an interest and made a 
difference in land use for their communities.    
Rochester NY paradigms: 
 

• Strategic partnerships 
• Citizens first 

2 



• Power and Investment as motivation 
• Self-interest drives action (The Boiled Frog metaphor) 
• Influence of the few (1% rules) 
• Perspective is individual 
• Unintended consequences 
• Renew/keep plans evergreen—moving 
• Earn your keep daily 
 

The Neighbors Building Neighborhood (NBN) concept divided the town into 10 sectors 
where citizens worked in those individual areas of town to create a vision and develop a 
plan for the renaissance of Rochester.  The zoning documents became design-centered 
rather than use-centered.  Each neighborhood’s vision became the policy document 
adopted by City Council.  The NBN process broadened citizen participation while 
promoting trust, accountability, and efficient use of human and financial resources in the 
city.  It has led to increased volunteerism in neighborhoods, expanded technology 
options including automated information, and pride in community.  The city sponsors a 
NBN Institute where over 100 citizens and City Administration staff have been trained in 
the art of citizen planning and the new technologies being used in Rochester.  More 
information can be found at www.r2010.com or www.rochesternbn.com.  
Katherine Perez instructed us on ways to work with the changing demographics and ad 
hoc structures within communities.  She discussed some changes that made 
transportation planning imperative:  a significant percentage of jobs outside the central 
business district of the nearest major city; a third or more of all commutes being suburb 
to suburb; and the interest of citizens not previously engaged in the political, or land 
use, process. 
 
Southern CA challenges: 
 

• Most of the new, active leadership is young/inexperienced 
• Explosion of growth in Latino population 
• New constituencies not easily contacted 
• Political change in priorities and representation 
• Immigrants more familiar with transit, density, mixed-use housing than with 

traditional-style US development 
 
The biggest challenge in dealing with changing populations is how to reach 
constituencies.  Innovative methods are imperative.  It may be that smaller groups must 
be touched more often—schools, children’s sports teams’ parent organizations, 
women’s clubs.  Linear charrettes may be necessary.  Some of these may be reached 
through contacts with “traditional folks of value” such as churches and other cultural 
leaders.  Leadership must recognize the demographic shift. 
More information can be found at www.tluc.net. 
 
NLC Nominating Committee Hearing:  I attended as each candidate gave a two-minute 
rendition on what he or she could bring to the NLC Board.  Like any such exercise, even 
at that level, some folks were articulate and others were not.   

3 

http://www.r2010.com/
http://www.rochesternbn.com/
http://www.tluc.net/


Vickie Barnett, Mayor of Farmington Hills, was the lone candidate from Michigan, and 
was elected to the NLC Board on Saturday. 
 
Michigan Municipal League Reception:  This was held at the Indianapolis Marriott.  It 
provided an opportunity to network and share with other officials from Michigan. 
 
Friday, December 3, 2004
 
Opening General Session: 
Awards:  John G. Stutz Awards for 25 years of league service were given to:  Sandy 
Bostic, NC League; Nancy Hyde, NC League; Sam Nemitz, CO League; Rick Pallodino, 
AR League; Carla Vining, TX League; and Laura Turner, NLC. 
James C. Howland Awards for Municipal Enrichment were given to:   

• West Lafayette IN for the Wabash Landing Redevelopment project—a 
partnership of the city, state and federal government, and private developers.  It 
turned a landfill and abandoned department store building into a town center.  
The infill development contains upscale apartments, restaurants and shops, 
community festival venue, childcare center, movie theater, and hotel. 

•  Medford OR for the Façade Grant Program—created to improve the appearance 
of historic buildings, retaining existing businesses, and encouraging new 
business location in downtown. It offers grant funding for rehabilitation of 
windows, doors, brickwork, stucco, etc. and the removal of non-historical 
materials or additions.  In addition to the appearance and “feel” of the downtown, 
the end result is an increased tax base where for each pubic dollar invested, 
seven private dollars have been reinvested in the area. 

• Lexington-Fayette Urban County KY for the Purchase of Development Rights 
Program—the third of a series of initiatives begun in 1958 to protect Kentucky’s 
famous horse country from urban sprawl.  Five goals of the program are:  protect 
the tourism economies; conserve and protect the scenic open space; use 
conservation easements to protect 50,000 acres over 20 years; provide funding 
of $140 million over 20 years from local, state, and federal government; 
compensate farm owners for the quadrupling of minimum allowable lot size in the 
county (from 10 to 40 acres). 

• San Diego CA for their San Diego Family Justice Center—a “one-stop” service 
center for families experiencing the physical and emotional trauma of domestic 
violence.  The facility houses the entire Domestic Violence Units of a Police 
Department and a Prosecutor’s Office as well as staff from seven different city 
and county agencies and 24 private, non-profit community service organizations.  
Additionally, there is a free-standing Forensic Medical Unit for the 
documentation, evaluation, and treatment of non-life threatening domestic 
violence injuries.  This was the model for President Bush’s Family Justice Center 
Initiative to create 12 such centers around the country. 

 
Program, Perspectives on the 2004 Election:  Speakers were retired U.S. Senators Bill 
Bradley (D-NJ) and Alan Simpson (R-WY). 
 

4 



Simpson: 
 

• Candidates were not engaged in savagery, but outside sources were 
• Republicans stuck together, even when they disagreed on various planks 
• Harry Reid is a man of great faith and conviction 
• Civility in Congress is only reflective of US society 
• Biggest fear for this administration is perception of hubris and arrogance 
• President Bush much mend international fences 

 
Bradley: 
 

• Rapidly changing world being reshaped by globalization and technology 
• George W. Bush won because it was the best of 21st century politics—targeting 

undecided voter battle was won by John Kerry—but GWB was better at 19th 
century politics of getting out the base 

• Will GWB want further re-alignment of Congress and the White House?  If yes, 
continue to play to the base.  With that, cities in “red states” will do better. 

• Will GWB choose legacy?  If so, must deal w/ problems of the country: 
o 45 million people without health insurance 
o 13 million children living in poverty 
o The budget deficit 
o Medicare’s problems 
o Dependence on foreign oil 
o Social Security’s future 
 

Question and Answer period: 
 
How do you think we’ll do on environmental lobbying? 
 
Simpson:  Stereotypes are a mistake.  WY has 44% of the lower 48 wilderness, but 
much of it is owned by the government.  Many Republicans have feeling for the 
environment. 
 
Bradley:  It’s more difficult to pass environmental legislation in a Republican Congress, 
but it can be done (e.g., Clean Air during the George H. W. Bush presidency).  Need a 
willingness of persons in each party to listen and to understand. 
Are we replacing well-paying jobs with comparable jobs lost through NAFTA and WTO? 
 
Bradley:  Technology has displaced more jobs than globalization.  Now, even service 
jobs (80% of our economy) are being outsourced—but even 2/3 of them to other US 
locations.  We must create training and opportunity, and health care for “ white guys 
over 50” who become displaced.  Education, the best universities and most creative 
entrepreneurs, and system training for adaptability of jobs will be essential. 
 
Simpson:  I believe that free trade not only flows jobs and products out, but in as well.  
Trying to pick and choose actually weakens the economic system. 

5 



Contrast President Bush’s tax cuts and the income deficit.  “If your outflow exceeds your 
income, your upkeep will become your downfall.” 
 
Simpson:  Tax cuts went too far.  However, Social Security needs fixing—higher 
premiums or lower benefits.  Also, Medicare Part B needs some eligibility to pay 
requirement.  Currently, rich and poor are equally eligible. 
 
Bradley:  Tax cuts went too far and should have had a gradient of refund.  Mid/lower 
bracket families are actually behind because of rising costs of other things, structural 
imbalances in economy.  Economy priorities need to be the budget deficit and letting the 
dollar find its level.  All pension funds are grossly underfunded because of the 
dependence on the stock market. 
 
Simpson:  Unfunded guarantees are in the billions of dollars. 
Comment on the Social Security inequities of young people putting money in and older 
folks getting benefits.  
 
Bradley:  That’s why it needs fixing. 
 
Simpson:  Young folks better vote! 
 
Election reform committee—Can we shorten the election season to a Switzerland-style 
model? 
 
Bradley:  We really can’t limit campaign time, but we could reassign the $1 billion spent 
promoting democracy around the world and put it into the US races.  The Supreme 
Court says that money in campaigns is free speech.  Therefore, we’d need a 
Constitutional Amendment or some sort of public financing to change the system.  Most 
successful changes come through grassroots efforts. 
 
Simpson:  Although a Republican, I’ll skirt the public finance issue because of the need 
for equity.  We need to pull back on the ability to spend unlimited wealth as free speech. 
 
Women In Municipal Government Luncheon:  The keynote speaker was Shelly Herman, 
President of MetroEdge, Chicago IL.  Ms. Herman’s background is finance and 
management.  She shared with us the many ways communities and financial institutions 
look at location strategies and investments in urban and suburban areas.  Her particular 
areas of expertise are supermarket development, neighborhood market assessments, 
and community lending.   It was particularly educational to hear her insights on the 
development of the necessary relationships from a woman’s perspective. 
 
Afternoon Break-Out Session, Strengthening Democratic Governance and Connecting 
Community:  The session was designed to give officials an overview of ways to make 
community decisions in a participatory, deliberative, and collaborative manner.  The 
principles of Democratic Governance that were the foundation for the session are: 
 

6 



• Solving problems requires community participation 
• Recruiting through a broad array of networks is critical 
• Build trust through face-to-face dialogue 
• Present all facts for decision-making 
• Use political legitimacy to promote responsibility and leadership 

 
San Jose, CA’s “Strong Neighborhoods” program was discussed by Nora Campos, 
Councilmember, San Jose.  The city was divided into districts, each with at least one 
Strong Neighborhood project or area.  The first meetings were not very successful.  
Eventually, each neighborhood established priorities for their projects—from sidewalks 
to economic development.  Interestingly, the goal of most neighborhoods experiencing 
blight was just to be treated like everybody else.  Complete information can be found at 
www.strongneighborhoods.org. 
 
Matt Leighninger, Senior Associate with Study Circles Resource Center in Hamilton 
Ont. and Roberta Miller, Principal of Roberta Miller and Associates of Watertown MA 
facilitated a discussion on the “how to’s and why’s” of the Democratic Governance 
process, using the San Jose experience as a source of concrete examples and 
reference.  Positive input from the audience include:  good first step for city leadership 
making; diversity of group discussing issues and making community decisions; total 
community involvement; follow-through and pay off for residents; use of collaborative 
resources in both time and money; potential for broad perspective; designed for 
balanced input ending in consensus; early, broad input to avoid “reactionary decision”; 
open communication and commitment from the city with residents; educational 
component of the residents learning how things change.  Negative, or challenges, from 
the audience fell into two categories:  how to get folks involved when they don’t believe 
an issue impacts them and how to keep from the perception of a citizen decision instead 
of the representative government.  It was concluded that these are real issues, but their 
resolution depends on leadership style and perception as much as the methodology 
used for decision-making.  Effective communication is essential. 
Question and Answer period: 
 
How do we engage citizens in the first place? 
 
Answers:  food and childcare are critical, particularly with young families; small wins at 
the beginning (e.g., flowers in the neighborhood) to build trust between the city and 
community; citizen run meetings and presentation lend viability to “process ownership”; 
changing of interior realities—We must believe that people want to participate. 
How do you involve immigrants and non-English speakers? 
 
Answers:  employ bi-lingual staff to coordinate with neighborhoods; have translator for 
presentation; once some of the immigrant community become involved, they will begin 
to involve others. 
 
Where does the money for food and childcare come from? 

7 

http://www.strongneighborhoods.org/


Answers:  City of San Jose Parks and Recreation and Redevelopment Agency worked 
cooperatively to pay; costs can be divided within legal boundaries; private funds can be 
solicited. 
 
Council has to be committed to the deliverables—counterproductive to involve citizens 
without prior buy-in. 
 
Comment:  Facts regarding potential budget issues must be explored by all; citizens 
with helpful skills can be empowered to foster their dream; clear understanding, at the 
beginning, regarding expectations and the city’s ability to deliver. 
 
How do you involve teens? 
 
Answer:  Youth Councils and Commissions and Youth Summits 
 
Afternoon Break-Out Session, Taxing Choices: Local and State Responses to Tax and 
Spending Limit:  The session was a discussion on the ways various state and local 
governments, and citizens, have responded to the increased fiscal demands including 
the pressure to enact tax and spending limits.   
 
Chris Lockwood, Executive Director of the Maine Municipal League, told about the 
popularity of the referendum in Maine.  A recent tax cap proposal was combated with a 
barrage of impact information in a variety of media.  Property tax revenue is the main 
funding source for K-12 education as well as city services in Maine.  The state 
mandates performance in education, but does not fully fund it. 
 
Mark Baldassare, Research Director and Arjay and Frances Fearing Miller Chair in 
Public Policy at the Public Policy Institute in San Francisco CA, spoke about the 
universal want of voters to have more services but with the desire to pay less.  He also 
expounded on the December 1994 Orange County bankruptcy.  While there were 
contributing factors to that bankruptcy, it cannot be ignored that one important factor 
was the public pressure for the community to live beyond its means.  Orange County 
voters expected to get more for less. 
 
John Russo, City Attorney for Oakland CA, talked about the state budget transfer of 
over $40 billion dollars in the last 15 years.  The money was taken from local 
government allocations and given to schools.  The League of California Cities has 
raised dues to fund the crafting of a political measure to get that money back. 
 
Question and Answer period: 
 
Where do you get the school funding? 
 
Answers:  responsibility is the legislature’s but CA proposal includes a clause requiring 
the legislature to amend taxation or policy to meet funding needs if it can’t be done by 

8 



reassignment.  Implementation is required; provision also to grow government at a rate 
smaller than personal income; some initiatives are “defensive perimeters.” 
Is there a backlash of cities disincorporating? 
 
Answers:  small number in Maine; none known in California 
 
Solutions create new problems 
 
Comment:  Actually, this generated a pervasive discussion on the taxing of services 
including sales tax for massages and lawn care and the balancing of such additional 
taxes with the needs of city and state government, as well as the impact on the 
individual taxpayer. 
 
City Futures Reception:  Municipalities in Transition Panels, NLC Advisory Council, and 
the NLC International Task Force—Joint Reception.  This was a time to informally 
discuss education and policy thrusts of the NLC with its leadership and members of 
those committees charged with dealing with the “changing face of government.”  It was 
a time to build relationships to use as resources for solutions to problems as well as 
build credibility for future discussions. 
 
Saturday, December 4, 2005
 
General Session, Connecting Citizens and Government:  A Matter of Trust:  The 
session began with some statistical information.  Results of recent surveys show only 
40% of those surveyed trust government to do the right thing.  This same measurement 
was 77% in 1965.  However, even with 40% trusting, it is difficult to figure out how to 
build trust in the other 60% since when asked if government should be doing more, or 
doing less, 45% believe government should do more while 43% believe government 
should do less.  There was a panel discussion of what can be done to build trust in 
government for the 21st century.  Panelists and their opening points were: 
Steve Burkholder, Mayor of Lakewood CO, posed the question, “Does representative 
government still work?”  People want to be more involved in decisions. 
Anthony Williams, Mayor of Washington D.C. and incoming NLC President, talked about 
the “new role” of the public official.  He believes that plans and strategies must be 
crafted at citizen summits with the public official serving the role of trustee or maitre d’. 
Glenda Hood, Secretary of State for Florida and former NLC President, pointed to the 
continually evolving voting process—early voting, no excuse absentee.  In all cases, the 
more information and input folks have, the better the product will be.  Therefore, we 
must continue to ask for citizen ideas for improvement. 
 
Emma Hulse, Member of the Mayor’s Youth Council of Indianapolis, pointed to the need 
to provide youth an opportunity to give input and participate.  She particularly 
highlighted the “fate” of the non-valedictorian.  Just because a student is not the best in 
a particular arena, doesn’t mean that he or she has no expertise.  Youth are experts in 
lots of things, not the least of which is education policy—what teaching methods work or 

9 



don’t and why.  Most of all, she stressed that youth need to be asked or they will fade 
from the process. 
 
Williams—Washington DC has Youth Summit and Advisory Council.  However, there is 
still a lack of involvement of diverse youth. 
 
Hood—Issues are the same for youth and the general population.  Decision-makers 
need to ask, “Is it good for kids?” 
 
Question and Answer period: 
 
How can we get youth involved in real politics? 
 
Answers:  show faith in young people; trust kids; give youth decision-making 
responsibility; actively recruit youth. 
Should mayors and officials blog every day? 
 
Answers:  Good to let folks know what you’re doing; information doesn’t have to come 
through blogs; need to know source of information; responding to email, calls, visits is 
critical; blogging by officials might contribute to the sharing of knowledge; could have 
“assigned on-line” time. 
 
Hard work and successfully delivering are often overlooked by the media. 
 
Comments:  general agreement 
 
Do folks have perception that officials are corrupt? 
 
Answers:  Youth don’t (Hulse); regular people donate to campaigns; locally elections 
don’t cost enough to corrupt; media/advertising have become marketing campaigns—
negative—and taint government at all levels; limits on maximum amount of donations 
help; media looks for the negative to sell papers—Watergate mentality. 
 
Has constant scrutiny changed the way local officials behave? 
 
Answers:  Perhaps for the better; showing what you discussed at various meetings—all 
designed to improve communities; 
 
Is this about trust or about who we engage? 
 
Answers:  While voters elect us, the responsibility is to the entire community 
Because of media, do you think leaders spend too much time on image? 
 
Answers:  Yes, need to think about long-term; elected to lead, not just follow; need to 
look beyond what will get us elected; leaders need the vision and willingness to take 

10 



risk—and to articulate the vision; people want leaders to take a position—but ask for the 
opinion of folks. 
 
How do we change the message being given to K-6 kids regarding politicians and trust? 
 
Answers:  Youth councils as youth modeling; officials present in the schools whenever 
asked; kids voting programs. 
 
How do we counteract negative media? 
 
Answers:  Debates, preferably unfiltered; party committees need to not “go negative” as 
well; courage of not using opposition tactics is usually rewarded, but expensive. 
 
Can we share ideas on how to use the internet for gaining citizen opinions in real time? 
 
Answers:  Washington DC has internet summits; link city and member cable channels. 
 
Morning Session, NLC Network: Interactive Focus Group Assembly:  I was invited to 
participate in a focus group discussion to set the course for Mayor Williams’ signature 
initiative of a multi-media knowledge system for NLC members.  His vision is to use 
multiple and diverse media for disseminating information and creating supportive 
networks throughout the membership.  He calls this the National City Network that 
includes:  a web portal with a searchable database containing information for and about 
local governments, including projects, policies, documents, sharable resources; print 
and electronic news and information publications; In-person and virtual assemblies, 
conferences, meetings and educational and networking opportunities; and robust, high-
quality broadcast offerings in partnership with government access cable television.   
About 40 of us gathered with five facilitators to discuss the various kinds of information 
that would be useful and ways in which we would access it.   The vision is one of 
multiple ways to leverage membership into programs, policies, and information that can 
be shared and tailored for each member community without “reinventing the wheel.”  It 
shows a partnership between member communities, citizens, federal and state 
governments, the media, business community, and the academic community.  There is 
a beginning of this network available for view at www.nlc.org and click on the Resources 
for Cities tab. 
 
Delegates’ Luncheon:  Featured speaker was Dr. Benjamin Carson, professor of 
neurosurgery, plastic surgery, oncology, and pediatrics at Johns Hopkins Medical 
Institute.  Dr. Carson grew up in poverty in a single parent home.  He told the story of 
his temper, and his spelling, and his poor grades—and his desire to be a physician.  It is 
an inspiring story of determination and hope.  It fully illustrates what a good example, 
love, faith, and perseverance can mean in the life, and future, of a child.  His motto is 
“Think Big”— 
 
 
 

11 

http://www.nlc.org/


T talent, particularly intellectual talent 
H honesty 
I insight 
N nice, be nice to people 
K knowledge 
 
B books—the sharing repository of all knowledge 
I in-depth learning 
G God—the ultimate source of all 
 
Annual Business Meeting:  There was no controversy this year.  The advocacy policies 
remain fairly constant.  There were resolutions passed aimed at protecting the local 
right to tax.  More important than taxing, is the preservation of the ability to tax as both 
state and federal governments continue to pass along unfunded mandates to local 
units.  No city was anticipating raising taxes on businesses or residents, but the 
membership unanimously passed the resolution to not allow the federal government to 
remove our ability to tax in certain circumstances.  There were also resolutions passed 
to preserve our authority in communications regulation. 
 
Host City Closing Event:  This was Indianapolis’s time to shine.  They opened the 
Indiana State Museum to the delegation.  With my love of history, I was content to 
wander the galleries and look at everything from mining techniques for Indiana 
limestone to quilts from around the world.  The museum itself is interesting in that it is a 
three-story structure that encompasses a historic school building. 
 
Again, thank you for the opportunity to represent our dynamic city.  I hope that this 
synopsis in some way proves helpful as we face the future together.  Mayor Schilling 
and Councilman Lambert attended some different sessions than I and may have 
differing views on some that we attended together.  Any of us will be happy to respond 
to questions or comments about the Congress of Cities events. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
REB 
Feb. 15, 2005 

12 



bittnera
Text Box
J-02e



























































1

Mary F Redden

From: Mary F Redden
Sent: Thursday, February 03, 2005 2:07 PM
To: Timothy L Richnak
Cc: Brian P Murphy; Janet P Kidd
Subject: Appreciation to Water Dept. Staff

Tim,

This afternoon Tom Strat stopped in to ask that Janet Kidd and Dominic Mauro in the Water 
Department be given special thanks for the prompt service Mr. Strat received a couple of weeks 
ago.  Mr. Strat owns an office building on Crooks.  On January 24 one of his tenents reported a 
water leak.  Mr. Strat indicates that due to the efforts of Janet and Dominic the situation was 
resolved quickly and efficiently, when it could have been disastrous.

I'll send this along to Council as a "letter of appreciation" in the next agenda packet.

Mary Redden,
Admin. Assistant to the City Manager
City of Troy
(248) 524-3329

bittnera
Text Box
J-03a



bittnera
Text Box
J-03b



bittnera
Text Box
J-03c



bittnera
Text Box
J-03d



bittnera
Text Box
J-03e











bittnera
Text Box
J-03f





bittnera
Text Box
J-05







bittnera
Text Box
J-06









February 16, 2005 
 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
   
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
  Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
     
SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM – CMN Draft Contract 
 
 
Attached is a copy of the Draft Contract for Public Access Television Services 
between Intergovernmental Cable Communications Authority (ICCA) and 
Community Media Network (CMN).   
 
The draft contract has been sent to CMN’s attorney for dissemination to the CMN 
Board.  This contract contains all of the points agreed to by both the ICCA and 
CMN Representatives for Troy as discussed at the January 24, 2005 Council 
Study Session: 
 

• Adoption of a purchasing policy consistent with standard municipal policies 
• Annual performance evaluations of the CMN Executive Director 
• Annual Financial Audits 

 
The ICCA member communities will be discussing the new contract with CMN at 
their February meeting. 
 
 
 
 

 
 

CS 

bittnera
Text Box
J-07



DRAFT 
 

CONTRACT FOR PUBLIC ACCESS TELEVISION SERVICES 
 

BETWEEN 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL CABLE COMMUNICATIONS AUTHORITY 

AND 
COMMUNITY MEDIA NETWORK 
 
 
This Contract is made this ______ day of ____________, 2005 by and between 
Intergovernmental Cable Communications Authority (ICCA) and Community Media 
Network (CMN), a nonprofit corporation, who agree as follows: 
 
RECITALS 
 
1. The communities of ICCA (Auburn Hills, Berkley, Clawson, Ferndale, 
Huntington Woods, Oakland Township, Pleasant Ridge, Rochester, Rochester 
Hills, Royal Oak and Troy) (hereinafter referred to as ICCA communities) have 
granted to Comcast and WideOpenWest franchises to operate cable television 
systems within their communities.  The purpose of ICCA is to make a 
recommendation on the award of cable franchises, monitor and enforce the 
franchises between the cable television operators and the ICCA communities, and 
exercise additional powers, functions, duties and responsibilities, including making 
recommendations about public, educational, and government access (hereinafter 
referred to as PEG) programming services. 
 
2. The ICCA communities indicated that they accepted the cable television 
operators' offer to provide PEG services and support.  The renewed franchise did 
not require the cable operators to provide public access directly but did include a 
provision whereby the operators pay 1% of their revenue annually to support PEG 
services.  Also, the franchises provide that certain channel capacity be provided 
for PEG. 
 
3. Some of the ICCA communities have determined that they will, from time to 
time, provide support for public access equipment and facilities through the 
dedication of some or all of the revenues received from the cable operators but not 
in excess of 1/6 of the total revenues received.  ICCA desires to facilitate the 
provision of public access services for the use of PEG access cable television in 
its territory. 
 
4. Community Media Network, a nonprofit entity organized to provide public 
access services, has indicated its interest in providing public access programming, 
services, training, promotion and facilities. 
 



5. CMN agrees to provide at least two Public Access facilities, at least one of which is 
to include a production studio.  The specific spaces to be provided for these facilities shall 
be adequate to meet the requirements for access users and shall be mutually agreed 
upon between ICCA and CMN.  At least one facility will be in the area north of Troy, the 
other can be in Troy or south of Troy.  CMN agrees to maintain the two access vans 
provided to the ICCA at the end of the first franchise. 
 
6. CMN has agreed that it is subject to the Open Meetings Act, the Freedom of 
Information Act, and the Department of Treasury guidelines for governmental unit 
authorities regarding expenditure of funds provided to it as well as the maintenance of all 
of its books and records.     
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants set 
forth herein, the parties agree as follows: 
 
SECTION 1. SCOPE OF SERVICES AND FACILITIES.  In exchange for funding 
provided by some of the ICCA communities to CMN, CMN shall provide the 
following services, equipment and facilities (to the extent that funding is available): 
 
A. OPERATE PUBLIC ACCESS CABLE CHANNEL.  Make equipment and 
facilities available for operating the public access cable channel for public access 
programming. 
 
B. OPERATE COMMUNITY MEDIA CENTERS.  Make equipment and 
facilities available for operating video production facilities, which shall be available 
for use at such hours and times as are determined by CMN and approved by 
ICCA.  Access to equipment and facilities shall be open to all those who 
satisfactorily complete training classes provided by CMN. 
 
C. PROVIDE EQUAL ACCESS.  Make available equipment, facilities, 
channels, and services provided hereunder on a non-discriminatory basis to all 
members of the community for non-commercial programming purposes, whether 
individuals, groups, or organizations, on a first-come, first-served non-
discriminatory basis, pursuant to operating rules and procedures developed by 
CMN and approved by ICCA. 
 
D. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, RULES, AND REGULATIONS.  Administer 
the public access channel, equipment and facilities in compliance with applicable 
laws, rules, regulations, and in compliance with the local cable franchises between 
the ICCA communities and cable operators, including, but not limited to the 
Freedom of Information Act, the Open Meetings Act and the Michigan Department 
of Treasury guidelines for governmental units and authorities regarding fiscal 
responsibility. 
 



E. TRAINING.  Train local ICCA residents and members of non-profit 
organizations that serve the ICCA communities, and when requested, provide 
technical advice for productions of Educational and Governmental access staff. 
 
F. PLAYBACK/CABLECAST.  Playback/cablecast programs on the public 
access channel, at least 90 hours of local original, replayed and outside 
programming per week and a minimum of 360 playback/cablecast programs on 
public access channels per month, 160 originally produced with 80% of that total 
programming to be produced within the political boundaries of the ICCA 
communities.  For purposes of this programming, the message board on the public 
access channel shall not be counted to the minimum programming requirements.    
 
G. MAINTENANCE OF EQUIPMENT.  Maintain and repair all video equipment 
purchased with monies received pursuant to this Contract and/or donated, loaned, 
or leased to CMN  by ICCA, including two vans loaned to CMN by ICCA . 
 
H. PROMOTION.  Actively promote the use and benefit of the public access 
channel, equipment and facilities to cable subscribers and the public. 
 
I.  PERFORMANCE REVIEW.  CMN shall, if requested by ICCA, after 
eighteen (18) months of operation under this Contract, engage an expert in access 
management from outside the ICCA territory, at CMN’s expense and approved by 
ICCA, to conduct a performance review, which shall include an opportunity for 
access users and cable subscribers to provide input.  Upon completion, a copy of 
the performance review shall be submitted to ICCA. 
 
J. OTHER ACTIVITIES.  Undertake other access programming activities and 
services as deemed appropriate by CMN and approved by the ICCA and 
consistent with the obligation to facilitate and promote access programming. 
 
K. NONCOMPETE.   CMN agrees that it will not compete with the ICCA 
PEG programming within the ICCA communities.   CMN will be permitted, 
however, to bid PEG programming within the ICCA communities with the 
prior approval of the ICCA. 
 
SECTION 2. CHANNEL OPEN TO PUBLIC:  CMN agrees to keep the access 
channel open to all potential users regardless of their viewpoint, subject to FCC 
regulations, federal and state law, and other relevant laws.  Neither the ICCA, the 
cable operators, nor CMN shall have the authority to control the content of 
programming placed on the public access channel as long as such programming 
is lawful.  Nothing herein shall prevent CMN, ICCA communities or the cable 
operators from producing or sponsoring programming, prevent the ICCA or 
communities or the cable operators from underwriting programming, or prevent 
them from engaging in activities designed to promote production of certain types of 
programming or use by targeted groups as consistent with applicable law and 
rules for use of the channel.  CMN may promulgate and enforce policies and 



procedures approved by ICCA which are designed to promote local use of the 
channel, and make the programming accessible to the viewing public, consistent 
with such time, manner, and place regulations as are appropriate to provide for 
and promote use of access channel, equipment and facilities. 
 
 
SECTION 3. INDEMNIFICATION.  CMN shall indemnify, defend, and hold 
harmless the ICCA communities, elected officials, its officers, board members, 
agents, and employees and volunteers from and against any and all claims, suits, 
actions, causes of action, losses, damage, or liabilities of any kind, nature or 
description, including, payment of litigation costs and attorneys’ fees, brought by 
any person or persons for or on account of any loss, damage or injury to person, 
property or any other interest, tangible or intangible, sustained by or accruing to 
any person or persons, howsoever the same may be caused, directly or indirectly 
arising or resulting from any alleged acts or omission of the CMN , its officers, 
employees, agents or subcontractors arising out of or resulting from the 
performance of this Contract, except for the negligent acts of ICCA, its officers, 
agents, employees and volunteers. 
 
CMN shall indemnify and hold harmless ICCA communities, elected officials, its 
officers, board members, agents, employees and volunteers from and against any 
and all claims or other injury, including costs of litigation and attorney's fees, 
arising from or in connection with claims or loss or damage to person or property 
arising out of the failure to comply with any applicable laws, rules, regulations or 
other requirements of local, state or federal authorities, for claims of libel, slander, 
invasions of privacy, or infringement of common law or statutory copyright, for 
breach of contract of other injury or damage in law or at equity which claims, 
directly or indirectly, result from CMN use of channel, funds, equipment, facilities 
or staff granted under this Contract or franchise agreements, except for the 
negligent acts of ICCA, its officers, agents, employees and volunteers. 
 
 
SECTION 4. COPYRIGHT CLEARANCE.  Before cablecasting video 
transmissions  CMN shall require all users to agree in writing that they shall make 
all appropriate arrangements to obtain any and all rights to all material cablecast 
and clearances from broadcast stations, networks, sponsors, music licensing 
organizations’ representatives and without limitation from the foregoing, any and 
all other persons as may be necessary to transmit its or their program material 
over CMN  authorized channel.  CMN shall maintain for the applicable statute of 
limitations for ICCA's inspection, upon reasonable notice by ICCA and for the term 
of the applicable statute of limitations, copies of all such user agreements. 
 
 
SECTION 5.  COPYRIGHT AND OWNERSHIP. CMN shall own the copyright of 
any programs, which it may choose to produce.  Copyright of programming 



produced by the public shall be held by such person who produces said 
programming. 
 
 
SECTION 6.  DISTRIBUTION RIGHTS. 
 
A. CMN shall require that all programs produced with funds, equipment, 
facilities, or staff granted under this Contract shall be distributed on the channel 
whose use is authorized by this Contract.  This subparagraph shall not be 
interpreted to restrict other distribution (beyond distribution on the channel 
authorized by this Contract), so long as such other distribution is consistent with 
the rules and procedures governing, such which shall be promulgated by the CMN 
and filed with ICCA. 
 
B. Video programming cablecast on the channel whose use is authorized by 
this Contract shall state that opinions expressed in programming are the sole 
responsibility of the program producers and do not necessarily reflect the views of 
ICCA communities or CMN. 
 
 
SECTION 7. EQUIPMENT AND FACILITIES. 
 
A. CMN shall be responsible to maintain all equipment and facilities owned, 
leased or loaned to it under this Contract or purchased with funds provided 
pursuant to this Contract. 
 
B. ICCA shall own all equipment and facilities acquired by CMN upon 
termination or non-renewal of this Contract. All such equipment or facilities shall 
remain the property of ICCA.   
 
C. Upon the dissolution of the CMN, it shall return all assets to the ICCA. 
 
 
SECTION 8. INSURANCE.  CMN shall maintain in full force and effect at all times 
during the term of this Contract, insurance as required by this Section.  The cost of 
such insurance shall be borne by CMN  and must be included in CMN 's annual 
budget.  ICCA shall be shown as lien holder on all policies, with an insurance 
carrier satisfactory to ICCA. 
 
A. COMPREHENSIVE LIABILITY INSURANCE.  Comprehensive liability 
insurance and broad form contractual liability, property damage and personal 
injury coverage, and comprehensive automobile liability including owned, hired 
and non-owned automobile coverage.  The limits of such coverage shall be:  (1) 
bodily injury including death, $5,000,000 for each person, each occurrence and 
aggregate; (2) property damage, $1,000,000 for each occurrence and aggregate. 
 



B. EQUIPMENT INSURANCE.  Insurance shall be maintained on all 
equipment and facilities, including fixtures, funded in whole or in part under this 
Contract, for replacement cost.  The insurance shall include, at a minimum, 
insurance against loss or damage beyond the user’s control, theft, fire or natural 
catastrophe. 
 
C. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.  Full Workers’ Compensation Insurance 
and Employer’s Liability with limits as required by State of Michigan law, shall be 
maintained. 
 
D. CABLECASTER’S ERRORS AND OMISSION INSURANCE.  Insurance 
shall be maintained to cover the content or productions which are cablecast on the 
access channel, at minimum, in the following areas:  libel and slander, copyright or 
trademark infringement; infliction of emotional distress; invasion of privacy; 
plagiarism; misuse of musical or literary materials; an amount to be not less than 
$1,000,000 or as agreed to by counsel for the respective parties.  This policy shall 
not be required to cover individual access producers. 
 
E. ICCA AS CO-INSURED OR ADDITIONAL INSURED.  ICCA shall be 
named as an additional insured on all aforementioned insurance coverages.  The 
policies shall provide that no cancellation, major change in coverage or expiration 
may be affected by the insurance company or CMN without first giving ICCA thirty 
(30) days written notice prior to the effective date of such cancellation or change in 
coverage.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by ICCA, its officers, 
agents, employees, or volunteers shall be in excess of the CMN insurance and 
shall not contribute to it. 
 
F. NOTIFICATION OF COVERAGE.  CMN shall file with ICCA proof of 
insurance coverage. 
 
SECTION 9. NON-DISCRIMINATION IN EMPLOYMENT AND SERVICE.  CMN 
shall not discriminate against any person, employee or applicant for employment 
or subcontractor on the basis of race, color, creed, religion, sex, sexual 
preference, marital status, ancestry, national origin or physical or mental handicap.  
CMN will comply with the ICCA’s communities’ most restricted ordinance on 
nepotism. 
 
SECTION 10.   COMPETITIVE BIDDING REQUIREMENTS.   All supplies and 
contractual services, when the estimated costs thereof shall equal or exceed 
Three Thousand Dollars ($3,000), shall be purchased by formal written 
contract from the lowest and responsive bidder after due notice inviting 
competitive sealed bids.    
 
SECTION 11.  INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  It is understood and agreed that 
CMN is an independent contractor and that no relationship of principal/agent or 
employer/employee exists between ICCA, or any member community, and CMN.  



If in the performance of this Contract any third persons are employed by CMN, 
such persons shall be entirely and exclusively under the control, direction and 
supervision of CMN. 
 
SECTION 12.   CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND NEPOTISM.   No member of 
the CMN Board or any officer of CMN or any members of their families within 
the second degree of consanguinity or affinity shall be interested, directly or 
indirectly, in any contract, franchise, job, work or service where there are 
profits therefrom, nor shall he or she receive any compensation for any work 
or service rendered to CMN except compensation for services if the officer is 
an employee of CMN.  Relatives by blood or marriage of the Executive 
Director or any member of the CMN Board within the second degree of 
consanguinity or affinity are hereby disqualified from holding any appointed 
office of CMN or from being employed by CMN or serving on the CMN Board. 
 
SECTION 13. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING.  Neither this Contract nor any 
interest herein shall be assigned or transferred by CMN, except on the express, 
prior written authorization of ICCA. 
 
 
SECTION 14.  ANNUAL REPORTS.  Prior to March 15 of each year, CMN shall 
submit to ICCA an annual report for the preceding calendar year (January 1 – 
December 31).  This report shall contain, at a minimum, the following information: 
 
A. Statistics on programming, services and facilities provided; 
 
B. Current and complete listing of CMN Board of Directors and employees; 
 
C. Year-end financial statements audited by an independent certified public 
accountant, which shall be hired by the ICCA and paid for by CMN. 
 
D. Comparison of annual plan with actual completed projects. 
 
 
SECTION 15.  RECORDS, ANNUAL AUDIT. 
 
A. CMN shall maintain all necessary books and records, in accordance with 
the Michigan State Department of Treasury guidelines for governmental units and 
authorities. 
 
B. Upon request from ICCA, CMN shall, at any time during normal business 
hours, make available all of its records with respect to all matters covered by this 
Contract. 
 
C. CMN shall provide a monthly warrant list to the ICCA showing each check 
that is written and for what purpose the check was written for. 



 
D. Amendments to the CMN By-laws are subject to and will not be effective 
until approved by the ICCA.    
 
 
SECTION 16.  RESOURCES. 
 
A. ICCA agrees to make resources available to CMN as follows: 
 
1. Comcast and WideOpenWest have dedicated certain channel capacity to 
public access use.  ICCA agrees to permit CMN to manage that channel capacity 
for public access programming purposes. 
 
2. ICCA will provide to CMN all funds, which it receives, from ICCA 
communities for public access on a quarterly basis after ICCA receives the funds.  
Each ICCA community will decide for itself how much of the revenues it receives 
from the cable operations it will give to ICCA for the benefit of public access. 
 
B. CMN shall make public access available to the residents of ICCA 
communities that do not financially support CMN based on the fee schedules.   
Attached hereto is Exhibit ______. 
 
 
SECTION 17.  ANNUAL PLAN.  On or before September 30 of each year in which 
this Contract is in effect, CMN shall provide to ICCA an Access Activities Plan and 
Budget outlining activities and programs planned for the following fiscal year with 
funds and channel received from ICCA.  Such plan shall contain:  (1) a statement 
of anticipated number of hours of local original programming; (2) training classes 
to be offered and frequency of classes; (3) other access activities planned by 
CMN; and (4) an operating and capital equipment and facilities budget. 
 
 
SECTION 18.  EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS.  CMN shall spend funds received 
from ICCA solely for the purposes listed in its Annual Public Access Activities Plan 
and Budget and Section 1, Scope of Services of the Contract.  Funds not 
expended in the year covered by the Annual Budget and Activities Plan must be 
carried over to succeeding years.  Upon termination of this Contract all funds of 
any kind not expended by CMN shall be returned to ICCA unless the parties agree 
to an extension of the Contract.  CMN shall provide for such fiscal control and 
accounting procedures, as approved by the ICCA, as are necessary to assure 
proper disbursement and accounting for funds received from ICCA. 
 
 
SECTION 19.  FUNDING FROM OTHER SOURCES.  CMN  shall, during the 
course of this Contract, raise supplemental funds from other sources as approved, 
in advance, by the ICCA. 



 
 
SECTION 20.  TERM OF CONTRACT.  This Contract shall be for a period of three 
(3) years commencing January 1, 2005 and ending on December 31, 2007 unless 
terminated earlier, as provided in this Contract Section 21.  This Contract may be 
extended by mutual agreement of ICCA and CMN, in writing, in accordance with 
Section  22. 
 
 
SECTION 21.   TERMINATION OF CONTRACT: TRANSFER OF ASSETS. 
 
A. ICCA shall have the right upon ninety (90) days written notice to CMN to 
terminate this Contract for (1) breach of any provision of this Contract by CMN; (2) 
malfeasance, misfeasance, misappropriation of public funds, (3) or if CMN loses 
its 501(c)(3) status.  CMN may avoid termination by curing any such breach within 
ninety (90) days of notification or within a time frame agreed to by ICCA and CMN. 
 
B. CMN shall have the right upon ninety (90) days written notice to ICCA to 
terminate this Contract. 
 
C. The ICCA shall have the right to terminate this contract without cause within 
One Hundred Eighty (180) days written notice to CMN. 
 
D Upon termination, CMN shall immediately transfer to ICCA or its designee 
(in accordance with section 7 C of this Contract) all equipment, real property, 
fixtures, contracts, leases, deposit accounts or other assets held by CMN. 
 
 
SECTION 22.  EXTENSION OF CONTRACT.  This Contract may be renewed 
pursuant to the following process: 
 
A. If CMN seeks an extension of this Contract it shall, on or before July 1, 
2007, submit to ICCA a letter of intent requesting extension. 
 
B. On or before October 1, 2007, ICCA shall respond to CMN 's letter of intent 
to request extension. 
 
 
SECTION 22.  TIME.  Time is of the essence in this Contract and for the 
performance of all covenants and conditions of this Contract. 
 
 
SECTION 23.  COOPERATION.  Each party agrees to execute all documents and 
do all things necessary and appropriate to carry out the provisions of this Contract. 
 
 



SECTION 24.  APPLICABLE LAW.  This Contract shall be interpreted and 
enforced under the laws of the State of Michigan. 
 
 
SECTION 25.  NOTICES.  All notices and other communications to be given by 
either party may be given in writing, depositing the same in the United States mail, 
postage prepaid and addressed to the appropriate party.  Any party may change 
its address by written notice to the other party at any time. 
 
 
SECTION 26.  ENTIRE CONTRACT.  This Contract is the entire agreement of the 
parties and supersedes all prior negotiations and agreements whether written or 
oral. 
 
 
SECTION 27.  AMENDMENT.  This contract may be amended only by written 
agreement and no purported oral amendment to this Contract shall be valid. 
 
 
SECTION 28.  DISPUTE RESOLUTION.  Any claim, dispute or disagreement 
arising out of the covenant mutually agreed to herein, if not resolvable by 
mediation, shall be submitted to the American Arbitration Association. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this Contract as of the date 
written above. 

ICCA 

 
Adopted by the Intergovernmental Cable Communications Authority at its regular 
meeting on _______________. 
 
By Its Chairman: 
 
Date: 
 
CMN, a nonprofit corporation 
 
By its Chairman: 
 
Date: 
 
 
 
 

 



bittnera
Text Box
J-08


	AGENDA: February 21, 2005
	GOALS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:  No Presentations

	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 No Public Hearings Requested

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 Postponed Item (From January 24, 2005) – Rezoning Applic

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation:
	(a) George D. Goodman – Retirement from the Michigan Municip

	E-4  Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easements and Warra
	E-5  Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Oakland County Cooper
	E-6  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Bid Award – Sole Bidd
	E-7  Private Agreement for Oakwood Sanitary Extension – Proj
	E-8  Private Agreement for 2597 E. Big Beaver – Sanitary Ext
	E-9  Request for Approval of Conditioned Purchase Agreement 
	E-10  Public, Education, Government (PEG) Fees Distribution
	E-11  Preliminary Site Plan Review and Amended Consent Order
	E-12  Interagency Agreement with Wayne County for the Local 
	E-13  Education and Training Budget for City Council
	E-14  Sole Source – Nuisance Goose Control Services for Sanc

	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Downtown Development Authority; b) City Council Appointments: Cable Advisory Committee; Municipal Building Autho
	F-2 Load Restrictions
	F-3 Request for a Study Session for the Purpose of Discussin
	F-4 Rules of Procedure – Proposed Amendments

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment for Section 03.21, Procedure
	Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment for Section 04.20 Definition

	G-2 Green Memorandums:
	Snow Emergency Ordinance


	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1  Mayor Louise Schilling Requested to Discuss Modificatio

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1  No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Downtown Development Authority/Final – September 15, 2004
	Troy Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – October 5, 2004
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – Dec
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – Dec
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – December 2, 2
	Library Board/Final – December 9, 2004
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – December 13, 2004
	Troy Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – January 4, 2005
	Library Board/Draft – January 13, 2005
	Troy CAC Advisory Committee/Draft – January 19, 2005
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – January 25, 2005
	Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – January 25, 2005
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – February 2, 2005
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – February 3, 2
	Library Board/Draft – February 4, 2005
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – February 14, 2005
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – February 16, 2005

	J-2 Department Reports:
	Building and Zoning – Permits Issued During the Month of Jan
	City Council Expense Report – December, 2004
	Monthly Financial Report – January, 2005
	Council Member Beltramini’s Report from the National League 
	Mayor Louise Schilling Requested That The High Performance G

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter to Tim Richnak from Mr. Tom Strat, Thanking Janet Kid
	Letter to Chief Craft from Lieutenant Colonel L. E. Reynolds
	Letter to Jeanette Bennett from Jean Farris, Michigan Public
	Letter to Chief Nelson from Randy and Linda Cunningham, Than
	Letter to Chief Craft from Christina Barney, Health Educatio
	Letter to Carla Vaughan from Representative Robert Gosselin,

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  MDOT Response to Correspondence from David Krall of Whi
	J-7  Community Media Network (CMN) Draft Contract
	J-8  Preliminary Planned Unit Development Review (Public Inp

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1  No Study Items Submitted

	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested

	RECESSED
	RECONVENED
	ADJOURNMENT



